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City of Irvine, One Civic Center Plaza, P.O. Box 19575, Irvine, California 92623-9575

December 7, 2009
To the Honorable Mayor, Councilmembers, City Manager, and Residents of Irvine:

We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of
Irvine (City) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This report is published in accordance with
local ordinance and state law requirements that financial statements be presented in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards by an independent public accounting firm of licensed certified
public accountants.

The report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all
of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these
representations, management of the City has established a comprehensive internal control
framework designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse, and to
compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the financial statements in
conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh its benefits,
the City’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide
reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material
misstatement.

As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is
complete and reliable in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present
fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds and component units
of the City.

Diehl, Evans & Company, LLP, a firm of licensed certified public accountants, has audited the
City’s financial statements. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable
assurance the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 are free of
material misstatement. The independent auditor concluded there was a reasonable basis for
rendering an unqualified opinion that the City’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2009, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The Independent Auditors’
Report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

In addition, Diehl, Evans & Company, LLP audited the City’s major program expenditures of
federal funds for compliance with the Federal Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, the Office
of Management and Budget Circular A-133 regulating Single Audits, and the standards



applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. The report of the Single Audit is published separately from this
CAFR and may be obtained upon request from the City’s Department of Administrative
Services.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial
statements. This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read
in conjunction with it.

CITY OF IRVINE PROFILE

The City, incorporated in 1971, is located in Orange County, California, approximately 40 miles
southeast of Los Angeles. Irvine is one of the nation’s largest planned urban communities with
66 square miles of land, which includes residential communities, commercial retail centers,
several industrial/office complexes, a 1,500-acre University of California campus, as well as civic,
cultural, and recreational facilities. The City’s residential population has grown from 7,500 in
1971 to 212,793 in 2009.

The City operates under the Council-Manager form of government. Policymaking and
legislative authority are vested in the City Council, which consists of a Mayor and a four member
Council. The City Council is responsible, among other things, for passing the City’s ordinances
and operating resolutions, adoption of the annual budget, appointing commissions and
committees, and hiring the City Manager, City Clerk, City Treasurer, and City Attorney. The
City Manager is responsible for implementing the policies, ordinances, and directives of the City
Council, overseeing the day-to-day operations of the City, and appointing the Assistant City
Managers and the directors of the City’s departments. The City Council is elected on a
nonpartisan basis. Councilmembers are elected to four-year staggered terms and the Mayor is
elected to a two-year term.

The City provides a wide range of services, including, public safety; building safety regulation
and inspection; infrastructure and public facility capital improvement construction; street and
park maintenance; street lighting; recreational activities and cultural programs. The City
contracts with the Orange County Fire Authority for fire protection and emergency medical aid
services. The Orange County Transportation Authority provides transportation services in the
City alongside the City’s transportation service, iShuttle. Independent special districts provide
educational, library, and utility services to Irvine residents.

The City is also financially accountable for a number of legally separate entities that are included
as an integral part of the City’s financial statements. These component units include the Orange
County Great Park Corporation, a nonprofit public benefit entity; Irvine Community Land
Trust, a nonprofit public benefit entity; as well as the Irvine Redevelopment Agency; Irvine
Public Facilities Corporation; and the Irvine Public Facilities and Infrastructure Authority.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City’s financial planning and control. The
City Council is required to adopt a budget by the start of the fiscal year. The budget is prepared
by fund, program (e.g. senior services) and department (e.g. Community Development). After
adoption, the City Manager may amend the adopted General Fund budget provided that the



change does not increase overall revenues or expenditures. Departmental requests for budget
amendments over $50,000, and amendments that change revenues or expenditures, or expand or
add to City programs or services require review of the Finance Commission and approval by the
City Council. The City’s budgetary procedures are further discussed in section IIILA. of the
notes to the basic financial statements.

ECONOMIC CONDITION

Local economy. Irvine is renowned as the nation’s most successful master-planned
community. It is home to over 13,700 businesses, many of which are headquarters for well-
known national corporations. These businesses represent a wide range of industries, most
notably Southern California’s highest concentration of technology firms. Other industries
include a variety of technical and professional businesses, textile, acrospace, pharmaceutical and
electronic manufacturers, hotels, an entertainment and retail complex, an auto center, and
numerous other retail establishments.

Orange County’s (County) economy, which benefited during the real estate boom from an
abundance of high-paying financial services and real estate industry jobs, has been significantly
impacted by job losses resulting from the real estate downturn. As a result, the unemployment
rate in the County has increased from an average annual rate of 3.4% in 2006 to 9.3% in June
2009 (Bureau of Labor Statistics). Like the County, the City’s unemployment rate has increased
sharply in the last three years. Irvine’s unemployment rate is reported at 7.0% for June 2009,
according to the Bureau of Labor Statistics, up from a recent low of 2.5% enjoyed three years
earlier and already exceeding the recent high of 4.0% experienced in the midst of the 2001
recession. Nevertheless, Irvine’s unemployment rate remains below the unemployment rate of
the County.

Despite the difficult economic environment, Irvine continues to attract expanding businesses,
including software and legal firms, helping to offset some of the job losses resulting from the
mortgage and housing industry downturn. Two significant examples include the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), which recently leased a 200,000 square-foot building for
office space in the Spectrum area of the City, and Western Digital, which will be moving its
headquarters to Irvine during 2010.

Irvine’s future is very bright despite the near-term challenges posed by the difficult external
economic environment. Irvine has been recognized as one of the most successfully planned and
accessible cities in the nation. In 2008, Irvine was designated by Money Magazine as the fourth
best city in the Country in which to live. In addition, it was rated the safest large city in
American by the FBI for the fifth consecutive year, and selected by America’s Promise Alliance
as the best community for young people.

Overall, the City’s general fund revenue for fiscal year 2008-09 decreased 11.3% from prior fiscal
year, while related expenditures decreased less than 1%. Due to the continued weak economy,
general fund revenues are forecasted to decrease again in fiscal year 2009-10. In anticipation of
the current cycle, the City has taken a number of steps to ensure the continuation of City
services. These measures include utilizing the City’s reserve funds to support ongoing



operations, efficiently using grant and other restricted funds, and filling only those vacancies
necessary for the delivery of City services.

City of Irvine
General Fund Revenues and Expenditures
Last Ten Years
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Property tax has become more significant as a revenue source to the City over the past five
years, due to new residential and commercial development, high property valuations and
legislation enacted in 2004 that swapped motor vehicle license fee allocations for additional
property tax revenue (property tax in-lieu of VLF revenues). The property tax and property tax
in-lieu of VLF revenues received in fiscal year 2008-09 totaled $54.3 million. The increasing
importance of property tax revenue to the City is a concern in the short term given the difficult
conditions currently gripping the nation’s residential real estate market. Despite declining
property values, the City’s property tax revenue is not expected to decline significantly unless
property values continue to fall for an extended period of time. Instead, property tax revenue is
projected to be substantially flat through fiscal year 2010-11. Over time, however, property tax
has proven to be one of the City’s more stable revenue sources.

The following chart compares total assessed valuation of property located in Irvine against
annual population for the past ten fiscal years.

City of Irvine
Assessed Valuation and Population Trends
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Sales tax is the City’s largest general fund revenue source with actual revenues in fiscal year 2008-
09 of $49.7 million. As a result of the current recession, the sales tax revenue for fiscal year
2009-10 is estimated to fall 12.7% from fiscal year 2008-09.

Long-term financial planning. The City’s five-year fiscal forecast beginning in fiscal year
2009-10, is balanced by a combination of expenditure reductions and by the use of accumulated
surpluses. Beyond the first fiscal year, additional expenditure reductions of $3.6 million and $1.8
million are expected to be required in the second and third years of the plan respectively, based
on the current forecast and economic outlook. By the fourth and fifth year of the forecast, the
City is expected to be operating at a slight surplus and will be able to begin to restore its reserves
with renewed contributions to its Contingency Reserve Fund and annual transfers to its
Infrastructure and Rehabilitation Fund from its annual operating budget.

To provide for future infrastructure rehabilitation needs, the City established the Asset
Management Plan Fund in 1985. The fund balance is $69.9 million as of June 30, 2009 and
continues to make annual contributions of $1.5 million (begun in fiscal year 2004-05) to meet
the City’s infrastructure needs. Future contributions will be based on investment earnings in
order to preserve core assets.

Financial policies. City Council policy sets the Contingency Reserve at 15% of general fund
expenditures, with a minimum reserve of 3%. This reserve is designated for future economic
uncertainties, to fund critical City service delivery functions in the event an extreme financial
condition occurs.

Major initiatives. Through its Strategic Business Plan, Irvine’s City Council seeks to assure a
high quality of life endures and improves as the City ages and grows in size. The Strategic
Business Plan was first created in 1994 as a way to help the City Council assess the effect of
today’s economic decisions on the City’s future quality of life. As a blueprint for the City’s
future, the Strategic Business Plan defines the City Council’s goals and evaluates the City’s
financial capacity to achieve them. The following four strategic goals set priorities for the City
operations and the annual budget.

A clean and well maintained environment through: maintenance and rehabilitation of streets, landscape,
and facilities; upgrade of the traffic control systems; graffiti removal; modernization of older City
facilities; code enforcement and planning with an eye toward preventing deterioration.

Maintain a safe community through: community policing and problem-solving; meeting emergency
response standards; prevention of crime through community programs and after-school
programs that support youth; increasing community involvement; and development of a wide
variety of recreational opportunities for families.

Promote economic prosperity and a livable community through: the City’s General Plan and Zoning
Ordinance; creation of the Great Park; enhancing economic development and business retention;
strengthening the City’s revenue base; supporting legislation that protects the City’s tax revenues;
and increasing the number of businesses located in Irvine that generate sales tax.

Promote effective government by:  providing civic information to the community; connecting the
community with the past, present and future of Irvine; evaluating the staffing mix of employees,



consultants and contractors; implementing the strategic technology plan; developing
performance measurements for services; and measuring and evaluating citizen satisfaction.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. This was the thirtieth consecutive year the City
has received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the
government published an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report satisfied
both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and applicable
legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement program’s requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the City’s Budget Office also received the GFOA Distinguished Budget
Presentation Award for its fiscal year 2008-09 budget document. In order to qualify for the
Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the government’s budget document was judged to be
proficient in several categories, including as a policy document, a financial plan, an operations
guide, and a communications device.

The preparation of the CAFR could not have been accomplished without the efficient and
dedicated service of the Fiscal Services Division staff. We would like to express our appreciation
to all members of the division who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report,
particularly the financial reporting team. Appreciation is also expressed to the Finance
Commission, Investment Advisory Committee, Budget Office, and City departments for their
assistance and support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the City during
this fiscal year, as well as the Mayor and Councilmembers for their steadfast support for
maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in the management of the City’s finances.

Respectfully submitted,
Donna Mullally Rick Paikoff
Manager of Fiscal Services Director of Administrative Services
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November 30, 2009

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Thc Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council

City of Irvine

Irvine, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Irvine, California, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the City’s basic [inancial statements as listed in
the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of lrvine's
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly. in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Irvine, California, as of June 30, 2009 and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary
comparison for the General, Irvine Business Complex, Orange County Great Park, and lrvine
Redevelopment major governmental funds for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

OTHER OFFICES AT: 2965 ROOSEVELT STREET 613 W. VALLEY PARKWAY _SUITE 330
CARLSBAD, CALIFORNIA 92008-2389 ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA 92023-2398
(760) 729-2343 « FAX (760) 7292234 (760) 741-314] « FAX (760) 741-9890
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 30, 2009, on our consideration of the City of Trvine California’s mternal control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report 1s an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards and
should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis, the defined benefit pension plan schedule of employer
contributions and the schedules of funding progress for the defined benefit pension plan, the CalPERS
defined benefit pension plans and the other post employment benefits plan, are not a required part of
the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures,
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary mformation. However, we did not audit the information
and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of formimg opmions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Irvine, California’s basic financial statements. The introductory
section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical
section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules
have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, 1n our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express

14



City of Irvine
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Irvine (City), California, we offer readers of the City’s financial
statcments this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2009. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal,
which can be found in the introductory section of this report, and with the City’s financial
statements, which follow this discussion.

Financial Highlights

. The asscts of the City exceeded its liabilitics, at June 30, 2009, by $2.13 billion (#ef assets).
Of this amount, $294.35 million (wnrestricted nel assels) may be used to meet the
government’s ongoing obligations to residents and creditors, but 1s subject to designation
for specific City programs. Some of these designations arc $265.05 million for the
Orange County Great Park project and $14.57 million for various non-circulation
projects such as parks and public facilities.

. The government’s total net assets decteased by $27.84 million during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2009. The decrease in net assets 1s mainly atrributable to the decrease in
capital grants and contributions and general revenue. The City received its last
installment of developer fees in fiscal year 2007-08 and has experienced declines in
interest revenue and sales tax revenue due to the current economic downturn.

L As of June 30, 2009, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $610.49 million, a decrease of $65.92 million in comparison with the ptior
year. Approximately 46% of this total amount, $280.66 mullion, 1s available for spending
at the government’s discretion (wnreserved fund balance) within the guidelines of the funding
soutces.

. At June 30, 2009, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $100.77 million or
62% of total general fund expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This
represents a decrease of unreserved fund balance of $13.58 million or 12% from priot
year. The City Council has designated all of this unreserved fund balance for specified
purposes, in accordance with City policies and budgetary guidelines.

. The City’s total long-term labilities decreased by $6.17 million (15%) during the current
fiscal year. 'The key factor in this decrease was the retirement of debt.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis 1s intended to setve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements. The City’s basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.

See Independent Auditors’” Report.
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Government-wide financial statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of
the City’s finances, in 2 manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents informaton on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as #er assets. Over time, increases in the net assets may setve
as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating,.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash
tlows 1n future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

The government-wide financial statements present information about the functions of the City
that arc principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenuces (governmental activities). The
governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, public works,
health and sanitation, culture and recreation, community development, and great park.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City 1tself (known as the primary
government), but also three legally separate entities: the Orange County Great Park Corporation,
the Irvine Redevelopment Agency, and the Irvine Community Land Trust. The City 1s financially
accountable for these entities and financial information for these blended component unils is
reported within the financial information presented for the primary government itself. Financial
information for two other blended component units, the Irvine Public Facilities Corporation and
the Itvine Public Facility Infrastructure Authority is also included with the activities of the
primary government.

The government-wide financial statements can be found immediately following this discussion
and analysis.

Fund financial statements

A Jund 1s a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments,
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided mnto three categories: governmental
funds, proprictary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental Junds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike
the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on zear-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the
end of the fiscal year. Such mnformation may be uscful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requirements.

See Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it 1s useful to compare the information presented for govermmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, rcaders may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the governmental fund
Statement of Revenues, Ixpenditures, and Changes i IF'und Balances provides a reconciliation
to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains various individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately
in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet, and in the Governmental Funds Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances, for the General Fund, the Irvine
Business Complex IF'und, the Orange County Great Park I'und, the Irvine Redevelopment [fund,
the Capital Improvement Projects Fund, the Assessment Districts Fund and the RDA Debt
Service Fund; all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from other governmental
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these
other governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements clsewhere in this report.

The basic financial statements also include budgetary comparison statements for the General
Fund, the Irvine Business Complex Fund, the Orange County Great Park Fund, the Irvine
Redevelopment Fund and to demonstrate compliance with the annual budget as adopted and
amended.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found immediately following the
government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains various éufernal service funds. Internal service funds are an
accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs mnternally among the City’s various
functions. The City uses internal service funds to account for its self-insurance activities, vehicle
fleet operations, miscellaneous equipment maintenance, duplication and telecommunications
services, and informaton technology systems. Because these services benefit governmental
functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements.

The internal service funds are combined 1nto a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary
fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the
form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found immediately following the basic
governmental fund financial statements.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parues outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide
financial statement because the resources of those funds are wor available to support the City’s
programs. The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found immediately following the
basic proprietary fund financial statements.

See Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Notes to the basic financial statements

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
The notes to the basic financial statements can be found immediately following the basic
fiduciary fund financial statements.

Other information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain requived supplementary information concerning the City’s annual required contribution to the
Defined Benefit Pension Plans, and Other Post Employment Benefit Plans. Required
supplementary information can be found immediately following the notes to the basic financial
statements.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with other governmental funds and
internal service funds are presented for Other Special Revenue Funds, Other Debt Service
Funds, Other Capital Projects Funds, Permanent Fund, Internal Service Funds, and Fiduciary
Funds. These combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found
immediately following the required supplementary information.

The blended component unils referred to earlier in connection with the government-wide financial
statements, although legally separate, function at the discretion and direction of the City’s
management. Their financial position and results of operations, therefore, have been included as
an integral part of the primary government, and are presented in the fund financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

‘The government-wide financial statements provide long-term and short-term information about
the City’s overall financial condition. This analysis addresses the financial statements of the City
as a whole.

The largest portion of the City’s net assets (69%0) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g,,
land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, equipment, infrastructure, and construction
in progress); less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The City uses these
capital assets to provide services to residents; consequently, these assets are xof available for
future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

See Independent Auditors’ Report.
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City of Irvine
Summary of Net Assets
As of June 30, 2009 and 2008

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental
Activities
As restated
2009 2008

Assets
Current and other assets $ 754,004 $ 821,048
Capital assets 1,476,046 1,442,895

Total Assets 2.230.050 2263943
Liabilities
Other liabilides 75,720 74,375
Long-term liahilities 24,105 31,499

Total Liabilities 99,825 105,874
Net Assets
Invested 1n capital assets, net of

related debt 1,459,815 1,424,048
Restricted 376,056 354,030
Unrestricted 294 354 379991

Total Net Asscts $ 21307225 $ 2.158,069

——— S—————————

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, net assets of the City decreased 1% to $2.13 billion,
of which $1.46 billion is invested in capital assets such as equipment, buildings and
infrastructure. Of the remaining total, $376.06 million is restricted to specifically stipulated
spending agreements originated by law, contract ot other agreements with external parties. The
remaining $294.35 million is subject to designation for specific purposces as approved by the City
Council, of that amount $279.62 million is designated for non-circulation projects such as the
Orange County Great Park, various neighborhood parks, and public faciliues.

See Independent Auditors’ Report.

19



City of Irvine
Summary of Changes in Net Assets
For the Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental
Activities
As restated
2009 2008
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 34918 $ 66,927
Operating grants and contributions 15,702 11,286
Capital grants and contributions 52,984 155,840
General revenues:
Sales taxes 49,732 58,949
Property taxes 54,168 52,155
Investment revenue 7,325 36,304
Other taxes 21,183 21,989
Other revenues 185 3,110
Total Revenues 236,197 406,560
Expenses
General Government 20,495 47,848
Public Safety 57,693 52,292
Public Works 55,070 54,664
Health and Sanitation 375 314
Culture and Recreation 31,909 38,247
Community Development 32,453 18,488
Redevelopment - 10,468
Great Park 13,235 11,824
Interest on long-term debt 14,111 -
Unallocated infrastructure depreciation 38,700 33,172
Total Expenses 264,041 267,317
Excess of Revenues Over Expenses (27,844 139,243
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (27,844) 139,243
Beginning Net Assets, as restated 2,158,069 2,018,826
Ending Net Assets $ 2,130,225 $ 2,158,069

See Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Opverall, Citywide revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 decreased by $170.36 million,
a 42% decrease from the prior year. The majority of the decrease was attributed to capital grants
and contributions program revenues. In addition, developer fees received in connection with the
Orange County Great Park development were completely received during prior year.  In
addition:

e Total program revenues of $103.60 million were 44% of total revenues. Capital grants and
contributions related to mnfrastructure and capital improvements accounted for 22% of total
revenues.

¢ Total general revenues of $132.59 mullion were 56% of total revenues. The largest general
revenue, property taxes, accounted for 23% of total revenues.

Total related expenses decreased by $3.28 million, a 1.23% decrease from the prior vear. Public
Safety expenses accounted for 22% of the total expenses. Public Works expenses accounted for
21% of total current expenses, while Community Services expenses (comptised of health,
sanitation, culture and recrcation related activities) were 12% of total expenses.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requitements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information may be useful
in assessing the City’s financing requitements.

As of June 30, 2009, the City’s governmental funds reported total combined ending fund
balances of $610.49 million, a decrease of $65.92 million from the prior year. Approximately
46% of the City’s governmental funds ending fund balances, or $280.66 million, constitute
unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending at the government’s direction within the
guidelines of the funding sources. The remainder of fund balance, $329.82 million, is reserved to
indicate that it is not available for new spending, becausce it has already been committed to: 1)
liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior petiod ($0.38 million), 2) pay debt service
($5.45 million), 3) pay for infrastructure improvements, park development projects, and capital
improvement projects ($186.15 million), 4) generate income to pay for senior citizens services
programs ($0.47 million), 5) advances to othet funds (8136.53 million), 6} deposits and prepaid
costs ($0.45 million), and 7) law enforcement purposes ($0.39 million).

General Fund Financial Highlights

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At June 30, 2009, unreserved fund
balance of the general fund was $100.77 million, while total fund balance was $110.20 mullion.
As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it is useful to compare unreserved fund balance to
total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 62% of the total general fund
expenditures. As mentioned above, however, the City Council has designated all of this
unreserved fund balance for specified purposes.

See Independent Auditors’ Report.
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For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the cash and investments balance in the general fund
was $100.29 million, a decrease of $16.05 million from the prior fiscal year. Long-term notes
receivable in the amount of $10.64 million were established in the general fund as a result of
various housing loans made during the years.

City of Irvine
Summary of Changes in Fund Balances - General Fund
For the Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

(amounts expressed in thousands)

2009 2008
Revenues
Taxes:
Sales $ 46,559 $ 55,431
Property 43,058 41,364
Other 20,737 22346
Total Taxes 110,354 119,141
Charges for services 15,842 20,479
Intergovernmental 2,557 2,089
Investment revenue 4,638 6,090
Other 9,091 12,836
Total Revenues 142,482 160,635
Expenditures
General Government 29,223 28,016
Public Safety 54,672 50,780
Public Works 28,644 31,372
Community Development 18,001 18,543
Community Services 32,417 33,449
Redevelopment - 1,282
Total Expenditures 162,957 163,442
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures (20,475) (2,807)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - 14
Net transfers 6,884 (492)
(Decrease) in Fund Balance $  (13,591) $ (3,285)

See Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Overall, General Fund revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 decreased by $18.15
million, or 11%, over the prior year. The majority of this decrease 1s attributable to lower tax
revenues and charges for services.

Total related General Fund expenditures decteased by $0.49 million, or less than 1%, from the

prior year. Changes in expenditures, by function, occurred as follows during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2009:

® General Government expenditures increased by $1.21 million, to $29.22 million due to
increased staffing costs.

® Public Safety cxpenditures increased by $3.89 million to $54.67 million, duce to increased
regular salaty, overtime and benefit costs for active and retiring sworn employees, and costs
associated with training new sworn personnel.

® Public Works expenditures decreased by $2.73 million, to $28.64 million, reflecting decreased
costs associated with the slowdown of infrastructure and construction.

e Community Development expenditures decreased by $0.54 million, to $18.00 million, as a
result of decreased staffing costs.

e Community Services expenditures decreased by $1.03 mullion, to $32.42 million, driven by
temporary closure of University Community Park for modernization combined with a decrease
in internal service costs.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
Differences between the general fund original budget expenditures and the final amended

budget were $2.45 million and can be briefly summarized as follows:

Increases for activities

® $0.03 million for community services.
¢ $1.21 million for community development.
® $1.44 million for general government.

Decreases for activities
¢ $0.06 mullion for public works.
¢ $0.17 million for public safety.

In each of the functional expenditure categories, actual expenditures were less than final
budgeted amounts, totaling $162.96 million, and $179.35 million, respectively. Additionally, for
the year ended June 30, 2009, actual revenues did not meet budgetary cstimates, at $142.48
million and $164.34 million respectively. Since expenditures exceeded revenues, there was a need
to draw upon existing fund balance of $§20.48 million. Furthermore, actual net transfers from the
general fund were less than final budget amounts by $7.21 million, due to decreasing
development project.

See Independent Auditors’ Report.

23



Financial Analysis of the Other Major Funds

The Irvine Business Complex Fund utilizes developer fees, gas tax, and interest revenue to fund
multi-year arterial streets projects in the Irvine Business Complex area. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2009, developet fees of $0.68 million were received. Actual expenditures were less than
budgeted amounts because project delays resulted in the postponement of capital outlay
expenditures to future fiscal years. The ending fund balance of $64.76 million 1s designated for
future construction of various Irvine Business Complex projects.

‘The Orange County Great Park Fund accounts for transactions relating to the development,
management, operation and maintenance of the Orange County Great Park to be located on the
site of the former Matine Corps Air Station (MCAS) at Il Toro. Cutrent year expenditures,
primarily for advance planning and design costs for the Orange County Great Park amounted to
$11.24 million. The ending fund balance of $260.67 million is designated for the future
development of the Orange County Great Park.

‘The Irvine Redevelopment Fund accounts for the operational activities of the Irvine
Redevelopment Agency (Agency) to enable and facilitate the redevelopment of the project area
located on the site of the former MCAS El Toro. Transfers in and trevenues exceeded

expenditures by $0.48 million. The ending fund balance of $0.76 million is designated for the
future operations of the Agency.

The Capital Improvement Projects Fund accounts for street, bridge, traffic signal and other
circulation related capital projects funded by grants, fees and interest revenue. The fund balance
increased by $4.20 million due to a delay in expenditures in capital outlay fot circulation capital
projects. The fund balance of $9.32 million is reserved for future construction.

The Assessment Districts Fund accounts for the 1915 Improvement Bond Act bond proceeds
to fund major road and drainage improvements throughout the City. Capital outlays were §19.49
million for improvements related to new development in the City. The ending fund balance of
$169.50 million is reserved for future construction of these projects.

The RDA Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of tax increment receipts, debt
service payments, and statutory pass-through payments of property tax to affected agencies of
the redevelopment project area and plans for the non-aviation reuse of the former MCAS Iil
Toto base property. Expenditures and transfers out exceeded revenues by $17.17 million mainly
due to an increase in interest and fiscal charges related to the advances with other funds. The
fund balance 1s a deficit of $159.29 million. Future tax increment revenues from the
development in project area arc expected to alleviate this deficit.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 30, 2009,
amounts to $1.48 billion, net of accumulated depreciation. This investment in capital assets
includes land, buildings, system improvements, machinery and cquipment, park facilitics, roads,
See Independent Auditors’ Report.
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highways, and bridges. The total increase in the City’s investment in capital assets for the current
fiscal year was 2%.

City of Irvine
Summary of Changes in Capital Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Asrestated

Balance Balance
June 30, 2008 Increases Decreases June 30, 2009
Governmental Activities:
Capital asscts, not being depreciated:
Land $ 574632 § 5377 % - % 580,009
Construction in progress 67,478 24,984 21,413 71,049
Total capital assets not being depreciated 642,110 30,361 21,413 651,058
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 79,2938 2,711 1,497 80,512
Improvements other than buildings 50,570 20222 - 70,792
Machinery and equipment 42,080 5,597 1,051 46,626
Tnfrastructure 1,233,113 44,896 - 1,278,009
Total capital assets being depreciated 1,405,061 73426 2,548 1,475,939
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (36,393) (2,007) - (38,400)
Improvements other than buildings (25,389) (2279 {27,668)
Machinery and equipment (29,922 (4,661) (972) (33,611)
Infrastructure (512,572) (38,700) (531,272
Total accumulated depreciation (604,276) 47,647 (972) (650,951)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 800,785 25,779 1,576 824,988
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 1442895 % 56,140 § 22,980 § 1,476,046

See Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Major capital asset transactions during the current fiscal year included the following:

e Infrastructure additions for the year totaled $44.90 million. Street additions accounted for
$35.01 million, traffic signal additions totaled $7.76 million, bridge additions were $0.23
million, trail additions totaled $0.35 million and landscaping additions were $1.54 million.

e Machinery and Equipment acquisitons of $5.60 million included wehicles,
equipment, and hardware and software per the Strategic ‘L'echnology Plan.

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found under section TV.
“Capital assets” of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements section of this repott.

Long-term Debt

telephone

B. entitled

At the end of the cutrent fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of $15.79

million. Bond principal retired during the vear totaled $6.99 million.

City of Irvine
Summary of Changes in Long-Term Liabilities
(in thousands)

Balance Balance Long- Due Within
June 30, 2008 Increases Decreases  June 30, 2009 ‘l'erm One Year
Lease Revenue Bonds:
Series 1985 matures 1n 2010 $ 21,200 % - 5 6,500 S 14,700 S 7,700 S 7,000
Series 1987 matures in 2010 1,575 - 490 1,085 560 525
Total Lease Revenue Bonds 22,775 - 6,990 15,785 8,260 7,525
Other Debt:
Compensated absences 9,182 1,966 1,014 10,134 9,017 1,117
Claims payable 7,722 1,398 2,117 7,503 5,002 2501
Capital lease obligation 631 352 310 673 381 202
Long-rerm note 1,397 48 - 1,445 1,445 -
Total Other Debt 18,932 4,264 3,441 19,755 15,845 3,910
Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 41,707 % 4264 § 10431 S 35540 S 24105 S 11435
Long-term debt-related events during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 included:
e Compensated absences liabilities increased by $1.97 million and payouts to employees
upon termination amounted to $1.01 million.
e A new capital lease for Public Safety patrol vehicles totaled $0.35 million.
Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found under Section IV. L. enutled

“I.ong-term debt” of the Notes to the Basic I'inancial Statements.

See Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The City’s economy s linked to the natonal and state economy. However, because the City 1s
still developing, its local economy can experience departures from other local, state or national
trends; with resultant recurring revenue fluctuations. Additionally, because the City’s revenues
arc obtained from a limited number of sources, further revenue fluctuations may occur from
year to year. To develop its budget model, the City uses the “Orange County Economic
Forecast” prepared by Chapman University’s Center for Iconomic Research, the UCILA
Anderson Forecast, and the California State University at Fullerton Mihaylo College of Business
and Economics. Detailed information about the economic analysis, revenue assumptions, and
other budgetary process parameters utiized in the annual budget preparation, can be obtained
from the City’s fiscal year 2008-09 citywide budget, available through the City Manager’s Office.

Requests for Information

Thus financial report 1s designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those
with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to
the Manager of Fiscal Scrvices, One Civic Center Plaza, Post Office Box 19575, Irvine, CA
92623-9575.

See Independent Auditors’ Report.
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ASSETS
Cash and mvestments
Cash and investments held by trustee
Reccivables, net of allowances:
Taxes
Accounts
Accrued interest
Deposits
Prepaid costs
Inventories
Due from other governments
Due from developers
Long-term note receivable
Net pension asset

Propexty held for resale

City of Irvine
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Capital assets, net of accumulated depredation:

Land
Buildings and systems

Improvements other than buildings

Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Construction in progress

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued labilities
Duc to other governments
Deposits
Defertred revenue
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within onc year

Due in more than one year
Net pension obligation

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted
Expendable:
Debt Service

Assessment infrastructure and capital improvements

Other programs and activities
Noncxpendable:
Senior Services Fund program
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Note to the Basic Financial Statements
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Governmental
Activities

$ 498,584
206,866

12,204
1,826
2,662

145
306
150
15,862
1

13,105
1,466

737

580,009
42,112
43,124
13,015

726,737
71,049

2,230,050

26,033
11,288
5,776
3,724
17,245

11,435
24,105
219

99,825

1,459,815

5,449
358919
11,219

469
204354

$ 2,130,225




City of Irvine

Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Program Revenues

Charges Operating Capital Net
for Grants and Grants and (Expense)
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
Primary Government
Governmental Activities:
General Government 20,495 3 681 3 9% % - 3 (19,718)
Public Safety 57,693 4,273 2,639 - (50,781)
Public Works 55,070 10,856 4,782 22,046 (17,386)
[Iealth and Sanitation 375 - 332 - (43)
Culture and Reercation 31,909 10,896 620 11,536 (8,857)
Community Development 32,453 4,828 7,233 - (20,392)
Great Park 13,235 3,384 - 19,402 9,551
Interest on Long-Term Debt 14,111 - - (14,111)
Unallocated infrastructure depreciation 38,700 - - - (38,700)
T'otal Governmental Activities 264,041  $ 34,918 § 15,702 § 52,984 (160,437)
General Revenues
Taxcs:

Property taxes 54,168

Franchise taxes 11,704

Sales taxes 49,732

Document transfer taxes 996

I'ransient occupancy taxes 7,768

Unrestricted motor vehicle in-lieu 715

Gain on sales of assets 165

Investment revenue 7,325

Other revenue 20

Toral General Revenues 132,593
Change in Net Assets (27,844)

Total Net Assets, Beginning, as restated 2,158,069

Total Net Assets, Lnding

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxes
Accounts
Accrued interest
Deposits
Prepaid costs
Duc from other funds
Due from other povernments
Due from developers
Advances to other funds
Long-term note receivable
Property held for resale

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Tiabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Due to other funds

Due to other governments

Deposits

Deferred revenue

Advances from other funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved
Unreserved, reported in:
General Fund
Special Revenue Funds
Capital Project Funds
Permanent Fund

‘T'otal Fund Balances

Total Liabilines and Fund Balances

City of Itvine
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Page 1of2
Trvine Orange Irvine Capital
Business County Redevelop - Improvement
General Complex Great Park ment Projects
S 100,291 S 66,136 § 127,046 % 8380 § 15,678
8,299 - - - -
1,023 - 29 - 22
258 158 331 2 23
145 - - - -
- - 300 - -
3,535 - - - -
379 2,738 - - 9,187
- - - - 1
11,936 - 157,015 - -
10,638 - - - -
S 136504 S 69,032 § 284727 § 882 % 24911
S 2,668 5 317§ 909 § 120§ 2,534
4,881 1,214 109 5 1,486
- - - - 2,926
38 - 3 - -
2,792 - 21 - 645
15,929 2,738 23,015 - 8,000
26,308 4,269 24,057 125 15,591
9,427 - 134,306 - 9,320
100,769 - - - -
- 64,763 126,364 757 -
110,196 64,763 260,670 757 9,320
S 136,504 S 69,032 § 284727 9 8§82 3 24,911
- continued -

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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City of Irvine
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Page 2 of 2
Other Total
Assessment RDA Governmental Governmental
Districts Debt Service Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments ) 175,235 S 18,412 8§ 164,357  § 668,035
Recetvables, net of allowances:
l'axes - - 1,473 9772
Accounts - - 642 1,716
Accrued interest 1 45 384 1,202
Deposits - - - 145
Prepaid costs - - - 306
Duc from orher funds - - - 3,535
Due from other governments - - 3,558 15,862
Due from developers - - - 1
Advances to other funds - - 1,350 170,301
Long-term note recetvable - - 2.467 13,105
Property held for resale - - 737 737
T'otal Asscts S 175,236 S 18,457 S 174,968 $ 884,717
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilitics:
Accounts payable 5 -5 8,794  § 8775 % 24117
Accrued liabilities 2 - 3,559 11,256
Due to other funds - - 609 3,535
Due to other governments 5,733 - 2 5,776
Deposits - - 250 3,708
Deferred revenue - - 5,830 535,538
Advances from other funds - 168,951 1,350 170,301
T'otal Liabilitics 5,735 177,745 20,401 274,231
l‘und Balances:
Reserved 169,501 - 7,268 329,822
Unreserved, reported in:
General Tund - - - 100,769
Special Revenue Bunds - (159,288) 94,700 127,296
Capital Project Funds - - 52,429 52,429
Permanent Fund - - 170 170
I'otal I"'und Balances 169,501 (159,288) 154,567 610,486
I'otal Liabilities and l'und Balances S 175,236 § 18,457 S 174968 % 884,717

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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City of Irvine
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)
Total Fund Balances of Governmental Funds S 610,486

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different

because:

Capital asscts used in government activitics are nonfinancial resources and are not reported
in the funds. 1,465,830

Other long term assets are not available to pay for cutrent petiod expenditures and ate

deferred in the funds. 39,715
‘T'he net pension asset is not an available financial resources and is excluded from the funds. 1,466
The net other employment pension obligations ate not due and payable in the cutrent petiod (219

and are not reported in the funds,
A portion of sales tax receivable is not teported in the fund finandal statements. 2,522

Internal service funds are used to charge the cost of interfund activities to individual funds. ‘Lhe
assets and liabilities are included in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets. 37,528

Long term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and are not reported in the funds.

(27,103)

Total Net Assets per Statement of Net Asset S 2,130,225

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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City of Irvine

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and pernits

Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Intergovemmental

Charges for services

Revenue from developers
Contriburions from property owners
Revenue from property owners
Donations

Orther revenue

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Comimunity Development
Community Services
Great Park
Street lighting

Capital outlay

Decbt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Administration

Total Expenditures

LExcess (Deficiency) of Revenuces
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Issuance of long-term note
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, Beginning, as restated

Fund Balances, Ending

Page 10f2
Irvine Orange Irvine Capital
Business County Redevelop- Improvement
General Complex Great Park ment Projects
S 110,354 % - 3% -3 - S -
4,592 - . _ ;
1936 . } . .
4,638 2,612 5,713 29 350
2,557 7,096 - - 13,338
15,842 - 3,384 62 302
19 683 ; . 5
498 - - - -
- - 425 - -
2,046 - - - 19
142,482 10,391 9,522 91 14014
29223 16 ; 230 43
534,672 - - - .
28,644 515 - - 904
18,001 381 ; 1,386 -
32,417 - - - -
- - 11,123 - -
- 3,577 115 - 25,485
162,957 4,489 11,238 1,616 20,432
(20,475) 5,902 (1,716) (1,525) (12,418
9,219 61 - 2,000 18,121
(2,335) (1,180) (18,519) - (1,504)
6,884 (1,119) (18,519) 2,000 16,617
(13,591) 4783 (20,233) 475 4199
123,787 59,980 280,905 282 5,121
S 110,196  § 64763 § 260,670 § 757 S 9,320
- continued -

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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City of Itvine

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Page 2 of 2
QOther Total
Assessment RDA Governmental Govemmental
Districts Debt Service Funds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes § S 7,018 S 11,930 % 129,302
Ticenses and permits - - - 4,592
Fines and forteitures - - - 1,936
Investment income 2,757 697 6,293 23,089
Intergovemnmental - - 20,619 43,610
Charges for services - - 14,612 34,202
Revenue from developers - - 396 1,103
Contributions from property owners - - - 498
Revenue from property owners - - 5,203 5,203
Donations - - 112 537
Other revenye - - 871 2,936
Total Revenues 2,757 7,715 60,030 247,008
EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government 896 - 164 30,572
Public Safety - - 1,732 56,404
Public Works 302 - 3,468 33,833
Community Development - 8,853 3,364 33985
Community Services - - 1,823 34,240
Great Park - - 1,950 13,073
Street lighting - - 6,226 6,226
Capital outlay 19,490 - 36,103 84,77
Debt service:
Prncipal retirement - - 6,990 6,990
Interest and fiscal charges - 13,772 266 14,038
Administration _ _ 75 75
Total Expenditures 20,688 22,625 64,161 314,206
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (17,931) (14,910 (4,125) (67,198)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Tssuance of long-term note - - 48 48
Transters in - - 30,141 03,542
Transters out (2,562) (2,264 (35,944) (64,308}
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,562) (2,264 245 1,282
Net Change in Fund Balances (20,493) (17,174 (3,880) (63,916)
Fund Balances, Beginning, as restated 189,994 (142,114 158,447 670,402
Fund Balances, Ending $ 169,501 S (159,288) S 154,567 % 610,486

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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City of Irvine

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Fort the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Amounts repotted for governmental activities in the Sratement of Activities are different because:

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the Statement of
Activities, however, the cost of these assets 13 allocated over their estimated useful

lives as depreciation expense.
Excess capital outlay over cuttent year depteciation

Governmental funds do not report the donation of capital assets not held for resale.

Such transactions arc¢ included as revenuc on the Statement of Activitics.
Donation of capital infrastructure assets

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources

are not reported as revenues in the governmental funds.
Interest
Grants

Sales taxes

Governmental funds do not report the changes i the net pension assct, since it docs

not provide or require the use of current financial resources.
Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Other Post Employement Benefit Plans

Governmental funds report repayments of the principal of long-term debt as

expenditures, but repayments are included as a reduction of long-term liabilities in

the Statement of Net Assets.
Issuance of long term note
Principal repayments on long term debt

Some expenses reported i the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and are not reported as govemmental fund expenditures.

Accrued interest
Compensated absences

Internal Service I'unds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities
such as insurance and fleet, to individual funds. 'I'he net revenue (expense) of the

Intemal Service Funds is included in the Statement of Activities.

Change in Net Assets of Govemmental Activities

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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$ (65,916)

31,392

1,247

13,140
(10,422)
(996)

(778)
(219)

(48)
6,990

24
(915)

(1,343)

b (27,844



City of Irvine

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes § 123,402  § 123402  § 110,354 § (13,048)
Licenses and permits 7,231 7,231 4,592 (2,639)
Fines and forfeitures 2,132 2,132 1,936 (1906)
Investment mcome 4,777 4,777 4,638 (139)
Intergovernmental 2,500 3,315 2,557 (758)
Chatges for services 20,816 20,717 15,842 (4,875)
Revenue from developers 16 16 19 3
Revenue from property owners 8 8 498 490
Other revenue 2,746 2,746 2,046 (700)
Total Revenuces 163,628 164,344 142 482 (21,862)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government:
City Manager 8,771 9,124 7,899 1,225
Administrative Services 22,539 23,625 21,324 2,301
Public Safety 56,373 56,206 54,672 1,534
Public Works 31,149 31,091 28,644 2,447
Community Development 19,461 20,671 18,001 2,670
Community Services 38,607 38,632 32,417 6,215
Total Expenditures 176,900 179,349 162,957 16,392
(Deficiency) of Revenues
(Undet) Expenditures (13,272) (15,005) (20,475) (5,470)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 8,112 11,686 9,219 (2,467)
Transfers out (12,214) (12,010 (2,335) 9,675
Total Other I'inancing Sources (Uses) (4,102) (324) 6,884 7,208
Net Change in Fund Balances (17,374) (15,329) (13,591) 1,738
Fund Balances, Beginning 123,787 123,787 123,787 -
Fund Balances, Ending $ 106,413 § 108,458 % 110,196  § 1,738

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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City of Irvine
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Itvine Business Complex
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Investment income $ 2340 % 2340 S 2,612 § 272
Intergovernmental 4,025 4,025 7,096 3,071
Revenue from developers 7,547 7,547 683 (6,864
Total Revenues 13,912 13,912 10,391 (3,521)
EXPENDITURES
Cutrent:
General Government 14 14 16 (2)
Public Works 434 434 515 (81)
Community Development - 381 381 -
Capital outlay 21,614 21,614 3,577 18,037
Total I'xpenditures 22,062 22,443 4,489 17,954
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Ixpenditures (8,150) (8,531) 5,902 14,433
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 399 409 61 (348)
Transfers out (1,180) (1,180) (1,180) -
Total Other Financing (Uses) (781) 771) (1,119) (348)
Net Change in Fund Balances (8,931) (9,302) 4,783 14,085
[fund Balances, Beginning 59,980 59,980 59,980 -
Fund Balances, Ending $ 51,049 % 50,678 % 64,763  § 14,085

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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City of Irvine
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Orange County Great Park
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Investment income $ 4,200 $ 3700 0§ 5713 % 2,013
Charges for services 3,526 3,389 3,384 (5)
Donations 300 300 425 125
Total Revenues 8,026 7,389 9,522 2,133
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Great Park 13,058 17,286 11,123 6,163
Capital outlay - 175 115 60
Total Expenditures 13,058 17,461 11,238 6,223
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Undet) Expenditurcs (5,032) (10,072) (1,716) 8,356
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (45,844) (57,126) (18,519) 38,607
Total Other Financing Sources (Uscs) (45,844) (57,126) (18,519) 38,007
Net Change in I'und Balances (50,876) (67,198) (20,235) 40,963
Fund Balances, Beginning, as restated 280,905 280,905 280,905 -
[Fund Balances, Tinding % 230,029 % 213,707 % 260,670 % 46,963

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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City of Irvine
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Itvine Redevelopment
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Investment imncome § 49  § 49 3 29 % 20)
Charges for services 62 62 62 -
Total Revenues 111 111 91 (20
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 758 758 230 528
Community Development 1,349 1,349 1,386 (37)
Total Expenditures 2,107 2,107 1,616 491
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (1,996) (1,996) {1,525) 471
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 2,000 2,000 2,000 -
Total Other Financing Sources 2,000 2,000 2,000 -
Net Change in Fund Balances 4 4 475 471
[fund Balances, Beginning 282 282 282 -
Fund Balances, Ending $ 286§ 286 S 757 % 471

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments
Receivables, net of allowances:
Accounts
Accrued mnterest

Inventorics

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets:
Equipment
Tess accumulated depreciation

Total Noncurrent Asscts

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deposits
Deferred revenue
Lease payable
Compensated absences
Claims payable

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Iease payable
Compensated absences
Claims payable

‘I'otal Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

City of Irvine
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Service Funds

36,225
(26,009)

10,216

47,082

1,016

2,501

4,835

381
236
3,002

5,619

10,454

9,543
27,985

$ 37,528




City of Irvine
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Service
Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 18,101
Other 504
Total Operating Revenue 18,605
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services 2,468
Supplies & equipment 3,968
Contract setvices 4,911
Administration 1,144
Self-insured losses 2,001
Insurance premiums 2,099
Depreciation 4,035
Total Operating Fxpenses 20,626
Operating Income (Loss) (2,021)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
[nterest revenue 1,534
Interest expense (22)
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of equipment 165
Total Nonoperating Revenues 1,677
Income (Loss) Before Transfers (344)
T'ransfers in 301
Transfers out (1,300)
Change in Net Assets (1,343)
Total Net Assets, Beginning 38,871
‘T'otal Net Assets, Ending $ 37,528

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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City of Irvine
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Service Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receved from customers and users $ 273
Received from interfund services provided 18,453
Paid to suppliers (13,889)
Paid for interfund services provided (245)
Paid to employees (1,690)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 2,902

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers in 301
Transfers out (1,300)
Net Cash Used by Non-Capital Financing Activities (999)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of equipment 336
Interest paid (22)
LEquipment purchases (4,718)
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Linancing Activities (4,404
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received on investments 1,590
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 1,590
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (911)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Begmning of Fiscal Year 38,326
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Iiscal Year % 37,415

Reconciliation of Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss $ (2,021)

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 4,035
Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in receivables, net of allowances 104
(Inctease) decrease in due from other governments 1
(Increase) decrease in inventories 24
Increase (decrease) inn accounts payable 882
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 3
Increase (decrease) in due to other governments 1
Tncrease (dectrease) in deposits 16
Increase (decrease) in lease payable 42
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 36
Increase (decrease) in claims payable (219)
Total Adjustments 4,923
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities ¥ 2,902
Non Cash Capital I'ihancing Activities - Capital T.case Borrowings % 352

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
December 31, 2008 and June 30, 2009

(amounts exptessed in thousands)

ASSETS
Cash
Investments:
Collective trust funds
Short-term investments
Participant-directed investments
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxes
Accrued interest
T.oans
Due from developers

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilitics
Due to bondholders

Due to other governments
'l'otal Liabilicies
NET ASSETS
Held in ttust for pension benefits & other putrposes

Total Net Assets

City of Irvine

Pension and

Employee

Benefit Trust Agency
Funds Funds

$ - 93,340

14,752 -

715 -

9,116 -

- 2,075

1 3

125 -

- 230

24,709 95,648

172 58

23 381

- 95,069

- 140

195 95,648

24 514 -

$ 24 514 -

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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ADDITIONS
Conttibutions:
Employer
Plan members
Total Contributions

Investment income (loss):
Interest and dividends
Net (depreciation) mn fair value of mnvestments
T'otal Investment (Loss)

Less investment expense
Net Investment (T.oss)

Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS

Benefit payments

Administrative expenses

Fotfeitures to the City of Trvine

Transfer to other defined benefit plan
Total Deductions

Change in Net Asscts
Total Net Assets, Beginning
Total Net Assets, Ending

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

City of Itvine
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
Fot the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2008

(amounts expressed in thousands)

50

Pension
and Employee
Benefit Trust
Funds

S 437
56
493

199

(4,255)
(4,056)

103
4,159
(3,066)

1,378
55

210
1,651

(5.317)
29 831
S 24,514
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City of Irvine
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

I. Summary of significant accounting policies

A. Reporting entity

The City of Irvine (City) was incorporated December 28, 1971, under the general laws of the State of
California. The City adopted 1ts Charter in 1975. An elected mayor and four-member council govern
the City. ‘The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units,
entities for which the govetnment is consideted to be financially accountable. The City's blended
component units, although legally separate entides, are, in substance, part of the City's operations and
the financial data is combined with data of the City.

Blended Component Units

The criteria used in determining the scope of the reporting entity are based on the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 14. The Irvine Public Facilitics
Corporation (Corporation) and the Irvine Public Facilities and Infrastructure Authority (Authority) are
used to finance the acquisition and construction of the City's civic center, operations suppott facility,
animal services facilities, and other infrastructure improvements in the City. ‘The Corporation and
Authority are governed by boards comprised of appointed Finance Commissioners and the elected
City Councilmembers, respectively. The transactions of the Corporation and the Authority are
reported in the governmental fund financial statements as debt service funds. The Corporation’s debt
was retired in fiscal year 2001-02 and no additional activity has occurred in that fund. Separate financial
statements are not available for the Corporation and the Authority.

The Trvine Redevelopment Agency (Agency) was created in 1999 to prepare a redevelopment project
area and plan for the non-aviation reuse of the former Marine Corps Air Station at El Toro (MCAS El
Toro). A board of directors comprised of the elected City Council governs the Agency. The
transactions of the Agency are reported in the governmental fund financial statements as a major
special revenue fund, a major debt service fund, and an other governmental special revenue fund.
Copies of separate financial statements for the Agency may be obtained from the City of Irvine City
Hall, One Civic Center Plaza, Irvine, California, 92606.

The Orange County Great Park Corporation (OCGPC) was established by the Irvine City Council on
July 7, 2003, as a support agency to the City, for the specific purpose of managing and effectung the
development, operation, and maintenance of the Orange County Great Park on the site of the former
MCAS EI Toro. A board of directors comprised of the elected City Council and four appointed
individuals governs the OCGPC. The transactions of the OCGPC are reported in the governmental
fund financial statements as a part of the major special revenue fund, Orange County Great Park fund.
Separate financial statements are available for the OCGPC, and copies may be obtained from the City
of Trvine City Hall, One Civic Center Plaza, Irvine, California, 92606.

The Irvine Community Land Trust (ICLT) was established by the Irvine City Council on February 14,
2006, as a support agency to the City, for the specific purpose of assisting the City to ensure that its
residents are able to sccure affordable housing by, among other things, developing, constructing,
tinancing, managing, selling, renting, subsidizing, and monitoring single and multi-family housing. A
board of directors comprised of two mndividuals appointed by the City and five “At-T.arge-Directors”
appointed from a pool of candidates and ratified by the City Council governs the ICLT. The
transactions of the ICLT are reported in the governmental fund financial statements as an other
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City of Irvine
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Continued)

I. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

governmental special revenue fund. Copies of separate financial statements for the ICLT may be
obtained from the City of Irvine City Hall, Onc Civie Center Plaza, Irvine, California, 92606.

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (L.e., the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. For the most part, the cffect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on
fees and charges for support. All City activities are governmental; no business-type activities are
reported 1n the statements.

‘The Statement of Activitics demonstrates the degree to which the direct expensces of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses ate expenses that are clearly identifiable
with a specific program, project, function or segment. Program revenues of the City include: 1) charges
to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, ot privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting
the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items that
are properly not included among program revenucs are reported instead as general revenucs.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
tunds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements; however, the measurement focus 1s not applicable to agency funds. Under the cconomic
resources measurement focus, all assets and liabilities (current and long-term) are reported. Under the
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a
liability 1s incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as
soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the providers have been met.

In general, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Direct expenses have not been eliminated from the functional categories; however, indirect
expenses and internal payments have been eliminated.

Amounts reported as program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
scervices, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.
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City of Irvine
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Continued)

I. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting, Under the current financial resources
measurement focus, generally only current assets and liabilities are reported in the governmental funds.
Governmental fund operating statements present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and
decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Under the modified accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collected within the current period or soon
cnough thercafter to pay liabilitics of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues
to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures
generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accountng. However, expenditures
for debt service and compensated absences are tecorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual, and arce therefore recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
petiod. Only the porton of special assessments recetvable due within the current fiscal period i1s
considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.

The City reportts the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources
of the general government, except for those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Irvine Business Complex IFund, a special revenue fund, accounts for related capital project
activities and fee revenue generated by development within the Irvine Business Complex.

‘The Orange County Great Park (OCGP) Fund, a special revenue fund, accounts for the receipt
and disbursement of monies used for the specific purpose of managing, developing, operating,
and maintaining the Orange County Great Park.

The Itvine Redevelopment Fund, a special revenue fund, accounts for the activities of the
Irvine Redevelopment Agcncy to administer the redevelopment project arca and plan for the
noni-aviation reuse of the former MCAS El Toro.

The Capital Improvement Projects Fund accounts for construction of major transportation
infrastructure.

The Assessment Districts Fund accounts for the capital project activity in the assessment
districts.

The RDA Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of property tax increment

receipts, debt service payments, and statutory pass through payments of tax increment to
affected agencies of the redevelopment project area.
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I. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Governmental Funds
Special Revenue funds account for proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted or otherwise designated for specific purposes.

Debt Setrvice funds account for the accumulation of resources and the payment of principal
and interest on general long-term debt.

Capital Projects funds account for financial resources used for the acquisition or construction
of major capital facilities.

Permanent fund accounts for resources that are legally restricted, to the extent that only
earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the City’s programs. Adult
day health services and senior citizen programs are funded from interest earnings and
donations.

Proprietary Funds

Internal service funds account for operations that provide services to other departments of the
City on a cost reimbursement basis. These services include self-insurance, acquisition,
replacement and maintenance of the City’s vehicle fleet, other major equipment, and central
stores supplies.

Fiduciary Funds

Pension and Fmployee Benefit Trust I'unds account for the activities of the City’s Defined
Benefit Pension Plan for sworn employees, and the Defined Contribution Pension Plan for
non-sworn employees. Agency funds are used to account for debt service activities related to
the Assessment District and Community Facilities District conduit debt issues, in which the
City acts as an agent, not as a principal. Additionally, the Inter-Agency Custodial Fund is used
to account for cash seized by Public Safety and held until final disposition of the cases. The
Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement
of results of operations.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and cxpenscs generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods n
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the City’s internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for
mternal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meerting this definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses.

Private-sector standards of accounung and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with, or contradict guidance of the GASB. Governments
also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities
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I. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

and centerprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The City does not have business-type activities ot
enterprise funds; all City activitics are governmental activitics.

When both restricted and untestricted resources are available for use, it 15 the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, and then use unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity
1. Deposits and investments

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Investments
are reported at fair value.

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that 1s available for use by all funds except the Pension
and Cmployee Benefit Trust I'unds and the Inter-Agency Custodial 'und, which hold cash and
investments sepatately from those of other City funds. Each fund's portion of the City's pool is
displayed in the financial statements as "Cash and investments." Investment income is allocated to all
participating funds based on each fund's average daily cash balance.

2. Receivables and payables

All outstanding balances between funds are reported as “Due to /from other funds” if expected to be
repaid within one fiscal year. Noncurrent interfund receivables and payables are classified as
“Advances to/from other funds.”

Property taxes are attached as enforceable liens on the related property as of January 1. Taxes are
levied on July 1 and are payable in two installments on December 10 and April 10. The County of
Orange bills and collects the property taxes and remits the amounts to the City in installments during
the year. California State legislation (known as the ""L'eeter Plan") allowed the City and County to adopt
an alternative property tax allocation plan whereby the City should receive 100% of the tax levied. The
City 1s not responsible to reimburse the County for unpaid property taxes; in return the County
recetves all penalty charges or delinquent property taxes and 1s also responsible for any foreclosure
proceedings.

3. Inventories and prepaid costs

All inventories ate valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (I'1I'O) method. Inventories of
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to a future accounting petiod and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.
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4. Capital assets

Capital assets include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure. Property, plant and equipment are
reported as assets with an initial individual cost of at least $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an
estimated useful life in excess of two years. Infrastructure components, which include street, bridge,
traffic signal, landscape and trail networks, are reported as assets with an initial individual cost of at
least $50,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The estimated historical cost of infrastructure asset networks, as of July 1, 2001, was derived by
calculating the current construction or purchase cost from recent historical data, and deflating that cost
back in time to estimated prior in-service dates for network classes, using a generally used cost index
deflator. Infrastructure assct networks are included in the City’s capital assets reporting at estimated
historical cost. Additions to the networks after June 30, 2001 are reported at actual cost consistent with
the capitalization policy described above. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not
add to the value of assets or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as construction in progress as
projects arc constructed.

Property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated uscful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings & systems 40 years
Improvements other than buildings 15 years
Automotive equipment 3 - 10 years
Other miscellancous equipment 3 - 10 years
Infrastructure 17 - 62 years

5. Compensated absences

It 1s the City’s policy to allow employees to accumulate carned but unused vacation, compensatory
time, and sick pay benefits. The vesting method 1s used to calculate the liability. Depending on the
bargaining group and years of setvice, an employee will be paid between 0% and 90% of earned sick
pay benefits, and 100% of earned vacation and compensatory time upon separation. All vacation pay,
compensatory time, and sick pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary, and
fiduciary fund financial statements; the current portion of the liability is estimated from prior year
payments adjusted for matetial expected variances. A liability for these amounts is teported in the
governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and
retirements. The General Fund 1s used to liquidate the compensated absences liabilities.
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6. Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as labilities 1n the applicable
governmental activities or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and
discounts, as well as 1ssuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.
Bond issuance costs ate reported as deferred charges and amortized ovet the term of the related debit.
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the cutrent period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources
while discounts on debt 1ssuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

7. Deferred revenue

Revenues received, but not yet earned, are deferred until such time as those monies meet the revenue
recognition criteria. In the case of intergovernmental revenues in the fund financial statements, e.g.,
grants, entitlements and shared revenue, the basis of accounting for such revenue 1s determined
according to the procedures common to cach fund type in which the grant, entitlement, or shared
revenue 15 recorded. Grants, entitlements and shared revenues received earlier than the time
established by the revenue recognition criteria are reported as deferred trevenues. In the General Fund,
revenues received for inspections not performed are recognized as deferred revenues until such ume as
the inspections are complete. For the Special Revenue Funds and the Capital Projects Funds, revenues
are recognized when the related expenditures are incurred. Such revenues typically include grants or
entitlements. The long-term note recetvable in the General Fund and Other Governmental Funds 1s
offset by deferred revenue that will be recognized when received.

Revenues carned, but not yet received, may not be available in a timely manner to pay current
expenditures or obligations. Such receivables, not meeting the availability criteria necessary for accrual
under modified accrual basis accounting principles, are reclassified as deferred revenues for that period
in the fund financial statements. In the government-wide financial statements, however, availability
criteria are not considered. Instead, revenues become, and remain receivable from the point in time
when revenue is earned through performance or similar recognition standards, until received.

8. Fund equity
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts
that are not available for appropration, or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific

purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to
change.
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E. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosurces. Spectfically, the City has made certain estimates and
assumptions related to the collectbility of its recetvables (e.g. accounts receivable, intergovernmental
receivables, loans receivable, amounts due from other funds and amounts advanced to other funds),
the depreciation of its capital assets and infrastructure networks, and the ultimate outcome of claims
and judgments. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

II. Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the
government-wide Statement of Net Assets.

The governmental fund Balance Sheet includes a reconciliation between l'und Balances — Total
Governmental Funds and Net Assets Governmental Activities as reported in the government-wide
Statement of Net Assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that certain revenues in the
governmental funds are different because revenues are not collected within the prescribed time period
after year end. However, on an accrual basts revenues are included in the government-wide statement.
The details of this $39,715 difference (in thousands) are as follows:

Orange County Great Park I'und $ 23,015

Capital Improvement Projects Fund 7,714

General Fund 3,663

Irvine Business Complex Fund 2,738

Park Development [fund 1,174

Grants Fund 26

Interfund 16

38,346

Interest receivable - adjustment to full accrual basis 1,369
Net adjustment to increase Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 39,715
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Another element of the reconciliation explains, “T.ong-term liabilities are not due and payable in the
current period and are not reported in the funds.”

The details of this $27,103 difference (in thousands) ate as follows:

Lease revenue bonds $ 15785
Compensated absences 9,868
Long-term note 1,445
Acctrued interest payable 5
Net adjustment to decrease Fund Balances - Total Governmental ['unds $ 27,103

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and the government-wide Statement of
Activities,

The governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
includes a reconciliation between Net Change in I'und Balances — Total Governmental I'unds and
Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities as reported in the government—wide Statement of
Activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital outlays
as expenditures. In the Statement of Activities, however, the cost of these assets 1s allocated over their
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.”

The details of this $31,392 difference (in thousands) are as follows:

Expenditures for capital outlays $ 84,770
Fxpenditures for capital equipment purchases 492
Less amounts not capitalized (10,258)
Expenditures for capital asset acquisitions 75,004
Less depreciation expense - governmental funds (43,612)

Net adjustment to increase Net Change in Fund Balances -
‘T'otal Governmental Funds $ 31,392

ITI. Stewardship, compliance, and accountability
A. Budgetary information

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

1. The budget includes proposed expenditures and their financing sources. During May and
June, the City Manager submits to the City’s Finance Commission and the City Council a
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I11. Stewardship, compliance, and accountability (continued)

proposed operating budget for all funds of the City for the fiscal year commencing the
following July 1.

2. Public hearings are conducted at the Finance Commission and City Council meetings to obtain
residents' comments. Prior to July 1, the budget is legally enacted through adoption of an
approptiation resolution.

3. After adoption, the annual budget may be amended by the City Manager, if amendments are
less than $50,000 and do not expand or add to city programs or services, except for the
General Fund that has no limit if the amendments do not expand or add to the City’s
programs or scrvices. ‘The legal level of control in the General Fund 1s considered to be at the
department level. The City departments are: City Manager, Administrative Services,
Community Development, Community Setvices, Public Safety, Public Works, and Great Park.
The first two departments are classified together for reporting purposes as General
Government, but City Manager and Administrative Services operate separately as departments
for budgetary control purposes. Review by the F'inance Commission and approval by the City
Council are requited if an amendment is in excess of $50,000. Amendments to the adopted
General Fund budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, increased approprations by
$2,449.209, to an amended total of $179,349,162. The legal level of control for all

governmental funds other than the General Fund is considered to be at the fund level.

4. Budgets for the General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds are adopted on a basis
consistent with gencrally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, actual revenues and
expenditures can be compared with related budget amounts without any significant reconciling
items. Budgeted amounts contained within this report are the original and final amended
amounts, as approved by the City Council. No budgetary comparisons are presented for the
Capital Projects Funds since budgets are adopted on a project basis as opposed to an annual
basis. Also, no budgetary comparisons are presented for the Internal Service and I'iductary
funds.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds. Encumbrances (e.g., purchase orders,
contracts) outstanding at ycar-end are reported as rescervations of fund balances and do not constitute
expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be reappropriated and honored during the
subsequent year.

B. Excess of expenditures over appropriations

Other Funds

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the expenditures exceeded appropriations 1n the Major Special
Events Fund by §567,000. Additional events were added to the planned schedule, increasing the need
for overtime. These additional overtime costs were offset by an equal amount of revenue billed to and
recetved from the event sponsors.

The expenditures in the North Trvine Transportation Mitigation [fund exceeded appropriations by
$335,000. Due to various factors influencing development timetables inherent in multi-year capital
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projects scheduling, various projects in this fund continue to fluctuate during the current vear. These
timing differences are expected to reverse in future fiscal years and will be monitored accordingly at
the project level.

During fiscal year 2005-06, the City Council approved the formauon of the Irvine Community Land
Trust (ICLT) Fund that had been accounted for in the Redevelopment Agency Housing I'und. During
fiscal year 2007-08, it was determined that the ICLT 1s a blended component unit of the City and its
activity were recorded in a separate fund. The expenditures exceeded appropriations by $370,000. The
fund was not budgeted in fiscal year 2008-09.

C. Deficit fund balances

Major Funds
The RDA Debt Service Fund has a deficit fund balance of $159,287,984 at Junc 30, 2009, which is

expected to be relieved from future tax increment revenues.
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A. Deposits and investments

Cash and investments, as of Junc 30, 2009, arc classified in the accompanying financial statements as
follows (in thousands):

Statement of nct asscts:

Cash and investments b 498,584
Cash and investments held by trustee 206,866

Total 705,450

Fiduciary funds:

Cash and investments 28,321
Cash and investments held by trustee 64,879
Agency deposits 140
Investments - Pension trust funds 24,583

Total 117,923

Total Cash and Investments $ 823,373

Cash and mvestments, as of June 30, 2009, consist of the following (in thousands):

(Cash on hand $ 21
Deposits with financial institutions 2,785
Investments 795,984
Total 798,790
[nvestments - Pension trust funds 24,583
Total Cash and Investments $ 823373

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City of Itvine’s
Investment Policy

The following table identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California
Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also addresses
interest rate risk, credit risk and concentration of credit risk by virtue of the limitations imposed by the
California Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, where more restrictive). The table does
not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the provisions of
the bond indentures rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the
City’s investment.
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Maximum Maximum
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment
Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer

U.S. Treasuties 5 years None None
U.S. Government Sponsored FEnterprise Securides 5 years None None
Bankers' Acceptances 180 days 25% $5,000,000
Commercial Paper 270 days 15% 1%
Repurchase Agreements 75 days 25% None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 75 days 15% None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A 25% N/A
Municipal Bonds 5 years None None
Corporate Medium Term Notes 5 years 15% 1%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 5%

Investments Authorized by Bond Indentures

Investments of debt proceeds held by trustees are governed by provisions of the bond indentures
rather than the gencral provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s investment policy.
The City’s mvestment policy 1s designed to meet the objecuves of safety, liquidity and yield. The City,
therefore, has consciously subjected bond proceeds to the additional constraint of the investment
policy. ‘lhe City has adopted the practice of investing bond proceeds exclusively in U.S. I'reasury
obligations, U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprise Securities, and Money Market Mutual Funds, in
accordance with both the bond indentures and the City’s investment policy.

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk 1s the risk that changes in market mterest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
mvestment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater sensitivity of its fair value
to changes in market mterest rates. One of the ways that the City manages its exposure to interest rate
risk 1s by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash
flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly
over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.

Information about the scnsitivity of the fair values of the City’s investments (including investments
held by trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided in the following table that shows the
distribution of the City’s investments by maturity (in thousands):

Remaining Maturity
12 Months 13 to 24 25 to 60
Investment lype Amount or Less Months Months
U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprise Securities $ 515820 ¢§ 148397 § 157887 $ 209,536
Local Agency Investment Fund (LATF) 8,195 8,195 - -
Money Market Mutual Funds 271,969 271,969 - -

$ 795984 § 428561 $§ 157887 $ 209,536
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Investments with Fair Values Highly Sensitive to Interest Rate Fluctuations

The City’s investments (including mvestments held by trustees) in callable federal agency securities are
highly sensitive to interest rate fluctuadons. These securities are subject to eatly payment in a period
of declining interest rates. The resultant reduction in expected total cash flows affects the fair value of
these securities and makes their fair values highly sensitive to changes in interest rates. The fair value

of callable investments in the City’s portfolio at June 30, 2009, is $211,350,848.

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a raung by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization. Presented below 1s the minimum rating required by the California
Government Code or the City’s investment policy (where more restrictive), and the actual rating as of
fiscal year-end for cach investment type (in thousands).

Minmmum Rating

Legal Not Rating as of June 30, 2009

Investment Type Total Rating Required  AAA/Aaa Unrated
L.S. Government Sponsotred Enterprise Securities $ 515,820 N/A $ - § 515820 % -
Tocal Agency Investment Fund (ILAIF) 8,195 N/A - - 8,195
Money Market Mutual Funds 271,969 AAA - 271,969 -
$ 795 984 $ - 0§ 787789 $ 8,195

Concentration of Credit Risk

The City’s investment policy generally states that no more than 5% or §5 mullion of the portfolio,
whichever 15 less, may be invested in any obligations of one entity or single security except U.S.
Treasuries, U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprise Securities, and LAIF, which is subject to a 25%
(excluding the fiscal agent cash portfolio) imitation. Investments in any one issuer that represent 5%
or more of the City’s investments arc as follows (in thousands):

Issuer Investment Type Market Value
Federal National Mortgage Association U.S. Government Sponsored Fnterprise Securities 5 78,203
Federal Home Loan Bank U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprise Securities $ 190,095
Federal Iome Loan Mortgage Corporation U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprise Securities $ 133,564
Federal Farm Credit Bank U.S. Government Sponsored Lnterprise Securities $ 93,017

‘The City’s fiscal agent cash portfolio 1s subject to the constraints of the investment policy in addition
to the provisions of the bond indentures. Investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of
the fiscal agent cash portfolio are as follows (in thousands):

Issuet Investment Type Market Value

Federal Tome Loan Bank U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprise Sccurities $ 14,942
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Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the
risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a
government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the
posscssion of another party. The California Government Code requires that a financial institution
secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging sccurities in an undivided
collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental
unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the
total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law allows financial institutions to secure City
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public
deposits.  On June 30, 2009, $1,287,367 of the bank value of the City’s deposits with financial
mstitutions was in excess of federal depository insurance limits.

Bank of America, the City’s banking institution, has notified the City that there are tmes during the
course of the year where they may not have met the collateral requirements. In addition, due to
existing financial market conditions, there is a risk that the City may not be able to recover its deposits
in excess of FDIC insurance coverage if a financial institution fails and the market value of the
collateral is insufficient to cover all deposits.

As of June 30, 2009, the City’s investments in the following investment type was held by the City’s
safekeeping agent or trustee (in thousands).

Investment Type Market Value
U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprise Securities $ 494,879

The following investments in the fiscal agent cash portfolio are uninsured or uncollateralized and
currently held by the bond trustees (in thousands):

Investment Type Market Value

U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprise Sccuritics b 20,941

Investment in State Investment Pool

The City 1s a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by
California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of
California. The fair value of the City’s investment in this pool is tcported in the accompanying
financial statements at amounts based upon the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by
LAITF for the entire LAIIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance
available for withdrawal 1s based on the accounting records maintained by ILAIIY, which are recorded
on an amotrtized cost basis.

Cash and Investments - Pension Trust Funds
Defined Benefit Plan - Investments in the Plan are administered by the City's Defined Benefit Pension
Plan Trustees and are subject to the investment policies stipulated in the Plan document rather than
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the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s investment policy. Cash and
investments of the Defined Benefit Plan are included in the basic financial statements as of December
31, 2008. The fair values of the Plan investments have been determined by the respective unit price
provided by the custodian as of December 31, 2008.

Defined Contributton Pension Plan — The City’s Defined Contribution Pension Plan Committee
administers investment options in this Plan, which is subject to the investment policies stipulated in
the Plan document rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s
investment policy. Cash and investments of the Defined Contribution Pension Plan are included in
the basic financial statements as of December 31, 2008. Investments of the Plan are stated at fair
value. The fair value of investments in open-end investment trusts are determined by the funds’
quoted share price at December 31, 2008.

Agency Deposits

The Inter-Agency deposits are funds which were seized during the course of local law enforcement
activities and are held in trust pending a final asset forfeiture hearing by the Orange County District
Attorney's Office. At the conclusion of each case, the District Attorney's Office informs the City of
the required disposiuon of the funds, at which time, the City remits the seized amount plus interest as
directed.

Restricted Cash

Cash and investments in the Senior Services Permanent Ifund, consisting of proceeds from permanent
fund contributions totaling $637,654 at June 30, 2009, were restricted per terms of an agreement with
the Irvine Senior Foundation and the City.
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B. Capital assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2009, was as follows (in thousands):

As restated

Balance Balance
June 30, 2008 Increases Decteases June 30, 2009
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 574,632 $ 5377 $ - $ 580,009
Construction in progress 67,478 24,984 21,413 71,049
Total capital assets not being depreciated 642,110 30,361 21,413 651,058
Capital asscts, being depreciated:
Buildings and systems 79,208 2711 1,497 80,512
Improvements other than buildings 50,570 20,222 - 70,792
Machinery and equipment 42,080 5,597 1,051 46,626
Infrastructure 1,233,113 44,896 - 1,278,009
Total capital assets being depreciated 1,405,061 73,426 2,548 1,475,939
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and systems (36,393) (2,007 - (38,400)
Improvements other than buildings (25,389 (2,279 - (27,668)
Machinery and equipment (29,922 (4,661) (972) (33,611)
Infrastructure (512,572) (38,700) - (551,272)
‘T'otal accumulated depreciation (604,276) (47,647) (972) (650,951)
"Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 800,785 25,779 1,576 824,088

Govemmental activities capital assets, net $ 1,442,895 $ 56,140 $ 22989 $ 1,476,046

Property Held for Resale

As part of the City’s low and moderate income housing activitics, the Irvine Community Land Trust
(ICLT) purchased properties for resale to be preserved for affordable housing units. The ICLT resells
the properties to income eligible homebuyers in accordance with the affordable housing program at
below market value. Property assets held for resale are accounted for at the lower of cost or realized
matket value.

As of June 30, 2009, property held for resale totaling $§736,850 consisted of three condominiums.
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IV. Detailed notes on all funds (continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to City functions/programs as follows (in thousands):

Public Works $ 1,748
General Government 1,579
Community Services 1,124
Public Safety 417
Great Park 36
Community Development 8
Internal Service Funds Depreciation-charged to programs based on asset usage 4035

Allocated Depreciation 8,947
Unallocated Infrastructure Deprecation 38,700

Total Depreciation Fxpense - Governmental Activitics $ 47647

Construction Commitments

‘The City has active construction projects as of June 30, 2009. 'The projects include signal projects,
streets and drainage projects, bridges, trails, landscape, facilities and equipment. At fiscal year-end the
City’s encumbrances with contractors wete as follows (in thousands):

Remaining

Spent-to-date Commitment

Streets and drainage $ 27,374 $ 7,009
Facilities and equipment 24,985 13,606
Bridges 12,430 9,669
Traffic signal projects 7,763 637
Tandscape 1,537 97
'rails 353 234
Total $ 74,442 $ 31,252

Special assessment bonds that will be repaid by the benefiting property owners are financing the
special assessment commitments. A mixture of outside federal and state grants supplemented by City
funding finances the other commitments. City funding includes the General Fund transfers, Gas Tax,
and Measure M Turnback funding as well as various types of development fees.

C. Interfund receivables, payables, and transfers

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2009, was as follows (in thousands):

Due to/from other funds:
Recavable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General I'und Non-Major Governmental [funds $§ 3535

70



City of Irvine
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Continued)

1V. Detailed notes on all funds (continued)

Advances to/from other funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
Orange County Great Park Fund RDA Debt Service Fund $ 157,015
General Fund RDA Debt Service Fund 11,936
Other Governmental Funds Other Governmental Funds 1,350

$ 170,301

‘The mterfund payable balances (in thousands) represent routine and temporary cash flow assistance
from the General Fund until the amounts receivable from other agencies are collected to reimburse
eligible expenditures.

‘The advances balance (in thousands) represent balances due under a series of financing agreements,
including accrued interest between the Agency and the GGeneral Fund and Orange County Great Park
Fund. Agreement terms stpulate Agency repayment from future tax increment revenues as they
become available.

Interfund Transfers:

L'ransfers in (in thousands):

lrvine Irvine Capital Other Internal
General Business  Redevelop-  Improvement Governmental Service
iurd Complex ment Projects lunds lunds Total
Transfers out:
General 'und 8 - S 49 S - S (84) S 2370 S -5 2335
Irvine Business Complex - - - - 1,180 - 1,180
Orange County Great Park 100 - - - 18,419 - 18,519
RIDA Debt Service - - 2,000 - 204 - 2,264
Capital Improvement Projects 1,105 - - - 399 - 1,504
Assessment Districts - - - 2,562 - - 2,562
Orther Governmental Funds 6,714 12 - 15,643 13,509 66 35944
Internal Service Funds 1,300 - - - - - 1,300
Total $ 9219 S 61 § 2000 S 18,121 3 36,141 S 66§ 65,608
Contributon of cquipment - General Fund 151
Contributgon of cquipment - Orange County Grear Park 84
l'otal T'ransfers - Internal Service Funds S 301

‘I'ransfers provided funding for the development of the OCGP, other capital projects, as well as capital
acquisitions and debt service. Transfers are used to: 1) move revenues from the fund that statute or
budget requires to collect them, to the fund that statue or budget requires to expend them, 2) move
receipts restricted from debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt setvice fund as
debt service payments become due, and 3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to
finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorization.
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D. Leases

Operating Revenue Lease
The City has various operating lease rental agreements producing annual rental revenue, which are
described as follows:

Itvine Redevelopment Agency

‘The Agency 1s lessor in an operating lease with Fl T'oro Farms, LLC, for the use of approximately 19.2
acres of farming land for the purpose of cultivating, irrigation, raising and harvesting of strawberry and
vegetable crops. The lease 1s a one-year lease beginning August 2007, the second amendment to the
lease extended the lease term to June 2010, with the option to extend the lease for two onc-year
periods. The base monthly rent is $4,327. Rental revenue at June 30, 2009, was $61,536. The Agency
expects to receive the following future minimum lease payment (in thousands):

Fiscal Year
Fnding June 30 Annual Rent
2010 $ 52

Orange County Great Park

The Orange County Great Park (OCGP) fund receives revenue for three operating leases for sites
within the former MCAS El Toro. The first lease 1s with All Star Services Corporation for recreational
vehicle storage. The original lease was a five-month lease beginning in July 2005. In January 2009, the
City entered 1mnto its sixth amendment of the lease, extending the lease termination date to January 31,
2009, and the base monthly rent 1s $146,760. Rental revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009,
was $1,803,319.

Tierra Verde Industries entered mnto a lease beginning in May 2006 and terminating May 2010. The
lease 1s for two parcels within the OCGP, the first parcel 1s approximately 60 acres of land for green
waste recycling, rent is paid quarterly in advance at §$72,119 per quarter. The rent for parcel one is
adjusted at the end of each lease year and shall be increased by the percentage increase in the consumer
price index during the lease year. Parcel two, is for an office and warehouse building in the OCGP,
used for general office, light maintenance and manufacturing. Rent for the office and warehouse
building is 35,500 due monthly. The lessee also pays additional rent for Green Waste Host Fees at
$0.60 per ton. Rental revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, for patcel one and two was
$354,475 and Green Waste Host Fees was $113,423.

The final lease in the OCGP fund 1s with El Toro Farms, LLC, for the use of approximately 65.8 acres
of farming land for the purpose of cultivating, irtigation, raising and harvesting of strawbetry and
vegetable crops. The original lease was a one-year lease beginning in July 2005. In July 2009, the City
entered into its fourth amendment to the lease, extending the lease termination date to June 30, 2010,
and reducing the acres usage to approximately 35.4 acres. The base monthly rent is $7,965. Rental
revenue at June 30, 2009, was $238,720.
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The future minimum rental revenue to be received from the aforementioned operating leascs, as of

June 30, 2009, 1s as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year
Hnding June 30 Annual Rent

2010 $ 1,448

General Fund

The City has ongoing operating lease agreements for farming, retail space, right of way, facilities, and
cell sites which expire at various dates through 2031. Rental revenue reported by the operating lease
agreements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, amounted to $404,387. The future minimum rental
revenuc to be received from the aforementioned operating leases, as of June 30, 2009, 1s as follows (in
thousands):

Fiscal Year
Ending Junc 30 Annual Rent

2010 h) 607
2011 398
2012 255
2013 254
2014 257

2015-2019 827

2020-2024 801

2025-2029 650

2030-2031 143

$ 4,192

Other Governmental Funds

The City 1s lessor in an operating lease with Irvine Roller Hockey Facilities, LLC and its successor-in-
interest HBP Realty LLC. The lease was a ten-year lease beginning in July 1996, containing five
successive options to extend the term of the lease for five years cach. Annual rent under the initial ten
year leasc was a fixed minimum of $60,000. The first option to extend the term of the lease was
accepted, effective July 2006. Annual rent under the renewal option 1s a fixed mimimum of §73,800
plus 3.5% of the facility’s annual gross sales when that amount is in excess of the fixed minimum.

Rental revenue at June 30, 2009 was $73,800. The City expects to receive the following future
minimum lease payments (in thousands):

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30 Annual Rent
2010 $ 74
2011 74

¥ 148
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Operating Lease Commitments

Irvine Redevelopment Agency

The Agency has an ongoing commitment under a multi-tenant operating lease agreement with
Heritage Fields El ‘l'oro, LLC. 'The lease 1s a five-year operating lease beginning April 2006, Rental
expenditures at June 30, 2009, were $130,258. The City is obligated to pay the following future
minimum lease payments (in thousands):

Fiscal Year
Inding June 30 Annual Rent
2010 $ 133
2011 112

$ 245

Orange County Great Park

‘The OCGP has an ongoing commitment under a multi-tenant operating leasc agreement with Heritage
Fields El Toro, LLC. The lease is a five-year operating lease beginning April 2006. Rental
expenditures at June 30, 2009, were $166,065. The City 1s obligated to pay the following future
minimum lease payments (in thousands):

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Annual Rent
2010 $ 169
2011 143

$ 312

Capital Leases
Total assets acquired through capital leases at June 30, 2009 were as follows (in thousands):

Governmental Activitics

Machinery and equipment $ 3,062
Less: Accumulated depreciation 825
T'otal $ 2=237

The City entered into a lease agreement with Key Equipment Finance Corporation in April 2006 for
mail room equipment at a cost of §44,546. The lease meets the capitalization policy and has been
recorded as an asset of the Equipment and Services Internal Service Fund. The interest rate on the
lease 1s 7.73%. The term of the lease 1s three years. The remaining balance was paid in full during fiscal
year 2008-09.

The City entered into a lease agreement with Ford Motor Credit Corporation in January 2006 for

patrol cars at a cost of $231,917. The lease meets the capitalization policy and the vehicles have been
recorded as assets of the Equipment and Services Internal Service Fund. The interest rate on the lease
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is 5.0%. 'The term of the lease is three years. The remaining balance was paid in full during fiscal year

2008-09.

The City entered into a lease agreement with Ford Motor Credit Corporation in April 2006 for patrol
cars at a cost of $185,603. The lease meets the capitalization policy and the vehicles have been
recorded as assets of the Equipment and Services Internal Service Fund. The interest rate on the lease
18 5.25%. The term of the lease 1s three years. The remaining balance was paid in full during fiscal year
2008-09.

In February 2008, the City entered into a lease agreement with ['ord Motor Credit for patrol cars at a
cost of $536,204. The lease meets the capitalization policy and the vehicles have been recorded as
assets of the Equipment and Services Internal Service Fund. The interest rate on the lease is 4.15%.
The tetm of the lease 18 three years. Future minimum payments relating to the lease are as follows (in
thousands):

Tiscal Year Internal Service und
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2010 $ 180 % 11 $ 191
2011 141 3 144

S o0 s 1405 3%

The City entered into a lease agreement with Ford Motor Credit Company in June 2009 for sixteen
patrol cars at a cost of $380,299. The lease meets the capitalization policy and the vehicles have been
recorded as asscts of the Equipment and Services Internal Service Fund. The interest rate on the lease
1s 4.80%. The term of the lease is three years. Payments are due quarterly under the terms of the
lease. Future minimum payments relating to the lease are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Internal Service Fund
Linding June 30 Principal Interest Total
2010 $ 112§ 15 $ 127
2011 117 9 126
2012 123 4 127
$ 352 % 28 % 380

E. Long-term debt

Lease Revenue Bonds Payable

I.ease Revenue Bonds, which were issued by the Irvine Public Facilities and Infrastructure Authority,
consist of two separate bond issues; Series 1985 and Series 1987. The $90,400,000 Series 1985 lease
revenue bonds were 1ssued on November 19, 1985, The bonds contain a variable rate of interest and
mature from November 1, 1991 to November 1, 2010, per a prescribed redemption schedule of semi-
annual principal and monthly interest payments. The $6,375,000 Series 1987 lease revenue bonds were
issued on April 30, 1987, as parity bonds to the original Series 1985 issue. The Series 1987 bonds also
contain a variable rate of intetest and mature on the same dates as the Setries 1985 issue; from

75



City of Irvine
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Continued)

IV. Detailed notes on all funds (continued)

November 1, 1991 to November 1, 2010, per a prescribed redemption schedule of semi-annual
principal and monthly interest payments. These bond issues were for the purpose of financing the site
acquisition and construction of a new civic center, a childcare center, and other capital improvements
within the City.

Both the Series 1985 and Series 1987 bonds are subject to purchase on demand of the holder at a price
equal to principal plus accrued interest, on seven days notice and delivery of the Certificate to the
Paying Agent. The Remarketing Agent is authorized to sell the repurchased bonds at a price equal to
the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the purchase date. The bond indentures provide
for various interest rate modes that can be selected by the City, provided that 45 days notice is given to
the bondholders. Accordingly, tender dates and the requirements thereof vary with the mode selected.
It is anticipated that the bonds will continue to be repriced on a weekly mode. The Authority's bonds
are scecured by an irrevocable Letter of Credit (LOC) issued by the State Street Bank and Trust
Company, rated Aa2 by Moody's. The trustee is entitled to draw an amount sufficient to pay the
ptrincipal plus accrued interest for the bonds delivered to the trustee. The LOC for both issues (Series
1985 and Series 1987) is valid untl November 1, 2010. The City agrees to pay the Bank a
nonrefundable letter of credit fee, which 1s based on a percentage of the total amount available under
the LOC. The Lease Revenue bonds are not subject to federal arbitrage regulations.

Both Secrics 1985 and Serics 1987 contain a variable rate of interest, which re-prices wecekly. For
disclosure purposes, the current rate at June 30, 2009 of 1.21% was utilized for both issues. Principal
and interest amounts paid for the year ended June 30, 2009, were $6,990,000 and $2066,286
respectively. The actual gross cost of debt (interest, 1.21%; remarketing agent, 0.06%; and letter of
credit fees, 0.24%) incutred for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, was 1.51%.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for lease revenue bonds are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Scries 1985 Bonds Scrics 1987 Bonds
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2010 7,000 412 7,412 525 30 355
2011 7,700 216 7,916 560 16 576
$ 14,700 § 628 § 15,328  § 1085 § 16§ 1,131
Long-Term Note

On May 2, 2007, the Agency received a $1,350,000 HELP (Housing Enabled by Local Pattnership)
loan from the California Housing Finance Agency. ‘lhe proceeds of the loan were used to lend
monies to the City for the purpose of developing an affordable housing rental project. The loan bears
simple interest at a rate of 3.5% per annum. The term of the loan is 10 years. Payment of principal

and interest on the loan is deferred until May 2, 2017. At June 30, 2009, principal and interest due wete
$1,444,500.
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F. Changes in long-term liabilities

FFor the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, changes in long-term liabilities are as follows (in thousands):

Balance Balance Long- Due Within
June 30, 2008 TIncreases  Decreases  June 30, 2009 Term One Year

Lease Revenue Bonds:

Series 1985 matures in 2010 S 21200 % - S 6500 S 14700 S 7,700 S 7,000
Series 1987 matures in 2010 1,575 - 490 1,085 560 525
Total Lease Revenue Bonds 22775 - 6,990 15,785 8,260 7525
Other Debt:
Compensated abscences 9,182 1,966 1,014 10,134 9,017 1,117
Claims pavable 7,722 1,898 2,117 7,503 5,002 2501
Capital lease obligation 631 352 310 673 381 292
Long-term note 1397 48 - 1,445 1,445 -
Total Other Debt: 18,032 4,264 3,441 19,755 15,845 3910
Total Long-Term Liabilities S 41707 § 4,264 S 10431 S 353540 S 24105 S 11435

G. Special assessment debt with no city commitment

Special tax and assessment debt with no city commitment

The Ciry 1ssued special tax and assessment bonds, on behalf of the property owners, pursuant to the
Improvement Bond Act of 1915 and the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, to finance the
acquisition and construction of certain infrastructure improvements within the assessment districts and
community facilities districts. The City acts as an agent for those paying special tax and assessments
and remits the amounts collected to the bondholders of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of
1982 and Improvement Bond Act of 1915 issues.

The bonds are not general obligations of the City, but arc limited obligations, payable solely from
special tax and assessments. The City has no obligation beyond the balances 1n the designated agency
funds. If delinquencies occur beyond the amounts held in the resetve funds created from the bond
proceeds, the City has no duty to pay the delinquency out of the available funds of the City. Neither
the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the City, or the State of California, or any political
subdivision thereof, is pledged to the payment of these bonds
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Non-committal debt amounts issued and outstanding at Junce 30, 2009, arc as follows (in thousands):

Bonds Bonds

Variable Rate Issues: Issued Outstandmg

07-22 Stonegate $ 40,000 $ 40,000
05-21 Orchard Hills 800,000 80,000
(04-20 Portola Springs 115,000 78,248
03-19 Notthern Sphere 121,600 50,072
00-18 Shady Canyon/'l'urtle Ridge/Quail Hill 84,800 8,683
85-7 Irvine Spectrum 51,500 50,300
87-8 Spectrum 5 74,700 15,750
89-10 Westpark 43,640 23,195
93-14 Spectrum 6 & 7 72,400 54,537
94-13 Oak Creek 61,600 22,287
94-15 Westpark 11 32,700 12,652
97-16 Northwest Irvine 60,000 27,695
97-17 Lower Peters Canyon Fast 95,000 32,754
Total Variable Ratc Issucs 932,940 496,173

-Continued-
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Non-committal debt amounts issucd and outstanding at June 30, 2009, arc as follows (in thousands):

Bonds Bonds

Fixed Rate Issues: Issued Outstanding

00-18 Shady Canyon/Turtle Ridge/Quail Hill 46,755 39,370
00-18 Shady Canyon/'T'urtle Ridge/Quail Hill 27,220 23325
00-18 Shady Canyon/Turtle Ridge/Quail Hill 18,040 15,860
00-18 Shady Canyon/Turtle Ridge/Quail 1Till 6,705 5,985
04-20 Pottola Springs 37,885 36,920
03-19 Notthern Sphere 6,795 6,100
03-19 Northern Sphete 28,890 26,730
03-19 Northern Sphere 8,885 8,195
03-19 Northern Sphere 15,725 14,860
03-19 Notthern Sphete 17,875 17,380
87-8 Spectrum 5 5,695 2,785
87-8 Spectrum 5 10,825 7405
87-8 Spectrum 5 17,300 5215
87-8 Spectrum 5 11,015 8,190
93-14 Spectrum 6 & 7 1,905 1,630
93-14 Spectrum 6 & 7 875 755
93-14 Spectrum 6 & 7 4475 4,020
93-14 Spectrum 6 & 7 2,120 1,975
93-14 Spectrum 6 & 7 1,335 1,295
97-16 Northwest Trvine 1,320 1,105
97-17 Lower Peters Canyon Fast 3,040 2,600
97-17 Lower Peters Canyon Fast 1,650 1,455
IPFIA Revenue Bonds, Setries A 66,240 35,670
991 Reassessment District 15,465 2,795
99.2 Reassessment Districe 50,775 34,233
IPFIA Revenue Bonds, Series B 57575 44,740
01-1 Reassessment District 8,755 7,165
01-2 Reassessment District 48814 39,042
IPFIA Revenue Bonds, Seties C 91,175 73,345
03-1 Reasscssment Districe 9,665 8,098
03-2 Reassessment District 81,519 66,503
CFD 2005-2 Columbus Grove 24,375 23,600
Total Fixed Rate Issues 730,688 568,346
Total All Issues $ 1,663,628 $ 1,064,519
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H. Fund equity reservations, designations, and restricted net assets

The City has established reservations of fund equity to segregate fund balances that are not available
for expenditure or which are legally segregated for a specific future use. The City Council has also
established designations of unreserved fund balances to indicate tentative plans for uses of financial
resources 1n a future period.

Reservations
The City’s fund equity reservations at June 30, 2009, are presented in the table below (in thousands)
followed by explanations as to the nature and purpose of each reservation.

Capital Other
Orange Improve- Assess- Govern-

General County ment ment mental

Fund Great Park  Projects Districts Funds
Encumbrances $ 380 % - % - - % -
Deposits 145 - - - -
Prepaid costs - 306 - - -
Advances to other funds 1,185 134,000 - - 1,350
Assct Forfeiture funds 391 - - - -
Infrastructure & rehabilitation 7320 - - - -
Debt service - - - - 5,449

Infrastructure improvements

in asscssment districts - - - 169,501 -
Capital improvement projects - - 9,320 - -
Senior Services program - - - - 469
Total Reserved $ 9427 % 134306 % 9320 § 169501 § 7,268

Reserved for Hncumbrances - This reserve is maintained to indicate commitments related to
unperformed contracts for goods or services at fiscal year end, and represent the estimated amount of
expenditures expected to result when such contracts are completed.

Reserved for Deposits - These amounts represent security deposits for the City’s share of joint
transportation projects with other government agencies. These funds will not be available for current
expenditures until the related projects are complete.

Reserved for Prepaid Costs - This reserve represents the expenditures that were paid in advance and
will be realized when the corresponding services and goods are received.

Reserved for Advances to Other ['unds - This resetve represents amounts of various financing and
reimbursement agreements that ate not curtently available resources.

Reserved for Asset Forfeiture Funds - These funds are legally restricted by federal and state guidelines
to be spent for law enforcement purposcs, supplementing and not supplanting other public safety
funding,.
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Reserved for Infrastructure & Rehabilitation - ‘The amount represents the funding for capital
improvement approved by the City Council and currently in process.

Reserved for Debt Service - This amount represents all amounts accumulated in the debt service funds
to be used for future debt service, including amounts held in accordance with bond indentures or
similar covenants.

Reserved for Infrastructure Improvements in Assessment Districts - 'This reserve represents amounts
established to account for the expenditures of bond construction proceeds used to fund capital
improvement projects in the various assessment districts.

Reserved for Capital Improvement Projects - This reserve represents amounts established to account
for expenditutes for the construction and rehabilitation of circulation improvements and railroad grade
scparation projects from revenues that are restricted by bond covenants and enabling legislation.

Reserved for Senior Services Programs - This reserve represents nonexpendable resources invested to
produce earnings that may be used to support the City’s adult day health services and senior citizen
centers.
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Designations

The City’s designations at June 30, 2009, are presented in the table below (in thousands) followed by
explanations as to the nature and purpose of each designation.

Irvine Other
Trvine Ormange Redevelop-  Govan-
General Business County ment mental
Fund Complex Great Park Fund Funds

Asset Management $ 69900 % - % - % -3 -
Infrastructute & rehahilitation 3,378 - - - -
Tlducation partnership 1,140 - - - -
Compensated absences 2,285 - - - -
Contingency 21,045 - - - -
Orange County Great Park - - 126,364 - -
Development services 427 - - - -
Council reallocation 1,312 - - - -
Community Services 1,273 - - - -
lrvine Busmess Complex - 64,763 - - -
Senior Services program - - - - 170
Streer and road improvements - - - - 48,854
Lighting, landscape, and park maintenance - - - - 3,436
Park capital outlays - - - - 31,560
Park development - - - - 52,429
Traffic signal exactions - - - - 3,179
Affordable housing program - - - - 5,153
Irvine Redevelopment - - - 757 -
Clean Air Act program - - - - 1,312
Special programs - - - - 1,206

Total Designated $ 100,769 $ 64763 $ 126364 % 757 $ 147,299

Designated for Asset Management - 'T'his designated amount 1s available to the City Council as a long-
term funding source for infrastructure rehabilitation and other projects deemed appropriate by the City
Council, once sufficient funds have accumulated as a teserve for the City's lease revenue bond
obligations.

Designated for Infrastructure & Rehabilitation - The City Council designated this amount of fund
balance to provide funding for current and long-term major rchabilitation of the City's infrastructure.

Designated for Iducation Partnership - The City Council designated this amount of fund balance to
provide funding for enhancements or additions to programs and activities for students attending

public schools located within the City’s boundaries.

Designated for Compensated Absences - This amount is designated for funding vacation and sick
leave conversion benefits payable upon terminadon.
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Designated for Contingency - Per City Council policy, a goal of 15% with a minimum rescerve of 3% of
the General Fund operating budget is designated for future economic uncertainties to fund critical City
service delivery functions during times of extreme financial conditions.

Designated for Orange County Great Park - This fund balance is designated for land-use planning and
mmplementaton of the development plan for the OCGP on the site of the former MCAS EIl Toro.

Designated for Development Services - ‘This amount is designated for development costs such as
those related to general plan amendments, zone changes, master plans, development agreements,
tentative tract and parcel maps and sign programs.

Designated for Council Reallocation - This amount is designated for reallocation by the City Council
for fiscal year 2009-10 priorites.

Designated for Community Services - This fund balance is designated for community services

programs supported by donations, special programs, and events.

Designated for Irvine Business Complex - This fund balance 1s designated to provide for planned new
capital and transportation management projects within the Irvine Business Complex area and 1s funded
by revenues generated by development within the Irvine Business Complex.

Designated for Senior Services Programs - This amount is designated for purposes that support the

City’s adult day health services and senior citizens programs.

Designated for Street and Road Improvements - These funds are designated for specific street related
purposcs such as new construction, rchabilitation and maintenance, as well as traffic congestion relief
plans.

Designated for Lighting, Iandscape, and Park Maintenance - Lhese funds are designated for the
expenditures of special assessments generated by voter approval of the City’s lighting, and park

maintenance assessment 1 April 2002.

Designated for Park Capital Qutlays - This fund balance 1s designated to provide for expenditures of
developer fees received under the Quimby Act for the purposes of providing or improving recreational
facilitics 1n the arca of proposed developer improvements.

Designated for Park Development - This fund balance is designated to fund various construction and
rehabilitation projects for parks, and related facilities and landscaping in accordance with grant and
development agreements.

Decsignated for ‘I'raffic Signal Exactions - "Lhis fund balance 1s designated to provide for expenditures

of developer fees collected for future capital improvements projects from which they will recerve direct
benefit.
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Decsignated for Affordable Housing Programs - 'This fund balance 1s designated to provide for the
accumulation of 20% of tax increment set aside for affordable housing uses and the activities of Irvine
Community Iand Trust to assist the City in securing low income housing for its residents.

Designated for [rvine Redevelopment - This fund balance is designated to provide for the activities of
the Irvine Redevelopment Agency to administer the redevelopment project area.

Designated for Clean Air Act Program - 'LThis fund balance 1s designated to provide for the City’s
programs implementing AB 2766, the California Clean Air Act of 1988, which mandates that the fees
collected fund expenditures for the reduction of air pollution from motor vehicles.

Designated for Special Programs - The City Council designated these funds to support a variety of
grant funded special programs as designated by law, the grant terms, or administrative regulations,

Restricted Net Assets
Restrictions imposed by constitutional provisions, legislation or mutual agreement with third parties

the City’s Net Assets at June 30, 2009, are summarized below (in thousands).

Net assets restricted for:

Debt service $ 5449
Assessment district infrastructure improvements 169,501
Capital improvement projects 139,126
Streets and transportation Improvement projects 50,292
Lighting, landscape, and patk maintenance 3,436
Affordable housing program 5153
Redevelopment project areas 757
Public Safety 391
Clean Air Act program 1,312
Senior Services programs:
Ixpendable 170
Nonexpendable 469
‘Total Restricted Net Assets $ 376,056

Restricted for Debr Service - 'Lhis restriction represents amounts accumulated m the debt service
funds to be used for future debt service, including amounts held in accordance with bond indentures
ot similar covenants.

Restricted for Assessment Districts Infrastructure Improvements - This restriction represents amounts
established to account for the expenditures of bond construction proceeds used to fund capital
improvement projects in the various assessment districts.

Restricted for Capital Improvement Projects - This testriction tepresents amounts established to
account for expenditures for the construction and rehabilitation of circulation improvements and
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1V. Detailed notes on all funds (continued)

railroad grade separation projects from revenues that are restricted by bond covenants and cnabling
legislation.

Restricted for Streets and Transportation Improvement Projects - This restriction represents amounts
used to provide for planned new streets and transportation management projects within the City.

Restricted for Lighting, Landscape, and Park Maintenance - These funds are restricted for the
expenditures of special assessments generated by voter approval of the City’s lighting, landscape, and
park maintenance assessment in April 2002.

Restricted for Affordable Housing Program — These funds are restricted for the activities of the City in
securing low income housing for its residents.

Restricted for Redevelopment Project Arcas — ‘The restriction represents amounts to account for
operational and capital expenditures associated with the redevelopment project area and plan for the
non-aviation reuse of the former MCAS Il Toro base property.

Restricted for Public Safety - These funds are restricted for law enforcement purposes, supplementing
and not supplanting other public safety funding.

Restricted for Clean Air Act Program - This restriction represents amounts used to provide for the
City’s programs implementing AB 27606, the California Clean Air Act of 1988, which mandates that the

fees collected fund expenditures for the reduction of air pollution from motor vehicles.

Restricted for Senior Services ’rograms - These amounts are restricted for putposes that support the
City’s permancnt fund activitics to provide adult day health services, and additional support for senior
citizens centers and programs. /A portion of the restricted fund balance is non-expendable in
accordance with the contractual agreement to establish the fund.
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IV. Detailed notes on all funds (continued)
Pension and Employee Benefit Trust Fund Restrictions

Pension T'rust Funds net assets at December 31, 2008, contain the following restricted amounts (in
thousands):

Defined Benefit Pension Benefits $ 15,445
Defined Contribudon Pension Benefits 9,069
T'otal Pension and Employee Benefit Trust Funds - Net Assets $ 24514
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V. Other information
A. Risk management

The City uses a combination of msured and self-insured programs to finance its property and casualty
risk. The City is self-insured for workers” compensation, automotive and general liability risks. Tixcess
liability coverage above $350,000 per occurrence and a $2,000,000 aggregate is provided through a risk-
sharing pool, the California Insurance Pool Authority (CIPA). CIPA also purchases excess liability
coverage up to a $42,000,000 limit for the pool. Excess workers’ compensation coverage above
$300,000 per occutrence and up to $3,000,000 is provided through the use of CIPA. Property and
employment practices lability risk are financed through msurance contracts and have various limits
and deductibles.

The City is a member of CIPA in order to jointly purchase insurance coverage and to share costs for
professional risk management, claim administration, and group purchasing of insurance products with
ten other Orange County citics. Premiums paid during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, were
$1,902,691. CIPA uses independent actuaries and underwriters to determine premiums and help set
msurance limits and deductible levels. The pool 1s managed by an independent general manager and
contracted legal advisers. 1'wo mternal subcommittees ate made up of City members to provide
direction on underwriting and claims activities. The Governing Board of CIPA is comprised of one
member from each participating City and is responsible for the selection of the independent general
managet, legal counsel and clecting subcommittee members.

The government retains a risk of loss, due to the fact that actual losses may exceed estimated claims or
coverage amounts. Settled claims have not exceeded any of the City's coverage amounts in any of the
last three fiscal years and there were no reductions in the City's coverage during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2009. All self-insurance activity is teported in the City's Self-Tnsurance Internal Service [Fund.

At June 30, 2009, $7,502,697 had been accrued for general liability and workers' compensation claims
in the fund. This amount represents the estimated outstanding losses including case reserves, the
development on know claims and incurred but not reported claims based upon past experience,
modified for current twrends and information, including all claims adjustment expenses. The liabilities
included in the self-insurance fund are based on the results of an actuarial review performed during the
fiscal year 2008-09. Tt is the City's policy to assess its tisk exposure petiodically.

Changes 1n the aggregate liability for claims since July 1, 2007, resulted in the following (in thousands):

Workers' General
Compensation Liability Total
Liability Balance, July 1, 2007 $ 5823 $ 2274 $ 8,097
Claims and changes in estmates 340 1,053 1,393
Claim payments during 2007-2008 (1,043) (725) (1,768)
Liability Balance, June 30, 2008 5,120 2,602 7,722
Claims and changes in estimates 2,062 (164 1,898
Claim payments during 2008-2009 {1,186) (931) (2,117)
Liability Balance, june 30, 2009 $ 5,996 $ 1,507 $ 7,503
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V. Other information (continued)
B. Contingent liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencics. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a hability of the
applicable funds. ‘The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be
determined at this time, although the government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The City is defendant and plaintift i several pending lawsuits arising out of matters incidental to the
operation of the City. Although the outcome of these lawsuits cannot be determined at present,
management estimates that any potential claims against the City not covered by insurance resulting
from such litigation will not materially affect the City’s financial condition.

C. Other post employment benefits

Voluntary Employees’ Beneficiary Association

Plan Description The Voluntary mployees’ Beneficiary Association (VIIBA) know as “Premium
Reimbursement Plan of the Irvine Employees Benefit Trust” is a defined contribution healtheare plan.
The Plan was established by the Irvine Police Association (IPA), and later joined by the Irvine City
Employees Association (ICEA), and Association of Supetvisory and Administrative Personnel
(ASAP). Scparate accounts arc maintained under the trust agreement for the three member groups, but
the amounts administrated are pooled within the employee group. Eligible retirees receive a monthly
reimbursement of health nsurance premiums under the plan in an amount to be determined by the
Boatd of Trustees based on years of service and contribution. Eligibility requitres five years of active
service and five years of mandatory contributions to the plan. The Plan 1s administered by Delta
Health Systems under the provisions of IRS Code Section 501(c) (9).

Funding Policy Participants and the City are required to contribute to the plan at a percentage of base
pay pet the various employee associations’ Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). The contribution
requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be amended by the MOU with the
various emplovee associations. At June 30, 2009, employer contributions were $802,263 and
participant contributions were $791,932. Copies of the MOU may be obtained from City Hall.

Retirement Health Savings

Plan Description The City provides post retirement medical benefits to management and non-
represented employees in the form of contributions to a defined contribution Retiree Health Savings
Plan (RHS). Employer contribution rates to the Plan are determined by negotiation between the City
and the employee association and detailed along with other wage and benefit issues in MOU between
those entities. Copies of the MOU may be obtained from City Hall.

Funding Policy The City 1s required to contribute 2% or 3% of base salary depending on the employee
assoctation’s MOU. At June 30, 2009, the City contributed $277,116 to the RHS plan. The Plan is
administered by Vantagecare Retiree Health Savings Plan.
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Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)

Plan Description 'The City provides that retitees may elect to continue their healthcare insurance
benefits through the City. This benefit coverage 1s determined by negotiation between the City and
the employee associations and detailed along with other wage and benefit issues in MOU between
those entities. Copies of the MOUs may be obtained from City Hall. Employees who have attained
age 50 and completed at least five vears of service with the City, or who have attained age 60 regardless
of yecars of scrvice, or who become cligible for long-term disability benefits and have coverage
immediately prior to retirement, are cligible to tetite and participate in the City’s healthcare plans by
paying the full premiums identical to those charged for the City’s active employees. As of June 30,
2009, there were 108 retired employees receiving healthcare benefits. A separate financial statement 1s
not issued.

Funding Policy The tetited plan members receiving benefits make contributions at the premium rates
identical to those charged for the City’s active employees. Employers are now required under GASB
accounting principles to account for and report the annual cost of OPEB and accrue any outstanding
obligations and commitments in essentially the same manner as they do for pensions.

The annual OPEB actuarial cost does not require that the unfunded liabilities actually be funded, only
that employers account for the unfunded accrued lability and compliance in meeting the Annual
Required Conttibution (ARC). ‘The ARC is the sum of the present value of future benefits being
earned by current employees plus amortization of benefits already earned by current and former
employees but not yet provided for. The amortization of benefits previously earned (unfunded
actuarial liabilities) 1s being amortized over a period of thirty years.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation The City’s annual OPHEB cost (expense) $486,108, 1s
calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuanally
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, 1s projected to cover normal costs each year and
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) not to exceed a closed thirty years
period. The following table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB cost for the vear:

June 30, 2009
Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 486,108
Contributions made (267,120)
Increase in net OPED obligation 218,988
Net OPLB obligation - beginning of year -
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 218,988
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The percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for the
tiscal year 2008-09 is as follows (in thousands):

Percentage of

Annual
Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Fiscal Year OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/2009 $ 486 55% $ 219

Funded Status and Funding Progress As of July 1, 2008, the date of the latest actuarial valuation, there
were 087 active employees and 108 retirees. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $3,868,637
as of June 30, 2009. The City is currently funding the program on a pay-as-you-go basis. The Net
Pension Obligation (NPO) 1s accrued in the amount of $218,988 as part of the labilities in the
Statement of Net Assets.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. TIixamples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the emplover are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates
are madc about the future. The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the Notes to the Financial Statements, presents multi-year trend information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based
on the substantive plan and include the types of benefits provided at the time of cach valuation. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

The actuarial cost method used for determining the benefit obligations is the Projected Unit Credit
method. The actuarial assumptions included an annual health care cost trend rate of 8% imitially,
reduced 1% per year to an ultimate rate of 5% per vear beginning in 2011.

D. Employee retitement systems and pension plans

City of Irvine Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description Prior to February 2, 2002, the City provided pension benefits for all of its sworn
employees through the City of Irvine Defined Benefit Pension Plan. On February 2, 2002, the City
contracted with the California Public Employees’ Retirement system (CalPERS) to provide retirement
benefits for sworn employees. The City of Lrvine Defined Benefit Pension Plan is a single-employer
defined benefit pension plan established by City resolution and administered in accordance with the
provisions of the Plan document adopted on April 1, 1975, and subsequently restated on January 1,
1984, July 1, 1996, and January 1, 2004. The Plan i1s now closed to new participants. An actuarial
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valuation 1s performed bi-annually to determine the actuarial implication of the Plan’s funding policy.
The last actuarial valuation date was January 1, 2008. ‘The City issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the City of Irvine
Defined Benefit Pension Plan. Copies of the annual financial report may be obtained from City Hall.

Funding Policy The City makes the contributions requited of City employees on their behalf and for
their accounts. The City contributes at an actuarially determined rate or higher; the current rate is
57.33% of annual covered payroll, which equals the actuarial determined rate of 57.33%. 'The
contribution requirements of Plan Members and the City are established and may be amended by City
resoluton.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation For 2008, the City's annual required contributions
of $156,819 was less than the City's actual contributions, which totaled $228,424. The method of
valuation used to calculate the costs of the Plan is the aggregate cost method. Under this method there
1s no unfunded actuarial liability and all costs including gains and losses are funded as a percentage of

participants’ future salaries. The components of the annual pension cost for the calendar year ended
Dccember 31, 2008, arc as follows:

Annual required contributdon $ 156,819
Interest on net pension obligation (107,351)
Adjustment to annual required contribution 231,722

Annual pension cost 280,990
Actuatial adjustment 268,639
Contributions made 228 424
Increase (decreasc) in net pension obligation 778,053
Net pension obligaton (asset) - beginning of vear 2,244,104)
Net pension obligaton (asset) - end of year $ (1,466,051)

Per the plan document, this net pension asset (negative obligation) is testricted for purposes solely
related to the City’s Defined Benefit Pension Plan. Contributions to date exceed the required actuarial
net pension obligation, but are not available to pay current or future City expenditures.

The costs of the Plan are derived by making certain specific assumptions as to interest and mortality
rates, which are assumed to hold for years into the future. Since actual experience may differ somewhat
from the assumptions, the costs determined by the valuation must be regarded as estimates of the true
costs of the Plan.
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Provided below is the three-year trend information for the City’s Defined Benefit Pension Plan (in
thousands):

Annual Penston Pcrcentage of Net Pension
T'iscal Year Cost (APC) APC Conttibuted Obligation (Asset)
12/31/2006 $ 327 100% $ (2,226)
12/31/2007 $ 212 100% $ (2,244
12/31/2008 $ 281 100% $ (1,4060)

The actuarial assumptions included a 5.5% investment rate of return, 5.5% inflation rate, annual salary
mncreases of 5% and post-retirement benefit increases of 2%. The actuarial method for valuing assets
1s market value plus actuarial contribution and interest.

I'unded Status and I'unding Progress As of January 1, 2008, the most tecent actuarial valuation date,
the Plan was 98.54% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $19,070,867, and the
actuarial value of assets was §18,792,094, resulting in Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) of
$278,773. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the Plan) was §273,538,
and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 101.8%. The Schedule of Funding Progress,
presented as Required Supplementary Information following the Notes to the Basic Financial
Statements, presents multi-year trend information whether the actuarial value of plan assets are
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrual liability for benefits.

City of Irvine Defined Contribution Pension Plan

Plan Description The City provides pension benefits through the City of Irvine Defined Contribution
Pension Plan for thosce full time non-sworn employees who clected not to participate in CalPERS in
2003. The City is responsible for the administration of the Plan with the City Council having the
authority to amend or terminate contribution provisions. Copies of the annual financial report may be
obtained from City Hall. Retirement benefits depend on amounts contributed plus investment
earnings. Unul July 2004, non-sworn full time employees were eligible to participate from the date of
employment. The Plan is now closed to new participants. Employer and employee contribution rates
to the Plan are determined by negotiation between the City and the employee associations and detailed
along with other wage and benefit 1ssues in MOU between those entities. Copies of MOU may be
obtained from City Hall.

Funding Policy Effective July 1, 2004, eligible participants were required to contribute 4% of their base
compensation into the Plan. Pursuant to agreements with the City's employee associations, the City’s
contributions wete 15% of the participants' basic compensation for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2008. Plan participants have the right to 100% of their account balance upon their death, permanent
and total disability or upon attainment of normal retrement age 59.5 under the Plan. If employment
terminates prior to normal retirement age for reasons other than death, or permanent and total
disability, the participant will retain 50% vesting upon successful completion of the six month to one
year probationary petiod and 5% vesting for each calendar year in which the employee attains 1,000
hours of credited service until the completion of the fifth year when full vesting will occut.
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At December 31, 2008, the Plan had a membership of 119, consisting of 16 active members, 76
terminated and 27 non-employee or other members. All 119 members are fully vested in the Plan.
Total Plan assets were $9,240,891. Iiffective April 1996, the Plan became patticipant-directed.
Participants may direct investment of employer contributions and earnings in 1% increments among
twenty-three investment options with the third party administrator, Wachovia Bank. Employer
contributions to the Plan during the calendar year ended December 31, 2008 were $208,888 and
participant contributions were $55,705. On March 15, 2008, $210,778 was transferred to CalPERS.
For additional dectails concerning the transition to CalPERS, sce the note below related to
miscellaneous (non-sworn) employees.

CalPERS Defined Benefit Pension Plan for Sworn Employees

Plan Description The City’s sworn employees not in the City’s Defined Benefit Pension Plan are
cligible to participate in the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS), an agent
multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension plan. Initial participation was determined
during the employees’ ratification vote during October 2001. New employees are required to join
CalPIIRS. CalPIIRS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of living adjustments, and
death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. CalPERS acts as a common investment and
administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of California. Benefit provisions
and all other requirements are established by State statute and City ordinance. Copies of CalPERS’
annual financial report may be obtained from their exccutive office: 400 P Street, Sacramento,
California 95814.

Funding Policy Participants are required to contribute 9% of their annual covered salary. The City
makes the contributions required of City sworn employees on their behalf and for their accounts. The
City 1s required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The contribution requirements of plan
members and the City are established and may be amended by CalPERS. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration.

Annual Pension Cost For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the City’s annual pension cost of
$7,774,861 for CalPERS was equal to the City’s required and actual contributions. The required
contribution was determined by actuatial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method as
of June 30, 2006. The amortization method used 1s a level percentage of payroll. The actuarial
assumptions included: (a) a 7.75% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), (b)
projected salary increases that vary by age, length of service and type of employment from 3.25% to
13.15%, (c) a 3% inflation ratc, (d) a 3.25% payroll growth rate, and (¢) a merit scale varying by
duration of employment coupled with an assumed annual inflation component of 3% and an annual
production growth of 0.25%. Inital unfunded liabilities are amortized over a closed period that
depends on the Plan’s date of entry into CalPERS. Subsequent Plan amendments will be amortized as
a level percentage of pay over a closed 20-year period. GGains and losses that occur 1n the operation of
the Plan are amortized over a 30 year rolling period, which results in an amortization of about 6% of
unamortized gains and losses cach year. If the Plan’s accrued lability exceeds the actuarial value of
Plan assets, then the amortization payment on the total unfunded liability may not be lower than the
payment calculated over a 30-year amortization period.
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Provided below 1s the schedule of three-year trend information for the CalPERS Defined Benefit
Pension Plan for Sworn Employees (in thousands):

Percentage
Annual Pension of APC Net Pension
Fiscal Year Cost (APC) Conttibuted Obligation
6/30/2007 S 5,765 100% $ -
6/30/2008 S 6,710 100% $ -
6/30/2009 S 7,745 100% $ -

Funding Status and Funding Progress As of June 30, 2008, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the
Plan was 80.9% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $117,823,310 and the actuatial
value of assets was $95,371,234, resulting in an UAAIL of $22,452,076. The covered payroll (annual
payroll of active employees covered by the Plan) was §17,239,535, and the ratio of the UAAL to the
covered pavroll was 130.2%. The Schedule of Funding Progress is presented as Required
Supplementary Information following the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, presents multi-year
trend information whether the actuarial value of plan assets is mcreasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

CalPERS Defined Benefit Pension Plan for Miscellancous (Non-Sworn) Employees

Plan Description The City’s non-sworn employees not in the City’s Defined Contribution Pension
Plan are eligible to participate in the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS), an
agent multiple-cmployer public employee defined benefit pension plan. Initial participation was
determined during the employees’ ratification vote during November 2002. New employees are
required to join CalPHRS. CalPIIRS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of living
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaties. CalPERS acts as a common
mvestment and administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of California.
Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by State statute and City ordinance.
Copies of CalPERS’ annual financial report may be obtained from their exccutive office: 400 P Street,
Sacramento, California 95814.

Funding Policy Participants are required to contribute 8% of their annual covered salary. The City
contributes 2.552 % of the contribution required of miscellaneous employees on their behalf and for
their accounts. The City is also required to contribute additional amounts at an actuarially determined
rate. The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be
amended by CalPERS. The actuarial methods and assumptions used are those adopted by the
CalPERS Board of Administration.

Annual Pension Cost For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the City’s annual pension cost of
$10,213,813 for CalPTIRS was equal to the City’s required and actual contributed pension costs. The
required contribution was determined by actuarial valuation as of June 30, 20006, using the entry age
normal actuarial cost method. The amortization method used 1s a level percentage of payroll. The
actuarial assumptions included: (a) a 7.75% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses),
(b) projected salary increases that vary by age, length of scrvice and type of employment from 3.25%
to 14.45%, (c) a 3% inflation rate, (d) and a 3.25% payroll growth rate. Initial unfunded liabilities are
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amortized over a closed period that depends on the Plan’s date of entry into CalPERS. All changes in
liability due to Plan amendments, changes in actuarial assumptions, or methodology will be amortized
as a level percentage of pay over a 20 year period. GGains and losses that occur 1 the operation of the
Plan are amortized over a 30 year rolling period, which results in an amortization of about 6% of
unamortized gains and losses each year. If the Plan’s accrued lability exceeds the actuarial value of
Plan assets, then the amortization payment on the total unfunded lhability may not be lower than the
payment calculated over a 30 year period.

Provided below is the schedule of three-year trend information for the CalPLERS Defined Benefit
Pension Plan for Non-Sworn imployees (in thousands):

Percentage
Annual Pension of APC Nect Pension
Fiscal Year Cost (APC) Contribured Oblipation
6/30/2007 S 8,500 100% S -
6/30/2008 S 9,713 100% S -
6/30/2009 S 10,214 100% S

Funding Status and Funding Progress As of June 30, 2008, the most tecent actuarial valuation date, the
Plan was 74.7% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $177,192,852 and the actuatial
value of assets was $132,395,391, resulting in an UAAL of $44,797,461. The covered payroll (annual
payroll of active employees covered by the Plan) was $47,141,495, and the ratio of the UAAL to the
covered payroll was 95.0%. The Schedule of Funding Progress is presented as Required
Supplementary Information following the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, presents multi-year
trend information whether the actuarial value of plan asscts 1s increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Pubic Agency Retirement System Defined Contribution Plan

Plan Description The City’s part-time, seasonal and temporary employees that are ineligible for
another retirement plan are eligible to participate 1n the Public Agency Retirement Systems Trust
(PARS), pursuant to the requirements of 3121(6)(7)(F) of the Internal Revenue Code. Retirement
benefits depend on amounts contributed plus investment earnings. Copies of PAR’s annual financial
report may be obtained from their executive office: P.O. Box 1291, Newport Beach, California 92658.

Funding Policy Effecuve June 30, 2003, eligible participants are required to contribute 1.75% of their
base compensation into the Plan. The City shall contribute an amount equal to 5.75% of the base
salaty compensadon. Plan participants have the right to 100% of their account balance upon their
death, termination of employment, permanent and total disability, or upon attainment of normal
retirement age of 59.5 under the Plan.

Annual Pension Cost At December 31, 2008, the Plan had 560 membets. Total Plan assets were

$1,819,840. I'mployer and employee contributions to the Plan during the calendar year ended
Decembet 31, 2008, were §325,937.
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E. Permanent Fund

The City has one permanent fund which was established during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002.
The Senior Services Fund was created with a contribution received in conjunction with the Agreement
to Terminate the Irvine Senior Foundation/City of Irvine Distribution of Funds Agreement
(Agreement), approved by the City Council in March 2002. This Agreement directs the City to use the
mnterest income carned by mvestment of the nonexpendable portion to fund projects at specific senior
citizen and adult day health centers, and to usc other contributed amounts and their investment
earnings in the same manner as previously used by the Irvine Senior I'oundation.

The net assets of the fund include a nonexpendable amount of $469,404 which is reported as part of
Restricted Net Assets. Expendable donations and accrued interest of $169,259 are available for
expenditure and are reflected as Restricted Net Assets, Expendable. The amount of net depreciation
on investments available for expenditure at June 30, 2009, was $8,140. The City administers this fund
pursuant to its authority and duties under the Uniform Management of Institutional Funds Act,
section 18500 et. Seq.

F. Restatement

Fund Balance at July 1, 2008, has been restated to reflect the following changes (in thousands):

Balance at

July 1, 2008 Balance at

as Previously Fund July 1, 2008

Funds Reported Restatements as Adjusted
Orange County Great Park $ 280,706 b 199 b 280,905
Capital Improvement Projects 5,496 (375) 5,121
Assessment Districts 189,619 375 189,994
Fees and Exactions 8,148 2,074 6,074

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, additional information pertaining to fund balance and net
assets for the previous year became available. This information has necessitated certain changes to be
made to thosce balances previously reported for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, to better conform
with GAAP.

Orange County Great Park FFund was adjusted $199,883 to correct insurance premium payment made
i the prior fiscal year; these expenditures should have been recorded as a prepaid expense and

expensed over the life of the insurance policy.

Restated $375,460 in the Capital Improvement Projects Fund for construction expenditures reported
in the Assessment District Fund.
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City of Irvine
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Continued)

V. Other information (continued)

‘The Fees and Exactions Fund was adjusted $2,073,644 for future Mitigation Measure 123 fee credits
given to University of Irvine (UCI) in exchange for right of way land used for infrastructure project in
the UCI area.

During the year, the beginning net asset balance of the Statement of Activities, a government-wide
statement, was adjusted $1,383,997 to correct a misstatement in the construction in process balance in
capital assets.
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City of Irvine
Requited Supplementary Information
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Continued)

Schedule of Employer Contributions — Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The City’s retirement system for sworn employees i1s known as the Defined Benefit Pension
Plan. It 1s a single-employer defined benefit pension plan established by City resolution and
administered in accordance with the provisions of the Plan document adopted on Apul 1, 1975,
and subscquently restated on January 1, 1984, July 1, 1996, and January 1, 2004. Copices of the
annual financial report may be obtained from City Hall.

The Plan uses the agpregate cost method to determine its annual pension cost.

Schedule of Employer Contributions
For the three years ended December 31, 2008

(in thousands)

Annual
Actuarial Required Percentage
Valuation Contributions of ARC
Year Date (ARC)* Conuibuted
2006 1/1/2006 $ 218 100.55%
2007 1/1/2006 ¥ 186 123.65%
2008 1/1/2008 $ 159 138.08%

* Annual required contributions were determined by multiplying the actual covered payroll by the ARC
rate in order to ensute an approptiate compatison of contributions requited versus contributions made.

Provided below is the Schedule of Funding Progress for the City of Irvine’s Defined Benefit
Pension Plan:

Schedule of Funding Progress
For the three years ended December 31, 2008

(in thousands)

Actuarial

Accrued Actuarial UAAL, %
Actuarial Liability Value of Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation (AAT) Assets AAT. Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date ) ® (A-B) (B)/A) (Q) (A-B)/C

1/1/2004 % 16,981 % 16,981 % - 100.00% § 455 0.0%
1/1/2006 $ 17367 § 17,367 § - 100.00% $ 335 0.0%
1/1/2008  § 19,071 % 18,792 % 279 98.54% $ 274 101.8%

* The actuatial valuation is performed bi-annually.
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City of Irvine
Required Supplementary Information

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Continued)

Schedules of Funding Progress — CalPERS Defined Benefit Pension Plans

CalPERS Defined Benefit Pension Plan for Sworn Employees

Provided below 1s the Schedule of ['unding Progress for the CalPTRS Defined Benefit Pension
Plan for Sworn Employees:

Schedule of Funding Progress

For the three years ended December 31, 2008

(in thousands)

Actuarial
Accrued Actuarial UAAL, %
Actuanal Liability Value of Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered
7aluation (AAL) Assets AAL Rato Payroll Payroll
Date &Y ®) KB B/ ) (Q (AB)/C
6/30/2006 3 96,243 $ 76,310 S 19,933 79.29% S 13,804 144 4%
6/30/2007 3 107,080 $ 85,550 ) 21,530 79.89% S 14,975 143.8%
6/30/2008 3 117,823 $ 95,371 S 22,452 80.94% S 17,240 130.2%

CalPERS Defined Benefit Pension Plan for Non-Sworn Employees

Provided below is the Schedule of Funding Progress for the CalPERS Defined Benefit Pension
Plan for Non-Sworn Employees:

Schedule of Funding Progress

(in thousands)

Fort the three years ended December 31, 2008

Actuarial
Accrued Actuarial UAAL, %
Actuaral Liabilty Value of Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation {AALY Assets AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date 4\ B) (A-B) B)/(\) () (A-BY/C
6/30/2006 $ 134,617 $ 95,587 $ 39,030 71.01% $ 37,570 103.9%
6/ 30/2007 $ 155,487 $ 113,591 $ 41,896 73.06% $ 42,050 99.6%
6/30,/2008 $ 177,193 $ 132,395 $ 44,798 74.72% $ 47,141 95.0%
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City of Irvine
Requited Supplementary Information

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (Continued)

Schedules of Funding Progress — Other Post Employment Benefit Plans

Provided below is the Schedule of Funding Progress for the City Other Post Employment

Benefit Plans:

Schedule of Funding Progress

For the three years ended December 31, 2008

(in thousands)

Actuarial Actuarial UAAL asa
Accrued Value of Unfunded Percentage of
Actuanal Labihty Assets AAL Funded Covered Covered
Valuation (AAL) (AVA) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date * (&) (B) (A-B) (BY/(A) (G (ABY/C
7/1/2008 S 3,868 S - 5 3,868 0.00%  § 59,728 6.48%

* Most recent information available
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Schedules




OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The combining statements for Other Governmental Funds represent a consolidation of the
information for specific funds conrtained in the Supplementary Financial Statements. These statements
summarize the financial information contained in Other Special Revenue [Funds, Other Debt Service
Funds, Other Capital Projects Funds, and Permanent Fund.
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ASSETS
Cash and investments
Recervables, net of allowances:
Taxes
Accounts
Accrued interest
Duc from other governments
Advances to other funds
Long-term note receivable

Property held for resale

Total Asscts

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilitics:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilitics
Duc to other funds
Due to other governments
Deposits
Deferred revenue

Advances from other funds
l'otal Iiabilitics
l'und Balances:

Reserved

Unreserved

T'otal l‘und Balances

"I'otal Liabilitics and Fund Balances

City of Irvine

Combining Balance Sheet

Other Governmental Funds

June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Other Other Other Total
Special Debt Capital Other

Revenue Service Projects Permanent Governmental
Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds

S 98,678 S 5424 S 59,617 S 638 % 164,357

1,473 - - - 1,473

628 14 - - 642

242 16 124 2 384

1,390 - 2,168 - 3,553

1,350 - - - 1,350

2,467 - - - 2,467

737 - - - 737

S 106965 S 5454 S 61,909 S 640 § 174,968

N 4,351 M) 5 S 4418 S 1 $ 8,77

21 - 3,538 - 3,559

609 - - - 609

2 - - - 2

- - 250 - 250

4,582 - 1,274 - 3,856

1,350 - - - 1,350

10,915 5 9,480 1 20,401

1,350 5,449 - 469 7,268

94,700 - 52,429 170 147,299

96,050 5,449 52,429 639 154 567

S 106,965  $ 5454 S 61,909 § 640 § 174,968
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City of Itvine
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Other Governmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

REVENUES

Taxes

[uvestment income
Iﬂtttrg()vcrmncntal

Charges for services

Revenue from developers
Revenue from property owners
Donations

Other revenue

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Community Development
Community Services
Great Park
Street lighting

Capital outlay

Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Administration

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of long-term note
Transters in
Transters out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Bepinning, as restated

Fund Balances, Ending

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Other Other Other Total
Special Debt Capital Other
Revenue Service Projects Permanent Governmental
Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds
S 11,930 - -3 -5 11,930
4,351 255 1,660 27 6,293
7,471 - 13,148 - 20,619
1,845 12,692 74 1 14,612
396 - - - 396
5,043 - 160 - 5,203
112 - - - 112
757 1 100 13 871
31,905 12,948 15,142 41 60,036
139 4 21 - 164
1,732 - - - 1,732
3,187 - 281 - 3,468
5,355 - 9 5,364
1,760 - 46 17 1,823
- - 1,950 - 1,950
6,226 - - - 6,226
4,115 - 31,988 - 36,103
: 6,990 : . 6,990
- 266 - - 266
- 75 - - 75
22,514 7,335 34,295 17 64,161
9,391 5,013 (19,153) 24 (4,125)
48 - - - 48
4,194 - 31,947 - 36,141
(29,229) (5,169) (1,546) - (35.944)
(24,987 (5,169) 30,401 - 245
(15,596} 444 11,248 24 (3,880)
111,646 5,005 41,181 615 158,447
S 96,050 5,449 52,429 % 639 8 154,567
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OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds account for taxes and other revenues set aside in accordance with law or
administrative regulations for expenditures restricted for specified services. Special Revenue Funds
include the following:

County Sales Tax Measure M - This fund accounts for the one-half percent sales tax authorized by the
Measure M tax initiative within the County of Orange. Sales tax proceeds are disttibuted to the cities
for their use, which is restricted solely to transpottation putposes.

State Gasoline Tax - This fund accounts for gasoline taxes teceived under Sections 2105, 21006, 2107,
and 2107.5 of the Streets and Highways Code. These funds are utilized solely for street related
purposes.

Systems Development - This fund accounts for a 1% tax imposed by City Ordinance on all new
construction. Revenues are desighated for circulation and public facilities improvements.

Local Park Fees - This fund accounts for fees received under the Subdivision Map Act of the
California State Constitution that requires developers to either contribute land or pay fees to provide
recreational facilities within the development area.

Slurry Seal Fees - This fund accounts for developer construction fees to be utilized for the slurry seal
of City streets that had wear and tear due to construction traffic.

Maintenance District - 'This fund accounts for City-wide lighting, landscape, and park maintenance
costs and the collection of assessments from property owners.

Air Quality Improvement - This fund accounts for receipts and disbursements made to reduce air
pollution from motor vehicles pursuant to the California Clean Air Act of 1988 under Section 44244.1
of the California Health and Safety Code.

Fees and Fxactions - This fund accounts for the collection of fees imposed on developers and
property owners for future capital improvement projects from which they will receive direct benefit.

Major Special Events - This fund accounts for a participant user fee for major events. The fees
collected are applied to Public Safety costs incurred as a result of these events.

RDA Housing - This fund accounts for the accumulation receipts of 20% tax increment to be set aside
for affordable housing and accounts for the Irvine Redevelopment Agency housing related activities.

North Irvine Transportation Mitigation - This fund accounts for the financial transaction related to the
planning and implementation of circulation improvements necessary to accommodate the build-out of
the City’s Northern Sphere of Influence.

Shuttle Service - This fund accounts for the implementation and operation of the shuttle program.

Irvine Community Land Trust - This fund accounts for the activities of the 501(C)(3) originated for

the purpose of assisting the City in securing low income housing for its residents.

Grants - This fund accounts for a variety of local, state, and federal grants.
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ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxcs
Accounts
Accrued interest
Due from other governments
Advances to other funds
Long-term note receivable

Property held for resale

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilitics:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilitics
Due to other funds
Duc to other governments
Deferred revenue
Advances from other funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:;
Reserved

Unreserved
'otal Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

City of Irvine
Combining Balance Sheet
Other Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Page 1of4
County State
Sales T'ax Gasoline Systems
Measure M Tax Development
$ 5,086 10,131 § 5,168
422 694 -
15 24 12
$ 5,523 10,849  § 5,180
$ 5 21 $ ,
5 21 -
5,518 10,828 5,180
5518 10,828 5,180
$ 5,523 10,840  § 5,180

106



ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxcs
Accounts
Accrued interest
Due from other governments
Advances to other funds
Long-term note receivable
Property held for resale

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Duce to other funds

Due to other governments

Deferted revenue

Advances from other funds

Total Liabilities
['und Balances:

Reserved
Unteserved

"I'otal Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

City of Irvine
Combining Balance Sheet
Other Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Page 2 of 4
Local Slurry Air
Park Seal Maintenance Quality
Fees Fees District Improvement
$ 31,483 % 1,738 § 3,768 % 1,250
- - 337 -
B - 3 _
77 4 10 2
- - - 60
$ 31,560 § 1,742 § 4,138 $ 1,312
§ - 3 - 3 699 % -
. 1 3 .
- 1 702 -
31,560 1,741 3,436 1,312
31,560 1,741 3,436 1,312
$ 31,560 § 1,742} 4138 $ 1,312
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City of Irvine
Combining Balance Sheet
Other Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Page 3 of 4
Fees Major Notrth Irvine
and Special RDA Transportation
Exactions Events Housing Mitigation
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 658 % - 5325 % 25,937
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxcs - - - -
Accounts - 243 - -
Accrued interest 16 - 13 63
Due from other governments - - - -
Advances to other funds - - 1,350 -
Long-term note receivable - - - -
Property held for resale - - - -
Total Assets $ 6,602 $ 243 6,688 $ 26,000
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilitics:
Accounts payable $ - % 2 1,601 §$ 408
Accrued liabilitics - 7 3 5
Due to other funds - 226 - -
Duc to other governments - - - -
Deferred revenue 2,073 17 - -
Advances from other funds 1,350 - - -
Total iabilities 3,423 252 1,604 413
Fund Balances:;
Reserved - - 1,350 -
Unreserved 3,179 (9) 3,734 25,587
l'otal Fund Balances 3,179 (9) 5,084 25,587
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 6,602 % 243 6,688  § 26,000
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City of Irvine
Combining Balance Sheet
Other Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Page 4 of 4
Irvine Total
Shuttle Community Other Special
Service Land Trust Grants Revenue Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 1,123 700 383 % 98,678
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxcs - - - 1,473
Accounts 17 1 364 628
Accrued interest 3 2 1 242
Due from other governments - 1,330 1,390
Advances to other funds - - - 1,350
Long-term note receivable - - 2,467 2,467
Property held for resale - 737 - 737
Total Assers $ 1,143 1,440 4,545 $ 106,965
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilitics:
Accounts payable $ 344 21 1,250 § 4,351
Accrued liabilities - - 2 21
Due to other funds - - 383 609
Duc to other governments - - 2 2
Deferred revenue - - 2,492 4,582
Advances from other funds - - - 1,350
Total Liabilities 344 21 4,129 10,915
Fund Balances:;
Reserved - - - 1,350
Unreserved 799 1,419 416 94,700
I'otal Fund Balances 799 1,419 416 96,050
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 1,143 1,440 4,545  § 106,965
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City of Irvine

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditutes, and Changes in Fund Balances

REVENUES

Taxes

Investment income
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Revenue from developers

Revenue from property owners

Donations
Other revenue

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Community Development
Community Sexvices
Street lighting
Capital outlay

Total Expenditutes

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Issuance of long-term note
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total Other Iinancing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning, as restated

Fund Balances, Ending

Other Special Revenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Page 1 of 4
County State
Sales Tax Gasoline Systems

Measure M Tax Development

b 2,859 % 4,016 § 962
286 480 212

- 1,781 -

3,145 6,277 1,174

17 17 -

200 530 -

217 547 -

2,928 5,730 1,174

- ; 400
(3,622) (6,279) (13,616)
(3,622) (6,279) (13,216)
(694) (549) (12,042)

6,212 11377 17222

$ 5518 % 10,828 § 5,180

- continued -
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City of Irvine

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Other Special Revenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

REVENUES

Taxes

Investment income
Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Revenue from developers
Revenue from propetty owners
Donations

Orther revenue

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Curtent:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Commounity Development
Community Setvices
Street lighting
Capital outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of long-term note
Transfers in

Transfers out
Total Other inancing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, Beginning, as restated

Fund Balances, Ending

Page 2 of 4
Local Sturry Air
Park Seal Maintenance Quality
Fees Fees District Improvement
$ - % - $ 2338 S -
1,304 57 147 47
- - - 240
- 54 1 -
109 - - -
_ - 5,043 -
- - 25 1
1,413 111 7,554 288
- 4 50 -
- 55 - 6
- - 1,385 -
- - 6,226 -
- 871 - -
- 930 7,661 6
1,413 (819) (107) 282
- 928 - _
- - - (266)
- 928 - (260)
1,413 109 (107) 16
30,147 1,632 3,543 1,296
$ 31,560  § 1,741 § 3436 S 1,312
- continued -
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City of Irvine

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Other Special Revenue Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

REVENUES

Taxes

Investment income
Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Revenue from developers
Revenue from property owners
Donations

Other revenue

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Community Development
Community Sexvices
Street lighting
Capital outlay

Total Expenditutes

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of long-term note
Transfers in

Transfers out
Total Other Iinancing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, Beginning, as restated

Fund Balances, Ending

Page 3 of 4
Fees Major Notrth Irvine
and Special RDA Transportation
Exactions Events Housing Mitigation
- ¥ - 1,755 % -
452 : 204 1,093
4 979 - :
287 - - .
731 - - -
1,474 979 1,959 1,093
- 1,014 - -
- - - 146
331 - 2,154 -
- - 3,235
331 1,014 2,154 3,388
1,143 {33) {195) (2,295)
B : 48 :
- - - 425
(4,038) - (56) -
(4,038) - (8) 425
(2,895) (35) (203) (1,870)
6,074 26 5,287 27,457
3,179 § 9 5,084 S 25,587
- continued -
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City of Irvine

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

REVENUES

Taxes

Investment income
Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Revenue from developers
Revenue from propetty owners
Donations

Other tevenue

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Curtent:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Commounity Development
Community Setvices
Street lighting
Capital outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Issuance of long-term note
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total Other inancing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning, as restated

Fund Balances, Ending

Other Special Revenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Page 4 of 4
Irvine Total

Shuttle Community Other Special
Service Land Trust Grants Revenue Funds
g ; -8 11,930

32 14 23 4,351

- 807 4,643 7,471

19 752 36 1,845

- - - 396

- - : 5,043

_ - 112 112

- - - 757

51 1,573 4,814 31,905

1 - 43 139

- - 718 1,732

2,250 - - 3,187

- 370 2,500 5,355

_ - 375 1,760

- - - 6,226

- - 9 4,115

2,251 370 3,645 22,514
(2,200) 1,203 1,169 9,391

- - - 48

2,354 56 31 4,194

- - (1,352) (29,229)

2,354 56 (1,321) (24,987)
154 1,259 (152) (15,596)

645 160 568 111,646
799§ 1,419 416 S 96,050
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City of Irvine

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
County Sales Tax Measure M

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

REVENUES
Taxcs
Investment income
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Cutrrent:
General Government
Public Works

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out

"L'otal Other Financing Sources (Uscs)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, Beginning

Fund Balances, Ending

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
3326 % 3,326 % 2,859 § (467)
147 147 286 139
3473 3,473 3,145 (328)
22 22 17 5
200 200 200 -
222 222 217 5
3.251 3,251 2,928 (323)
(8.275) (8,381) (3,622) 4,759
(8,275) (8,381) (3,622) 4,759
(5.,024) (5,130 {694) 4,436
6,212 6,212 6,212 -
1,188 % 1082 % 5518 § 4,436
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City of Irvine

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

REVENUES
Taxes

Investment income

Intergovernmental

T'otal Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:

General Government

Public Wotks

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Dxpenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uscs)
Net Change in I'und Balances
[F'und Balances, Beginning

Fund Balances, Ending

State Gasoline Tax
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

3,866 % 4544  § 4016 §$ (528)
176 176 480 304
2,608 2,068 1,781 (887)
6,710 7,388 06,277 (1,111
22 22 7 3

530 530 530 -

552 552 547 3
6,158 06,830 5,730 (1,106)
(16,015) (17,092) (6,279) 10,813
(16,015) (17,092 (6,279) 10,813
(9,857) (10,256) (549) 9,707
11,377 11,377 11,377 -
1,520 % 1,121 § 10,828  § 9,707
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City of Itvine
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Systems Development
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 4500 % 4500 % 22 % (3,538)
Investment income 470 470 212 (258)
Total Revenues 4,970 4,970 1,174 (3,796)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public Works 900 900 - 900
Total Expenditures 900 900 - 900
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 4,070 4,070 1,174 (2,890)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
‘L'ransfers in - 400 400 -
Transfers out (8,227) (13,616) (13,616) -
Total Other inancing Sources (Uses) (8.227) (13,216) {13,216) -
Net Change in Fund Balances (4,157) (9,146) (12,042) (2,890)
Fund Balances, Beginning 17,222 7,222 17,222 -
Tund Balances, Tinding $ 13,005 § 8076 % 5180 % (2,890)
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City of Irvine
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Local Park Fees
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Vatiance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Investment income $ 800 % 800 % 1,304  § 504
Revenue from developers - - 109 109
Total Revenues 800 800 1,413 613
EXPENDITURES
Total Tixpenditures - - - -
Excess of Revenues
Over Lixpenditures 800 800 1,413 613
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Total Other Financing Soutces - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balances 800 800 1,413 613
[Fund Balances, Beginning 30,147 30,147 30,147 -
Fund Balances, Ending $ 30947 § 30,947 % 31,560 $ 613
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City of Itvine
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Slurty Seal Fees
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Investment income $ 39 % 39 % 57 % 18
Charges for services 275 275 54 (221)
Total Revenues 314 314 111 (203)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 1 1 4 3)
Public Works 112 112 55 57
Capital outlay 2,841 2,841 871 1,970
Total Expenditures 2,954 2,954 930 2,024
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Ixpenditures (2,640) (2,640) (819) 1,821
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 2.420 2,849 928 (1,921)
Total Other inancing Sources (Uses) 2.420 2,849 928 (1,921)
Net Change in Fund Balances (220) 209 109 (100)
Fund Balances, Beginning 1,632 1,632 1,632 -
[und Balances, Tinding $ 1412  § 1,841 3 1,741 $ (100)
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City of Irvine
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Maintenance District
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 2,314 % 2314 % 2,338 S 24
Investment income 79 79 147 68
Charges for services 2 2 1 M
Revenue from propetty owners 5,055 5,055 5,043 (12)
Other revenue - - 25 25
Total Revenues 7,450 7,450 7,554 104
EXPENDITURES
Cutrent:
General Government 52 52 30 2
Community Setvices 1,879 1,879 1,385 494
Street lighting 5,622 6,07 0,226 (154)
Toral Expenditures 7,553 8,003 7,661 342
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (103) (553) (107) 446
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Total Other I'inancing Sources - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balances (103) (553) (107) 446
Fund Balances, Beginning 3,543 3,543 3,543 -
['und Balances, Fnding $ 3440 % 2,990 % 3,43 S 446
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City of Itvine
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Air Quality Improvement
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Investment income $ 33 % 33 0§ 47 $ 14
Intergovernmental 233 233 240 7
Other revenue - . 1 1
Total Revenues 266 266 288 22
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 1 1 - 1
Public Wortks 114 114 6 108
Total Expenditures 115 115 6 109
Excess of Revenues
Over Lxpenditures 151 151 282 131
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (702) (686) (266) 420
Total Other Financing Sources (Uscs) (702) (686) (266) 420
Net Change 1 IF'und Balances (551) (535) 16 551
[Fund Balances, Beginning 1,296 1,296 1,296 -
Fund Balances, Ending $ 745 % 761 $ 1,312 § 551
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City of Irvine

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Fees and Exactions

(amounts expressed in thousands)

REVENUES
Investment income
Charges for services
Revenue from developers
Other revenue

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Community Development

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Dxpenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out
Total Other I'inancing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, Beginning, as restated

['und Balances, Fnding

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 276 276 452§ 176
- - 4 4
10 194 287 93
- - 731 731
286 470 1,474 1,004
900 900 331 569
900 900 331 569
(614) (430 1,143 1,573
- (4,038 (4,038) -
- (4,038 (4,038) -
{014y (4,468) (2,895) 1,573
06,074 6,074 0,074 -
$ 5,460 1,606 3179 % 1,573
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City of Itvine

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

REVENUES
Charges for services

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public Safety

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Total Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balancces, Beginning

Fund Balances, Ending

Major Special Events

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

$ 458 § 458 979 § 521
458 458 979 521
447 447 1,014 (567)
447 447 1,014 (567)
11 11 (35) {406)
11 11 (35) (40)

26 26 26 -
$ 37§ 37 9 % (46)

122



City of Irvine
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
RDA Housing
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Qriginal Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 1,674 % 1,674 % 1,755 % 81
Investment income 126 126 204 78
Total Revenues 1,800 1,800 1,959 159
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Community Development 1,581 3,181 2,154 1,027
‘T'otal Expenditutes 1,581 3,181 2,154 1,027
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditutes 219 (1,381) (195) 1,186
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of long-term note - - 48 48
Transfers out - (53) (56) (3)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - (53) (8) 45
Net Change 1n Fund Balances 219 (1,434) (203) 1,231
Fund Balances, Beginning 5,287 5,287 5,287 -
Fund Balances, Iinding $ 5506 § 3,853 % 5084 % 1,231
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City of Irvine

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

North Irvine Transportation Mitigation
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
[nvestment income $ 1,024 1,024 § 1,09 % 69
Total Revenues 1,024 1,024 1,093 69
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Governmennt 9 9 7 2
Public Works 250 250 146 104
Capital outlay 2,794 2,794 3,235 (441)
‘Total Expenditures 3,053 3,053 3,388 (335)
(Deficiency) of Revenucs
(Under) Expenditures (2,029) (2,029) (2,295) (266)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 423 437 425 (12)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 423 437 425 (12)
Net Change in Fund Balances (1,600) (1,592) (1,870) (278)
Fund Balances, Beginning 27457 27,457 27 457 -
Fund Balances, Ending $ 25,851 25865 § 25,587 % (278)
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City of Irvine

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

REVENUES
Investment income
Intetgoverhmental
Charges for services
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Government

Public Works

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
T'tansfers in

Total Other Financing Sources
Net Change 1n Fund Balances
Fund Balances, Beginning

IFund Balances, Iinding

Shuttle Service
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

JEI 14 32 % 18
4,308 4,308 - (4,308)
157 157 19 {138)
4,479 4,479 51 (4,428)

1 1 1 -

7,084 7,084 2,250 4,834
7,085 7,085 2,251 4,834
(2,606) (2,606 (2,200 406
2,354 2,354 2,354 -
2,354 2,354 2,354 -
(252) (252) 154 406

645 645 645 -

393 % 393 799§ 406
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City of Irvine

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Irvine Community Land Trust

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

REVENUES
Investment income
Intergovemmental
Charges for services

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:

Community Development

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues
Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

Total Other Financing Sources
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, Beginning

Fund Balances, Ending

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

- % - 14 9% 14

- - 807 807

- 752 752 -

- 752 1,573 821
- - 370 (370)
- - 370 (370)

- 752 1,203 451

- 53 56 3

- 53 56 3

- 805 1,259 454

160 160 160 -
160§ 965 1,419 § 454
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City of Irvine
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Grants
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Investment income $ 11 his 11 % 23 $ 12
Intergovernmental 5,173 6,311 4,643 (1,668)
Charges for services 34 34 36 2
Donations 131 131 112 (19)
‘l'otal Revenues 5,349 0,487 4,814 (1,673)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 53 53 43 10
Public Safety 837 2,005 718 1,287
Community Development 3,182 3,182 2,500 682
Community Services 316 316 375 (59)
Capital outlay 17 17 9 8
Total Expenditures 4,405 5,573 3,645 1,928
Fxcess of Revenues
Over Expenditures 944 914 1,169 255
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
T'ransfers in - 31 31 -
Transfers out (1,328) (1,328) (1,352) (24)
"T'otal Other Financing (Uscs) (1,328) (1,297) (1,321) (24)
Net Change 10 ['und Balances (384) (383) (152) 231
[Fund Balances, Beginning 568 568 568 -
Fund Balances, Ending $ 184  § 185 % 416 % 231
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt Setvice Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and payment of]
general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs. Debt Service Funds include the following:

Major Fund

RDA Debt Service — This fund accounts for the accumulation of property tax increment receipts, debt
service payments, and statutoty pass through payments of tax increment to affected agencies of the
redevelopment project areas.

Other Debt Service Funds

Irvine Public Facilities and Infrastructure Authority - This fund accounts for the accumulation and
disbursement of monies to meet the debt setvice tequirements for the Series 1985 and Series 1987
lease revenue bonds.

Infrastructure Financing Plan — This fund accounts for the preliminary work on an infrastructure
financing plan.
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City of Irvine
Combining Balance Sheet
Other Debt Service Funds

June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Lrvine Public Total
Facilities and Infrastructure Other
Infrastructure Financing Debt Service
Authority Plan Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 5,298 $ 126 S 5,424
Receivables, net of allowances:
Accounts 14 - 14
Accrued interest 16 - 16
Total Assets $ 5,328 $ 126 S 5,454
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
ILiabilities:
Accounts payable $ 3 $ - S 5
Total Liabilitics 3 - 5
[‘und Balances:
Reserved 5,323 126 5,449
Total Fund Balances 5,323 126 5,449
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 5,328 $ 126 S 5,454
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REVENUES
Investment income
Charges for services
Other revenue

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Administration

Total Expenditutes

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, Beginning

Fund Balances, Ending

City of Irvine
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Other Debt Service Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

131

Irvine Public Total
Facilities and Infrastructure Other
Infrastructure Financing Debt Service

Authority Plan Funds

$ 250 ¥ 5 $ 255

12,692 - 12,692

1 - 1

12,943 5 12,948

4 - 4

6,990 - 6,990

266 - 266

68 7 75

7,328 7 7,335

5615 ) 5,613

(5,169) - (5,169)

(5,169) - (5,169

446 ) 444

4877 128 5,005

$ 5,323 $ 126 $ 5,449




City of Irvine

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
RDA Debt Service
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

REVENUES
Taxes
Investment income

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Community Development
Debt service:

Interest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Irund Balances, Beginning

Fund Balances, Hnding

Vatiance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

$ 6,694 % 6,094 % 7018 % 324
464 464 097 233

7,158 7,158 7,715 557

2,451 9,948 8,853 1,095
12,768 12,768 13,772 {1,004

15,219 22,716 22,625 91

(8,061) (15,558) (14,910) 648

(2,000 (4,202) (2,264 1,938

(2,000) (4,202) (2,264) 1,938

(10,061) (19,760) (17,174) 2,586
(142,114 (142,114) {142,114 -

$ (152,175) % (161,874 § (159,288) § 2,586
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City of Irvine

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Irvine Public Facilities and Infrastructure Authority
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

REVENUES
Investment income
Charges for services
Other revenue

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Administration

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues
Over Lxpenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
[Fund Balances, Beginning

Fund Balances, Hnding

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

$ 150 % 150  $ 250 % 100
12,692 12,692 12,092 -

- - 1 1

12,842 12,842 12,943 101
3 3 4 (1)

6,990 6,990 6,990 -

634 634 266 368
67 7 08 (1)

7,694 7,694 7,328 366

5,148 5,148 5,615 467

(5,169) (5,169 (5,169) -

(5,169) (5,169 (5,169) -

(21) (21) 446 467

4,877 4,877 4,877 -

$ 4856 § 4,856 % 5,323 $ 467
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City of Irvine

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Infrastructure Financing Plan

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Investment income $ 4 4 5 § 1
Total Revenues 4 4 5 1
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 9 9 - 9
Debt service:
Administration 107 107 7 100
‘l'otal Expenditures 116 116 7 109
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (112) (112) (2) 110
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Total Other Financing Sources - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balances (112) {112) (2 110
[fund Balances, Beginning 128 128 128 -
Fund Balances, Ending $ 16 16 126 $ 110
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OTHER CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Other Capital Projects Funds are used for the construction of infrastructure and public facility
improvements within the City and which, because of their complexity, typically requite more than one
budgetary cycle to complete. Other Capital Projects Funds include the following:

Community Facilities Districts - This fund accounts for infrastructure improvements associated with
Columbus Grove and Central Park.

Park Development - This fund accounts for receipts and disbursement of monies used for
development and construction of non-circulation projects such as patrks and public facilities within the

City.
Transit Guideway - This fund accounts for a transit guideway project to serve the Great Park and

Irvine Spectrum.

City Infrastructure - This fund accounts for the remodeling and construction of infrastructure needs
for a new public safety facility.

Orange County Great Park Infrastructure - This fund accounts for expenditures related to the
planning, design, and construction of the Great Park Communities Backbone Infrastructure for the
Orange County Great Park.

Great Park Development - This fund is used to account for expenditures related to the planning,
design, and construction of the Orange County Great Park.
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City of Irvine
Combining Balance Sheet
Other Capital Projects Funds

June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Page 10of2
Community
Facilities Park Transit
Districts Development Guideway
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 21,796 S 19253 % 61
Receivables, net of allowances:
Accrued interest 51 47 -
Due from other governments - 2,168 -
Total Asscts $ 21847 § 21468 § 01
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - $ 854 ¢ -
Accrued liabilitics - 109 1
Deposits 250 - -
Deferred revenue - 1,274 -
‘I'otal 1iabilities 250 2,237 1
Fund Balances:
Unreserved 21,597 19,231 60
‘T'otal Fund Balances 21,597 19,231 60
T'otal Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 21,847 S 21468 % 61

- continued -
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City of Irvine
Combining Balance Sheet
Other Capital Projects Funds

June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Page 2 of 2
Orange County Total
City Great Park Great Park Other Capital
Infrastructure Infrastructute Development  Projects Funds
ASSETS
Cash and mvestments § 7,282 % 3,778 § 7447  $ 59,617
Receivables, net of allowances:
Accrued interest 18 8 - 124
Duc from other governments - - - 2,168
Total Asscts $ 7300  § 3,78 % 7447 % 61,909
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
T iabilities:
Accounts payable $ 137 % 43 % 3384 % 4,418
Accrued liabilities - 191 3,237 3,538
Deposits - - - 250
Deferred revenue - - - 1,274
Total Liabilides 137 234 0,621 9,480
[Fund Balances:
Unreserved 7,163 3,552 826 52,429
Total Fund Balances 7,163 3,552 826 52,429
Toral Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 7300 % 3,786 $ 7447 % 61,909
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City of Irvine
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Other Capital Projects Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Page 10f 2
Community
Facilities Park Transit
Districts Development Guideway
REVENUES
Investment income $ 431 8 814 -
Intergovernmental - 9,745 3,403
Charges for services - 7 -
Revenue from property owners - 160 -
Other revenue - - -
Total Revenues 431 10,793 3,403
EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government - 18 -
Public Works 42 127 100
Community Development - 5 -
Community Services - 45 -
Great Park - - -
Capital outlay 2,256 6,513 3,041
Total Expenditures 2,298 6,708 3,741
FExcess (IDeficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (1,867) 4,085 (338)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 6,166 264
Transfers out - (1,546) -
T'otal Other Financing Sources - 4,620 264
Net Change in Fund Balances (1,867) 8,705 (74)
Fund Balances, Beginning 23,464 10,526 134
Fund Balances, Ending $ 21,597 S 19,231 $ 60

- continued -
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City of Irvine
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Other Capital Projects Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Page 2 of 2
Orange County Total
City Great Park Great Park Other Capital
Infrastructure Infrastructure Development  Projects Funds
REVENUES
Investment income $ 215 % 149 §$ 51 $ 1,660
Intergovernmental - - - 13,148
Charges for services - - - 74
Revenue from property owners - - - 160
Other revenue - - 100 100
Total Revenues 215 149 151 15,142
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 1 - 2 21
Public Works 11 - 1 281
Community Development - - 4 9
Community Setvices - - 1 46
Great Patrk - 75 1,875 1,950
Capiral outlay 138 938 18,502 31,988
Total Expenditures 150 1,013 20,385 34,295
Hxcess (IDeficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 65 (864) (20,234) (19,153)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 7,098 419 18,000 31,947
Transfers out - - - (1,540)
"l'otal Other Financing Sources 7,098 419 18,000 30,401
Net Change in Fund Balances 7,163 (445) (2,234) 11,248
Fund Balances, Beginning - 3,997 3,060 41,181
Fund Balances, Ending $ 7,163 $ 3552 8§ 826 52,429
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PERMANENT FUND

Permanent fund accounts for resources that are legally restricted, to the extent that only earnings, and
not principal, may be used for purposes that support the City’s programs.

Senior Services - This fund accounts for adult day health services and senior citizen programs which
are funded from interest earnings and additional donations.
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ASSETS

Cash and investments

Receivables, net of allowances:
Accrued interest

Total Asscts

City of Irvine
Balance Sheet
Permanent Fund
June 30, 2009

(amounts exptessed in thousands)

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilitics:
Accounts payable

Total Tiabilities
Fund Balances:

Reserved
Unreserved

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances
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Seniot
Services
Fund

638

640

469
170

639

640




City of Irvine
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Permanent Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Senior
Services
Fund
REVENUES
Investment income $ 27
Charges for services 1
Orther revenue 13
Total Revenuces 41
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Community Services 17
Total Expenditures 17
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 24
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USLES)
Total Other Financing Soutces -
Net Change in Fund Balances 24
Fund Balances, Beginning 615
[Fund Balances, Ending $ 639
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City of Irvine
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Permanent Fund - Senior Services
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Investment income 13 13 27 % 14
Charges for services - - 1 1
Other revenue 28 28 13 (15)
‘T'otal Revenues 41 41 41 -
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Community Services 88 88 17 71
‘T'otal Expenditures 88 88 17 71
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (47) (47) 24 71
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Total Other Financing Sources - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balances (47) 47 24 71
[r'und Balances, Beginning 615 615 615 -
Fund Balances, Ending 568 568 639 % 71
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are used to account for operations that provide scervices to other departments
of the City on a cost reimbursement basis. Internal Service Funds include the following:

Self-Insurance - 'This fund accounts for payments made for insurance services relative to workers’
compensation, general liability, automotive coverage and to maintain a sinking fund for future claims.

Equipment and Setvices - This fund accounts for fleet and central services, as well as cquipment
replacement.

Inventory - 'This fund accounts for the warchousing of the City’s central supplics and their distribution
to operating departments.
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City of Itvine
Combining Statement of Net Assets
Internal Service Funds
June 30, 2009

(amounts exptessed in thousands)

Equipment Total
Self- and Internal
Insurance Services Inventory Service Funds
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments 3 24292 % 13,115 $ 8 3 37,415
Receivables, net of allowances:
Accounts 71 39 - 110
Accrued interest 58 33 - i
Inventories - - 150 150
Total Current Assets 24,421 13,187 158 37,766
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets:
Equipment 35 36,190 - 36,225
Less accumulated depreciation (30) (25,979 - (26,009)
Tortal Noncurrent Assets 5 10,211 - 10,216
Toral Assets 24,426 23,398 158 47,982
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilifics:
Accounts payable 117 1,787 12 1,916
Accrued liabilities 14 13 - 27
Deposits - 16 - 16
Defetred revenue 54 - - 54
I.ease payable - 292 - 292
Compensated absences 11 18 - 29
Claims payable 2,501 - - 2,501
Tortal Current Liabilities 2,697 2,126 12 4,835
Noncutrent [iabilities:
Lease payable - 381 - 381
Compensated absences 86 150 - 236
Claims payable 5,002 - - 5,002
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 5,088 531 - 5,619
Total Liabilities 7,785 2,657 12 10,454
NET ASSETS
Invested 1n capital assets, net of related debt 5 9,538 - 9,543
Unrestricted 16,636 11,203 146 27,985
Total Net Assets $ 16,641 $ 20,741 $ 146 % 37,528
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City of Irvine
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Internal Service Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Equipment Total
Self- and Internal
Insurance Setvices Inventory Service Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 4790 % 13,311 $ - % 18,101
Other 32 120 352 504
Total Operating Revenue 4,822 13,431 352 18,605
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services 824 1,644 - 2,468
Supplies & equipment 53 3,555 360 3,968
Contract services 479 4,432 - 4911
Administration 21 1,123 - 1,144
Self-insured losses 2,001 - - 2,001
Insurance premiums 2,099 - - 2,099
Depreciation 3 4,032 - 4,035
Total Operating Fxpenses 5,480 14,786 360 20,626
Operating Income (Loss) (658) (1,355) (8) (2,021)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest tevenue 978 556 - 1,534
Interest expense - (22) - (22
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of equipment - 165 - 165
Total Nonoperating Revenues 978 699 - 1,677
Income (Loss) Before Transfers 320 (656) 8 (344)
Transfers in - 301 - 30
Transfers out (1,200) (100) - (1,300)
Change in Net Assets (880) (455) 8 (1,343)
Total Net Assets, Beginning 17,521 21,196 154 38,871
Total Net Asscts, Ending $ 16,641 $ 20,741 $ 146 $ 37,528
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City of Irvine
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Equip- Total
Self- ment Internal
Insur- and Inven- Service
ance Services tory Funds
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Received from customers and users $ 52 % 221 % - % 273
Reccived from interfund sctvices provided 4,790 13,311 352 18,453
Paid to supplicrs (5,059) (8,483) (347) (13,389)
Paid for interfund services provided (18) (227) - (243)
Paid to emplovees (564) (1,126) - {1,690)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (799) 3,696 5 2,902
Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities
‘I'ransfers in - 301 - 301
Transfers out (1,200) (100) - (1,300)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capital Financing Activities (1,200) 201 - (999)
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds from sale of equipment - 336 - 336
Intetest paid - (22) - (22)
Equipment purchases - (4,718) - (4,718)
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities - (4,404) - {(4,404)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received on investments 1,015 575 - 1,590
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activitics 1,015 575 - 1,590
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (984) 68 5 (911)
Cash and Cash I'quivalents, Beginning of Iiscal Year 25,276 13,047 3 38,326
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Fiscal Year $ 24292 % 13115 % 8 § 37415

Reconciliation of Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Operating (loss) $ (658) $ (1,355) § @ § (2,021

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 3 4,032 - 4,035
Changes 1n assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in receivables, net of allowances 20 84 - 104
(Increase) decrease in due from other governments - 1 - 1
(Increase) decrease in inventoties - - 24 24
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 34 859 (11) 882
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 3 - - 3
Increase (decrease) in due to other governments - (1) - 1)
Increase (decrease) in deposits - 16 - 16
Increase (decrease) in lease payable - 42 - 42
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 18 18 - 36
Increase (decrease) in claims payable (219) - - (219
Total Adjustments (141) 5,051 13 4,923
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (799) § 369 % 5 % 2,902
Noncash Capital inancing Activitics - Capital Lease Borrowings $ - % 352 $ - $ 352
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary Funds account for assets held by a governmental entity for other parties, as trustee or as an
agent, which cannot be used to finance a governmental entities own operating programs. Fiduciary
Funds include the following:

Pension and Hmployee Benefit Trust Funds - These funds account for resources held m trust for
employees and their beneficiaries based on defined benefit pension agreements, and defined
contribution agreements.

Agency Funds - These funds account for assets that are held in a custodial relationship. As assets are
recetved, they may be temporarily invested, and then remitted to individuals, private organizations, or
other governments. One of these funds, the Inter-Agency Custodial Fund 1s used to account for cash
seized by Public Safety and held until final disposition of the cases. The other agency funds primarily
reflect amounts collected and temitted under the terms of the vatious assessment districts.
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City of Irvine
Combining Statement of Net Assets
Pension and Employee Benefit Trust Funds
June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

PENSION TRUST
(December 31, 2008)
Defined Defined Total Pension
Benefit Contribution and Employee
Pension Pension Benefit Trust
Plan Plan Funds
ASSETS
Investments:
Collective trust funds $ 14,752 $ - $ 14,752
Short-term investments 715 - 715
Participant-directed investments - 9,116 9,116
Recervablcs, net of allowances:
Accrued interest 1 1
Loans - 125 125
T'otal Assets 15,468 9,241 24,709
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable - 172 172
Accrued liabilitics 23 - 23
"l'otal Liabilities 23 172 195
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits & other purposes 15,445 9,069 24,514
Total Net Assets $ 15,445 $ 9,069 $ 24,514
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City of Irvine
Combining Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Pension and Employee Benefit Trust Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts exptessed in thousands)

PENSION TRUST
{(December 31, 2008)
Defined Defined Total Pension
Benefit Conttibution and Employee
Pension Pension Benefit Trust
Plan Plan Funds
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer $ 228 $ 209 $ 437
Plan members - 56 56
Total Contributions 228 265 493
Investment Income (Loss):
Intetest and dividends 9 190 199
Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investments (2,457) (1,798) (4,255)
‘l'otal Investment Income (Loss) (2,448) (1,608) (4,056)
Less investment expense (103) - (103)
Net Investment Income (Loss) (2,551) (1,608) (4,159
Totl Additions (2,323) (1,343) (3,666)
DEDUCTIONS
Benefit payments 1,003 375 1,378
Administrative expenses 21 34 55
Forfeitures w the City of Irvine - 8 8
Transfers to other defined benefit plan - 210 210
Total Deductions 1,024 627 1,651
Change in Net Assets (3,347) (1,970) (5,317)
‘T'otal Net Assets, Beginning 18792 11,039 29,831
Total Net Assets, Iinding $ 15445 $ 9,009 ¥ 24514
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ASSETS

Cash and investments

Receivables, net of allowances:

Taxes
Investment interest

Due from developers

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Due to bondholders

Due to other governments

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

City of Irvine
Combining Statement of Net Assets

Agency Funds
June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Page 1 of 6
Stonegate Orchard Hills Portola Springs Northern Sphere
Assessment Assessment Assessment Assessment
District District District District
07-22 04-20 03-19
§ 3322 3,508 7,209 10,327
- - 7: 288
- - 1
3322 3,508 7281 10,616
- - 12
1 1 5
3321 3,507 727 10,599
3,322 3,508 7,281 10,616
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ASSETS

Cash and investments

Receivables, net of allowances:

Taxes
Investment interest
Due from developers

Tortal Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Due to bondholders

Due to other governments

‘I'otal Liabilities

NET ASSETS

City of Irvine

Combining Statement of Net Assets

Agency Funds
June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Page 2 of 6
Shady Canyon
‘Turtle Ridge Irvine Spectrum Irvine Spectrum Westpark
Asscssment Rcassessment Asscssment Asscssment
District District District District
00-18 85-7 87-8 89-10
$ 12,628 $ 5,409 4,410 530
500 - 240 -
1 _ _ _
- - 24 27
13,129 5,409 4,674 557
2 - 4 0
5 30 23 10
13,122 5,379 4,647 541
13,129 5,409 4,674 557
g 8 f ] ]
- contnued -
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ASSETS

Cash and investments

Receivables, net of allowances:

I'axes
Investment interest
Due from developets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilitics

Due to bondholders

Duc to other governments

Total Liabilitics

NET ASSETS

City of Irvine

Combining Statement of Net Assets

Agency Funds
June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Page 3 of 6
Irvine Spectrum Qak Creck Westpark I1 Northwest
Assessment Assessment Assessment Assessment
District District Digtrict
93-14 94-15 97-16
$ 8,070 $ 305 1,860 664
114 - - -
71 - 20 40
8,255 305 1,880 704
10 3 4 7
61 34 45 42
8,184 266 1,831 655
8,255 305 1,880 704
$ 5 . . .
- continued -
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ASSETS

Cash and investments
Recetvables, net of allowances:
Taxcs
Investment inrerest
Duc from developers

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to bondholders

Due to other governments
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

City of Irvine
Combining Statement of Net Assets
Agency Funds
June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Page 4 of 6

Lower Peters
Canyon
Assessment
District 97-17

Irvine Public

Facilities and

Infrastructure
Authority Series A

Lrvine Public

Facilities and

Infrastructure
Authority Series B

Irvine Public

Facilities and

Infrastructure
Authority Series C

$ 1174 § 2,584 % 2500 $ 6,086

18 ; _ ;

48 ﬁ ﬁ ﬁ

1,240 2,584 2,500 6,086

8 ; _ ;

117 1 1 1

1,115 2,583 2,499 6,085

1,240 2,584 2,500 6,086

$ - % - % - % -
- continued -
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ASSETS

Cash and investments
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxes
Investment mterest
Due from developers

Total Asscts

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to bondholders

Due to other governments
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

City of Irvine
Combining Statement of Net Assets

Agency Funds
June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Page 5 of 6
Reassessment Reassessment Reassessment Reassessment Reassessment
District District District District District
99-1 99-2 01-1 01-2 03-1
S 1,006 $ 5,253 $ 713 4,340 804
126 104 9 157 62
1,132 5,357 722 4,497 8066
1,132 5,357 722 4,497 8606
1,132 5,357 722 4,497 8606
S - ) - $ - - -
- continued -
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ASSETS

Cash and investments

Receivables, net of allowances:

Taxes
Investment interest
Due from developers

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to bondholders

Duc to othet governments
‘L'otal Liabilities

NET ASSETS

City of Itvine
Combining Statement of Net Assets

Agency Funds
June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Page 6 of 6
Reassessment CFD - CFD -
District Central Park Columbus Grove Inter-Agency Total Agenc.v
03-2 04-1 05-2 Custodial Fund Funds
6,870 % 844 3 2,784 140  § 93,340
250 - 135 - 2,075
1 - - - 3
: : - - 230
7,121 844 2,919 140 95,648
- - . . 58
- 1 - 381
7,121 844 2918 - 95,069
- - - 140 140
7121 844 2,919 140 95,648
o B . o .
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City of Irvine

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts cxpressed in thousands)

Page 10f9

Junc 30, 2008

Junc 30, 2009

Balance Additions Deductions Balance
Stonegate Assessment District 07-22
ASSIUIS
(Zash and investments § 3,966 S - 644 S 3,322
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxes - - - -
Accrued mnterest - - - -
Duc tfrom developers - - - -
Total Assets ) 3,906 S - 044 S 3,302
LIABILITINS
Accounts payable $ - S 6 6 S -
Accrued liabilities - 1 - 1
Due to bondholders 3,966 - 645 3,321
Due to other governments - - - -
T'otal Tiabilitics § 3,966 S 7 651 S 3,322
Orchard Hills Assessment District 05-21
ASSTUTS
Cash and investments £ 4,789 S 5 1,286 S 3,508
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxes - _ _ _
Accrued interest 1 - 1 -
Due from developers - - - -
Total Assects § 4,790 S 5 1,287 S 3,508
LIABILITIIS
Accounts payable 1) 1 S 2 3 S -
Accrued liabilities - 1 - 1
Due to bondholders 4,789 - 1,282 3,507
Duce to other governments - - - -
Total Tiabilities § 4,790 S 3 1,285 S 3,508
Portola Springs Assessment District 04-20
ASSTITS
Cash and investments § 8,593 S 5,380 0,704 S 7,209
Reccivables, net of allowances:
Taxes 19 32 29 72
Accrued interest 2 2 -
Due from developers - - - -
Total Assets $ 8,614 S 5,462 6,795 S 7,281
TIABILTTTIS
Accounts payable $ 1 S 2,720 2,721 S -
Accrucd liabilitics - 3 - 3
Due to bondholders 8,613 - 1,335 7,278
Duce to other governments - - - R
Total Liabilitics § 8,614 S 2,723 4,056 S 7,281
~continuced-
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City of Irvine
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Page 2 of 9
June 30, 2008 June 30, 2009
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
Northern Sphere Assessment District 03-19
ASSIVLS
Cash and investments $ 11,511 S 14,696 S 15,880  § 10,327
Recetvables, net of allowances:
l'axes 211 288 211 288
Accrued interest 5 1 5 1
Due from developers - - - -
Total Assets $ 11,727 S 14,985 S 16,096 S 10,616
LIABILITTIS
Accounts payable % - S 7,174 S 7102 S 12
Accrued habilities 8 5 8 5
1>ue to bondholders 11,719 - 1,120 10,599
Duce to other governments - - - -
T'otal Liabilities % 11,727 S 7179 S 8,200 S 10,616
Shady Canyon/Turtle Ridge Assessment District 00-18
ASSIVLS
Cash and investments $ 13,093 S 14,243 S 14,708 S 12,628
Reccivables, net of allowances:
Taxes 412 500 412 500
Accrued mterest 5 1 5 1
Due from developers - - - -
T'otal Assets $ 13,510 S 14,744 S 15,125 S 13,129
LIABILITTS
Accounts payable $ -3 7.311 S 7309 5 2
Accrued liabilitics 6 5 6 5
Due to bondholders 13,504 - 382 13,122
Due to other governments - - - _
T'otal |iabilitics $ 13,510 S 7316 S 7,697 S 13,129

Irvine Spectrum Reassessment District 85-7
ASSIETS
Cash and investments $ 5499 S 76 S 166 S 5,409
Reccivables, net of allowances:
Taxes - - - -
Accruced mterest - - - -
Due from developers - - - -

Total Asscts $ 5499 S 76 S 166 S 5,409

LIABILITTS

Accounts pavable $ - S 156 S 156 S -
Accrued habilitics - 30 - 30

Due to bondholders 5,499 - 120 5,379
Due to ()rhcf g()v(.’fﬂmcﬂrs - -

T'otal Liabilities $ 5499 § 186§ 276 S 5,409

~continued-
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City of Itvine
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Page 3 of 9
June 30, 2008 June 30, 2009
Balancc Additions Decductions Balancc
Itvine Spectrum Assessment District 87-8
ASSIVLS
Cash and investments S 5,205 % 5,304 S 6,099 S 4,410
Recctvables, net of allowances:
Taxes 57 240 57 240
Accrued interest 2 - 2 -
Due from developers - 113 89 24
Total Asscts s 5264 % 5,657 5 6,247 S 4,674
LIABILITTES
Accounts payable S 1 % 2,948 S 2,945 S 4
Accrucd labilitics 15 23 15 23
Due to bondholders 5,248 - 601 4,647
Due to other governments - - - -
T'otal Liabilities S 5264 % 2,971 S 3,561 S 4,674
Westpark Asscssment District 89-10
ASSITLS
Cash and investments S 546 % 130 S 146 S 530
Recctvables, net of allowances:
Taxes - - - -
Accrued interest - - -
Due from developers - 142 115 27
T'otal Assets S 546 % 272 S 261 S 557
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable S - f 147 S 141 S 6
Accruced labilitics 20 10 20 10
Due to bondholders 526 15 - 541
Due to other governments - - - -
T'otal 1iabilities S 546 % 172 S 161 S 557
Irvine Spectrum Assessment District 93-14
ASSITLS
Cash and investments S 8,222 % 1,818 S 1,970 S 8,070
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxes 49 114 49 114
Accrued interest 1 - 1 -
Due from developers - 229 158 71
T'otal Asscts S 8272 % 2,161 S 2,178 S 8,255
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable S 5 % 1,072 § 1,118 § 10
Accrucd habilities 10 61 10 61
Due to bondholders 8,206 30 52 8,184
Due to other governments - - - -
l'otal 1iabilities S 8,272 % 1,163 S 1,180 S 8,255
-continued-
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City of Itvine

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Page 4 of 9
June 30, 2008 June 30, 2009
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
Oak Creek Assessment District 94-13
ASSETS
(lash and investments $ 440 8 ) 143 S 305
Reccivables, net of allowances:
I'axes - - - -
Accrued interest - - - -
Due from developers - - - -
Total Asscts $ 440 8 S 143 S 305
LIABILITTES
Accounts payable $ - 143 S 138 S 5
Accrued labilities 26 34 26 34
1Due to bondholders 414 - 148 266
l)lll' o ()th(,‘f (L’"()V('Tﬂm(fﬂrh' - - - -
Total Liabilitics $ 440 177 S 312 S 305
Westpark IT Assessment District 94-15
ASSEITS
(Cash and investments $ 1,861 113 S 114 S 1,860
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxes - - - -
Accrued interest - - - -
Due from developers - 107 87 20
Total Asscts $ 1,861 220 S 201 S 1,880
TIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ - 13 S 109 S 4
Accrued liabilities 15 45 15 45
Due to bondholders 1,846 - 15 1,831
Due to other governments - - - -
T'otal Iiabilitics $ 1,861 158 S 139 S 1,880
Northwest Assessment District 97-16
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 094 371 S 401 S 664
Receivables, net of allowances:
l'axes - - - -
Accrued interest - - - -
Duce from developers - 180 140 40
l'otal Asscts $ 694 551 S 541 S 704
LIABILITTES
Accounts payable % - 291 S 284 S 7
Accrued habilities 32 42 32 42
Due to bondholders G662 2 9 655
Due to other governments - - - -
T'otal Iiabilitics $ 0694 335 S 325 S 704
—continued-
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City of Irvine

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Lower Peters Canyon Assessment District 97-17

ASSIVTS
(ash and investments
Reccivables, net of allowances:
Taxes
Accrued interest
Due from developers

T'otal Asscts

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrucd labilities

Due to bondholders

Due to other governments

T'otal T dabilitics

Irvine Public Facilitics and Infrastructure Authority Series A

ASSIVTS
(Cash and investments
Reccivables, net of allowances:
Taxces
Accrued interest
Due from developers

Total Asscts

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Due to bondholders

Due to other governments

T'otal ] dabilitics

Irvine Public Facilitics and Infrastructure Authority Scrics B

ASSIELS
Cash and mvestments
Recctvables, net of allowances:
‘l'axes
Accrued interest
Due from developers

Total Asscts

LIABILITIES
Accounts pavable
Accrued Habilities
Due to bondholders

Due to other governments

T'otal | iabilitics

Page 5 of 9

June 30, 2008 June 30, 2009
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
S 1,241 923 S 990 S 1,174
22 18 22 18
. 184 136 48
S 1,263 1,125 S 1,148 S 1,240
S - 601 S 593 S 8
39 117 39 117
1,224 - 109 1,115
S 1,263 718 S 741 S 1,240
S 3,014 384 S 814 S 2,584
S 3,014 384 S 814 S 2,584
S - 4 8 4 S -
_ 1 - 1
3,014 - 431 2,583
S 3,014 5 8§ 435 S 2,584
S 2,131 398 S 29 S 2,500
S 2,131 398 S 29 S8 2,500
s : 30 30 -
_ 1 - 1
2,131 368 - 2,499
S 2.131 372 S 3 S 2,500
~continued-
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City of Itvine

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Irvine Public Facilities and Infrastructure Authority Series C

ASSETS
(Cash and mnvestments
Reccivables, net of allowances:
l'axes
Accrued interest
Due from developers

Total Asscts

LIABILITTES
Accounts payable
Accrued labilities
1Due to bondholders

1)[1{' o ()th(,‘f (L’"()V('Tﬂm(fﬂrh'
Total Liabilitics

Reassessment District 99-1
ASSEITS
Cash and investments
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxes
Accrued interest
Due from developers

Total Asscts

TIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Due to bondholders

Due to other governments

“Total Iiabilitics

Recasscssment Distriet 99-2
ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables, net of allowances:
l'axes
Accrued interest
Duce from developers

l'otal Asscts

LIABILITTES

Accounts payablc

Accrued habilities

Due to bondholders

Due to other governments

T'otal Liabilitics

Page 6 of 9

Junc 30, 2008 June 30, 2009
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
$ 4,493 1,634 S 41 S 6,086
$ 4,493 1,634 S 41 S 6,086
$ - 3 S 3 S -
- 1 - 1
4.493 1,592 - 6,085
$ 4493 1596 S 3 S 6,086
$ 1,164 1,862 S 2,020 8 1,006
- 126 - 126
1 - 1 -
$ 1,165 1,988 S 2021 S 1,132
$ - 950 S 950 S -
1,165 - 33 1,132
$ 1,165 950 S 983 S 1,132
$ 5461 8,038 S 8,246 S 5,253
87 104 87 104
3 - 3 -
- 163 163 -
$ 5,551 8,305 S 8,499 S 5,357
$ - 4,099 S 4,099 S -
5,551 - 194 5,357
$ 5,551 4099 S 4293 S 5,357
—continued-
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Reassessment District 01-1
ASSIVLS
Cash and investments
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxces
Accrued interest

Duc from developers
Total Asscts

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued habilitics
[Duc to bondholders

Duc to other governments
Total Liabilitics

Reassessment District 01-2
ASSILS
Cash and investments
Receivables, ner of allowances:
Taxes
Accruced interest

Duc from developers
Total Asscts

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accruced habilitics
1Duc to bondholders

Duc to other governments
Total Liabilitics

Reassessment District 03-1
ASSETS
Cash and mnvestments
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxes
Accrued interest

Duc from developers
Total Asscts

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued habilitics

1>uc to bondholders

[Due to other governments

T'otal Liabilitics

City of Itvine

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Page 7 of 9

June 30, 2008 June 30, 2009
Balance Addicions Deductions Balance
$ 767 1,313 S 1,367 S 713
18 9 18 9
1 - 1 -
$ 786 1322 S 1,386 S 722
$ - 679 S 679 S -
7806 - 64 722
$ 7806 679 S 743 S 722
$ 4,737 7,626 S 8,023 S 4,340
144 157 144 157
3 - 3 -
§ 4 884 7,783 S 8170 S 4,497
$ - 3995 S 3995 S -
4,884 - 387 4,497
$ 4 884 3995 S 4382 S 4497
$ 839 1,501 S 1,536 S 804
60 62 60 62
1 - 1 -
§ 900 1,563 S 1597 S 866
$ - 763§ 763 S -
900 - 34 866
$ 900 763 S 797 S 866
~continuced-
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Reassessment District 03-2
ASSETS
(Cash and mnvestments
Reccivables, net of allowances:
l'axes
Accrued interest
Due from developers

Total Asscts

LIABILITTES
Accounts payable
Accrued labilities
1Due to bondholders

1)[1{' o ()th(,‘f (L’"()V('Tﬂm(fﬂrh'
Total Liabilitics

CFD-Central Park 2004-1
ASSEITS
Cash and investments
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxes
Accrued interest
Due from developers

Total Asscts

TIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Due to bondholders

Due to other governments

“Total Iiabilitics

City of Itvine
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

CFD-Columbus Grove 2005-2

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables, net of allowances:
l'axes
Accrued interest
Duce from developers

l'otal Asscts

LIABILITTES

Accounts payablc

Accrued habilities

Due to bondholders

Due to other governments

T'otal Liabilitics

Page 8 of 9

June 30, 2008 June 30, 2009
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
$ 7,168 S 13,081 S 13379 S 6,870
254 250 254 250
5 1 5 1
- 4 4 -
$ 7427 S 13,336 S 13,642 S 7,121
$ - S 6,665 S 6,065 S -
7427 - 306 7121
$ 7427 S 6,665 S 6971 S 7,121
$ 838 S 12 S 6 S 844
1 - 1 -
$ 839 S 12 S 7 S 844
$ -8 3 8 3 8 -
839 5 - 844
$ 839 S 8 S 3 S 844
$ 2,714 S 3336 S 3,266 S 2,784
166 135 166 135
1 - 1 -
$ 2,881 S 3,471 S 3433 S 2,919
$ - S 1,014 S 1,614 S -
- 1 - 1
2,881 37 - 2,918
$ 2.881 S 1,652 S 1614 S 2,919
—continued-
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City of Itvine
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Page 9 of 9
June 30, 2008 June 30, 2009
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
Inter-Agency Custodial Fund
ASSIETS
(Cash and investments S 57 ¥ 219 S 136 S 140
Reccivables, net of allowances:
Taxes - - - -
Accrued interest - - - -
Due from developers - - - -
l'otal Asscts S 57 $ 219 S 136 S 140
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable S - $ 67 S 67 S -
Accrucd labilities - 1 1 -
Due to bondholders - - - -
Due to other governments 57 153 70 140
"'otal ] dabilitics S 57 $ 221 S 138 S 140
Total Agency Funds
ASSIYLS
Cash and investments S 99,043 % 82,471 S 88,174 S 93,340
Reccivables, net of allowances:
T'axes 1,499 2,085 1,509 2,075
Accrued interest 32 3 32 3
Due from developers - 1,122 892 230
T'otal Asscts S 100,574 % 85,681 S 90,607 S 95,648
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable S 59 % 41,529 S 41,530 S 58
Accrued liabilities 171 382 172 381
Due to bondholders 100,287 2,049 7.267 95,069
Due to other governments 57 153 70 140
T'otal | iabilitics S 100,574 § 44,113 S 49,039 S 95,648
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Statistical Section




STATISTICAL SECTION

This section of the City of lrvine’s Comprchensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health.

Financial Trends Schedules - These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand
how the City’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Net Assets by Component

Changes 1n Net Assets

Fund Balances of Governmenral Funds

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
Taxable Sales by Category

Tax Revenue by Source - Governmental I'unds

Revenue Capacity Schedules - These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the
factors affecting the City’s ability to generate its property and sales taxes.

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates

Principal Property '1'ax Payers

Property Tax Levies and Collections

Debt Capacity Schedules - These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the City’s current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional
debt in the future.

Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type

Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Schedule of Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt
Legal Debt Margin

Demographic and Feonomic Information - These schedules offer demographic and economic
indicatots to help the reader understand the environment within which the City’s financial activites
take place and to help make comparisons over time and with other governments.

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Principal Employers
Budgeted I'ull-Time, Part-Time, and Non-Houtly Positions by [function

Operating Information - These schedules contain information about the City’s operations and
resources to help the reader understand how the City’s financial information relates to the services the
City provides and the activities 1t performs.

Capital Asset Statistics
Operating Indicators by Function

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Reports for the relevant year. The City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 34 in 2002; schedules presenting government-wide information include information beginning in
that year.
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City of Itvine
Net Assets by Component
Last Eight Fiscal Years

(amounts expressed in thousands)

2009 2008 2007
Governmental Activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 1,459,815 $ 1,425432 1,275,007
Resericted 376,056 364,556 430,022
Uarestricted 294,354 371,340 313,186
Total Governmental Activities Net Assets $ 2,130,225 $ 2,161,328 2,018,215
Primary Government
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 1,459,815 $ 1,425,432 1,275,007
Restricted 376,056 364,556 430,022
Unrestricted 294,354 371,340 313,186
Total Primary Government Net Assets $ 2,130,225 $ 2,161,328 2,018,215

Note: The City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 (GASB 34)
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. Information ptior to the implementation of GASB 34 i1s unavailable.

Source: City Fiscal Services Division
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2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
1,180,580 883,853 810,255 741,460 684,510
410,792 351,994 343,352 285,379 312,353
213,578 144,889 124,419 111,001 103,862
1,804,950 1,380,736 1,278,026 1,137,840 1,100,725
1,180,580 883,853 810,255 741 460 684,510
410,792 351,094 343352 285,379 312,353
213578 144,889 124,419 111,001 103,862
1,804,950 1,380,736 1,278,026 1,137,840 1,100,725
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EXPENSES
Governmental Activities
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
ITealth and Sanitation
Culture and Recreation

Community Development

Redevelopment &

Great Park &

Interest on long-term debt

Unallocated infrastructure depreciation
Total Governmental Activities Expenses

PROGRAM REVENUES
Governmental Activities
Charges for services:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Sanitation
Culture and Recreation
Community Development
Redevelopment o
Great Park
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Total Governmental Activitics Program Revenues

Total Net Revenues (Expenses)

GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER
CHANGESIN NET ASSETS
Governmental Activities

1'axes:
Property tax &

Franchise taxes

Sales taxes

Document transfer taxes

Transient occupancy taxes

Motor vehicle in-lieu

Sale of assets

Unrestricted capital grants & contributions

Investment revenue

Other revenue
Total Governmental Activities
Changes in Net Assets

City of Irvine
Changes in Net Assets
Last Eight Fiscal Years

(amounts expressed in thousands)

2009 2008 2007
$ 20,495 S 47,848 $ 18211
57,693 52,292 45356
55,070 27,663 90,318
375 314 263
31,900 36,863 34,126
32,453 18,488 21485
. 10,468 16,628
13,235 34,248 18,628
14,111 . 1,239
38,700 33,172 27777
$ 264,041 B 261,356 $ 274,031
$ 681 S 10,738 $ -
4273 3,950 3429
10,856 24,566 18,098
_ 25 _
10,896 7,698 7.285
4,828 13,479 12,983
. 319 768
3,384 3,450 2785
15,702 11,286 16,029
52,984 155,840 245498
103,604 231,351 306,875
$ (160 437) S (30,005) $ 32,844
$ 54,168 S 52,155 $ 54,566
11,704 11,553 11,344
49,732 58,949 58,041
996 1,328 2,525
7,768 9,108 9,396
715 820 1,069
165 14 21
. . 1
7,325 36,304 43,458
20 2,276 -
132,593 172,507 180,421
$ (27,844) S 142,502 $ 213,265

Note: The City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 (GASB 34) for the fiscal year

ened June 30, 2002. Informmation prior to the implementation of GASB 34 is unavailable.

n Redevelopment department established in fiscal year 2005-06 and combined into Community Development in

fiscal year 2008-09.

@ Great Park department established in fiscal year 2006-07.

3) . . . .
' City amounts included the Redevelopment Agency's incremental valuation.

Source: City Fiscal Services Division
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2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
22,587 18,732 § 20,967 17,305 $ 15,684
43907 38418 36,238 31,582 33084
60,461 61,121 51,849 20731 36.984

251 235 205 200 173
29.617 26,743 22,783 20,531 20,195
24822 18.038 15,180 12,664 14,877

1,400 . . . -
1,250 79 746 961 1,426
24,502 22,089 19,396 16,989 14,841
208,797 186,355 3 167,364 129,963 5 137 464
2,861 134 § 222 425 s 212
3,610 3,365 3,329 3,624 2,453
27,231 37.855 13,895 15,000 11.271
6,793 6,059 5574 5,031 4,935
16,355 13,164 11,683 9,887 10,055
9,949 10,465 9,036 5073 5073
434218 110,554 165,605 31,850 79,850
501,017 181,596 209,344 70,899 113 849
292,220 (4,759) B 41,980 (59,064) 3 (23,615)
33,094 27530 g 17,372 16,189 s 15,269
10,040 9015 8729 8,806 8,627
53,688 49,335 48,547 41,763 40,986
3,831 3,622 2,617 1,813 1,457
8,708 7295 6,688 6,112 6,009
1,284 1,429 10712 8,511 8925
7 74 - 49 28
1 . . 444 152
21,270 9,169 3,541 10,721 15,109
- - - - 469
131,994 107 469 98.206 94,498 97.031
424214 102,710 § 140,186 35,434 s 73,416
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City of Irvine

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

GENERAL FUND
Reserved
Unreserved

Total General Fund

ALL OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Reserved
Unreserved, reported in:
Special Revenue Punds
Capital Project lfunds
Permanent lfunds
Total All Other Governmental 1funds

Source: City Fiscal Services Division

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands)

2009 2008 2007 2006

9,427 9,443 9,261 S 9,142
100,769 114,344 117,811 120,750
110,196 123 787 127072 S 129,892
320,395 335939 293983 S 289,757
127,296 187,750 262,416 185,171
52,429 30,655 26,928 ©

170 146 114 72
500,290 554,490 583441 3 474991
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2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

$ 2,745 2,200 S 616 736 1,194 1,438
111,696 102,262 99 104 96,626 94,752 7,203

5 114,441 104,462 S 99,720 97,362 95,046 88,641
S 249,718 265,307 S 217 452 244,287 216,266 220,728
115,520 81,008 67,967 68,615 60,680 55,887

67 (13) . y y y

56 97 112 106 5 -

3 365,227 346,399 S 285,531 313,008 276,946 276,615
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Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

REVENUES
Taxes

Sales and usc raxces

Property taxes

All other taxes
Licenses & permits
Fines & forfeitures
Investment income
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Asscssment districts contributions
Revenue from developers
Revenue from property owners
Donations
Orther revenue

T'otal Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Community Development
Community Services
Redevelopment
Great Park
Street lighting
Capital Outlay
Debt Services:
Principal rerirement
Interest & fiscal charges
Administration
T'otal Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenuces
Over (Under) Expendirures

City of Irvine

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Issuance of long-term note
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
I'ransfers in

T'ransfers out

Proceeds from capiral lease obligation

T'oral Other Financing Sources (Uscs)

Net Change in Fund Balances

DEBT SERVICE AS A PERCENTAGE
OF NONCAPITAL EXPENDITURES

2009 2008 2007 2006

$ 40732 $ 58,049  § 58,041 % 53,688
54,168 52,155 54,566 33,094
25,402 31,353 33,261 42,340
4,592 7.528 7,166 8,996
1,936 2,192 1,985 2,151
23,089 35,973 39,141 20,201
43,610 35,885 20,647 13,315
34,202 43,572 35241 34,178
1,103 - 108,131 101,067
498 83,975 89,669 76,410
5203 4,863 7,782 6,372
537 1,003 . ;
2,936 2,563 4253 6,326
247,008 360,011 459 883 398,138
30,572 31,331 28,662 34,308
56,404 52,481 47,830 44,100
33,833 35,803 39,613 29,946
33,985 18,576 17,818 24,047
34,240 35,264 34,524 20,613

- 9,737 15,537 1,270

13,073 12,128 18,636 -
6,226 5,069 4,589 4,137
84,770 169,594 137,511 93,798
6,990 8,170 6,225 5,770
14,038 11,853 1,240 1,202
75 106 108 179
314,206 390,112 352,203 269,270
(67.,198) (30,101 107.590 128,868
48 a7 1,350 -

_ 14 _ -
65,542 476,218 97,956 83,297
(64.308) (477.803) (101,266) (86,950)
1,282 (1,524) (1,960) (3.653)

$ 65,916) % (31,625) % 105,630 $ 125215
6.7% 8.9% 2.8% 3.6%

0o . . . . . . . .
0 Excludes infrastructure, prior to the implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34,

Soutce: City Fiscal Services Division
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2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

49,335 $ 48,547 $ 41,763 $ 40,986 $ 46,529 $ 43,278
27,530 17,372 16,189 15,269 12,864 10,917
32,5606 28,814 27,758 24,152 25,744 27,139
6,943 6,646 5,859 5,780 6,104 6,276
2,059 1,829 1,921 1,796 2,338 2,139
8,774 3,510 9,662 13,734 28,346 19,207
10,801 15,883 17,261 14,780 16,340 11,811
28,450 25,152 22,943 20,786 20,660 28,888
47,421 104,061 - 69,476 60,949 4,238
36,051 15,985 4,619 5,097 - -
5,859 8,529 4,365 2,937 2,792 2,283
2,582 1,909 453 1,158 5,627 1,256
258,371 278,237 152,793 215,951 228,203 157,452
28,780 30,118 24,576 21,941 63,582 19,216
39,130 36,640 33,724 33,280 31,730 30,066
32,409 30,673 21,365 20,012 18,894 15,121
18,078 15,002 12,825 14,643 12,699 11,669
26,621 22436 20,540 19,038 17,662 16,002
4,190 3,771 3,687 3,618 3,391 3,344
73,914 68,271 54,440 56,711 59,405 91,377
5,330 4,885 4,550 6,635 5,780 3,580
911 706 892 1,251 2,427 2,620
156 166 195 148 223 124
229,519 212,668 176,794 177,283 215,793 195,209
28,852 65,560 (24,001} 38,668 12,500 (37,757)
22,244 22,393 26,627 13,677 34,290 27,667
(22,919) (22,352) (27,745) (14,867) (37,030) (26,633)
- - - - - 19
(675) 41 (1,118) (1,190) (2,740) 1,053
28,177 $ 65,610 $ (25,1197 & 37,478 $ 9,760 $ (36,704)
3.6% 3.6% 4.5% 6.0% O 5.4%, 8.0%
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City of Irvine
Taxable Sales by Category

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands)

2009 2008 2007 2006

Apparel stores $ * ) 151,277 $ 160,900 $ 134,828
General merchandise * 382,044 426,465 381,271
Food stores * 135,395 125,231 121,971
Eating & drinking places * 455,804 455,127 429,805
Home furnishings & appliances * 172,600 214,469 212,144
Building material & farm tools * 94,565 103,877 85,475
Auto dealers & supplies * 660,418 726,047 722,744
Service stations * 212,969 183,978 160,051
Other retail stores ¥ 748,933 925,451 838,667
All other outlers * 1,635,329 1,610,630 1,647 566

Total $ - S 4,649,334 $ 4,932,175 $ 4,734,522
City Direct Sales Tax Rate 0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 0.75%

Note: Data prior to the fiscal year 2000-01 is only available on a calendar vear basis.

* Statistics for fiscal year 2008-09 1s unavailable ar the present time.

Source: California State Board of Equalizaton and Center for Demographic Research of

California State University, Fullerton
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2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
$ 107,068  § 93733 S 74005 $ 73,043 71,139 63,174
334,891 316,770 298,023 270,510 241,725 209,598
112,236 89,630 84,524 77,627 74,035 68,354
395,191 374,066 337,082 311,470 297,177 273319
213,146 204,504 181,005 163,123 169,808 161,719
91,439 88,095 76,730 83,749 83,662 55,247
782,031 829,419 702,634 587,821 471,822 452,655
134,092 117,033 101,927 89,816 99,995 81,928
754,319 759,285 595,802 557,940 863,996 698,106
1,558,964 1,461,650 1,387,472 1,375,154 1,729,321 1,670,135
§ 4484277 % 4334185 $ 3839294 § 3590233 4,102,680 3,734,235
1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
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City of Irvine
Tax Revenues by Source - Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Property Tax Transient Document
Fiscal Redevelopment Sales Occupancy Franchise Transfer
Year City Agency W Tax Tax Tax Tax Other Total
2009 $ 45395 % 8,773 $ 48,736 $ 7,76% s 11,704 $ 996 $ 5,930 $ 129302
2008 45,309 6,846 § 58949 9,108 11,553 1,328 9,364 142,457
2007 42,013 12,553 58,041 9,396 11,344 2525 9,996 145,808
2006 33,004 - 53,688 8,708 10,040 3,831 19,761 129,122
2005 27,530 - 49,335 7,295 9,015 3,622 12,634 109,431
2004 17,372 - 48,547 6,688 8,729 2,617 10,780 94,733
2003 16,189 - 41,763 6,112 8,896 1,813 10,937 85,710
2002 15,269 - 40,986 6,009 8,627 1,457 8,059 80 407
2001 12,864 - 46,529 7,288 7,253 1,466 9,737 85,137
2000 10,917 : 43,278 6,446 6,404 1,283 13,006 81,334

o . L.
(’ Redevelopment Agency tax increment beganin in fiscal year 2006-07.

Source: City Fiscal Services Division and City Budget Office
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City of Irvine

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounts cxpressed in thousands)

City Redevelopment Agency @

Total

Taxable Direct

Fiscal Public Assessed Public Incremental Tax

Year Secured Utility Unsecured Value™ Secured Utility  Unsecured  Valuation Rate
2009 S 43,636,021 § 2060 S 3619528 § 47257609 S 864,151 $335411 S 7,657 8§ 872144  0.113%
2008 41,322,909 2,479 3,057,595 44,382,983 847,207 335 2,559 850,101 0.115%
2007 36,335,844 5,682 2,938,730 39,280,256 830,738 616 2,904 834,258 0.136%
2006 31,225,237 5,893 2,532,912 33,764,042 - - - - 0.098%
2005 27,069,659 7,034 2,558,015 29,634,708 - - - - 0.093%
2004 24,268,011 5,685 2,526,044 26,799,740 - - - - 0.065%
2003 22,388,912 18,268 2,451,452 24,858,632 - - - - 0.065%
2002 20,292,552 16,892 2,400,696 22,710,140 - - - - 0.067%
2001 18,169,324 16,432 2,219,603 20,405,359 - - - - 0.063%
2000 16,217,961 3,714 2,074,761 18,296,436 - - - - 0.060%

Note: Lstimated value of taxable property not readily available in the State of California. “The assessed valuation data shown

above represents the only dara currently available with respect to the actual market value of taxable property and is

subject to the limitations of Proposition 13 passed in 1978,

s . . .
HCity amounts include the Redevelopment Ageney's incremental valuation.

‘:2)Rcdcvc]npmcnt Ageney tax values begin in the fiscal vear 2006-07.

Soutce: Orange County Audiror-Controller, MuniServices LLC
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City of Irvine
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Last T'en Fiscal Years
(expressed as a rate per $100 of assessed value)

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002% 2001 2000

City Direct Rates 002992 0.02992  0.02992  0.02992 002992 0.02992  0.02992  0.02992  0.02992  0.02992

Overlapping Rates:
Orange County Street Lighting Maintenance District #10 0.00972  0.00972  0.00972 000972 0.00972  0.00072  0.00972  0.00972  0.00972  0.00972

Orange County Fire Authority-General Fund 0.11559  0.11559  0.11559  0.11559  0.11559  0.11559  0.11559  0.11559  0.11559  0.11559
Orange County Water District 0.00533  0.00533  0.00533  0.00533  0.00533  0.00533 100533 0.00533  0.00533  0.00533
Orange County Water District-Water Reserve 0.00008  0,00008  0,00008  0.00008 000008  0.00008  0.00008 0.060008  0.00008  (0.00008
Orange County Transit Authority 000289 0.00289  0.00289  0,00289  0,00289  0.00289  0.00289  0,00289  0.00289  0.00289
Orange County Sanitation #7 General Hund 0.01082 001082 001082  0.01082 001082  0.01082 001082 0.01082  0.01082  (1.01082
Orange County Sanitation (OC TUH SMI1D) 0.00159  0.00159 000159 0.00159 000159 0.00159  0.00159  0.00159  0.00159  0.00159
Tustin Unificd General I'und 0.45154  0.45154 0.45154 0.45154 0.45154 0.45154 0.45154 0.45154 (.45154 (.45154
South Orange County Community College Diserice 009104 0.09104  0.09104  0.09104 009104 0.09104  0.09104  0.09104  0.09104  0.09104
Orange County Department of Education 001649 001649 0.01649  0.01649 001649 0.01649  0.01649  0.01649  0.01649  0.01649
Orange County General I'und 006339 0.06339  0.06339  0.06339 006339 0.06339  (L06339  0.06339  0.06339  0.06339
Orange County Public Library 0.01715  0.01715  0.01715 001715 001715 001715 0.01715  0.01715  0.01715  0.01715
Orange County Flood Control District 002034 0.02034  0.02034  0.02034 002034 0.02034  0.02034  0.02034  0.02034  0.02034
Orange County [arbors Beaches & Parks CSA 0.01572  0.01572  0.01572  0.01572 0.01572 0.01572  0.01572 0.01572 0.01572 0.01572
Iducational Revenue Augmentation 'und 0.14673  0.14673  0.14673  0.14673  0.14673  0.14673 014673 014673 0.14673  0.14673
Orange County Cemetery Fund 0.00051  0.00051  0.00051  0.00051  0.00051 0.00051  0.000517 0.00051  0.00051  0.00051
Orange County Veetor Control District 000115 0.00115 000115 0.00115 000115 0.00115  0.00115  0.00115  0.00115  0.00115
T'oal Proposidon 13 Rate (see note below) 1.00000 100000 1.00000 1.00000  1.00000 100000  1,00000  1.00000  1.00000 100000
Metropolitan Water District 000430 0,00450  0,00470 000520 0.00580  0,00610  0.00670  0.00770  0,00880  0.00890
Irvine Ciry-Bond Hund 1974 - - - - - - - 0.00130 0 0.00590  (.00850
Tustin Unified SFI 2002 Bond SR 2003 A 000292 0.00001 - - 005541 0.03036 - - - -
Tustin Ufified 811D 2001-2, Series € 0.00735 - - - - - - - - -
T'ustin Unificd SFT1D 2002 Bond SR 200613 0.02075  0.03172  0.00232  0.03105 - - - - - -
Tolal Dicet and Overlapping Rate 1.03532  1.03623  1.00702 1.03625 106121 1.03646 100670 100900 1.01470 1.01740

This schedule shows information for tax rate arca 26-000).
Note: In 1978, California voters passed Proposition 13 which sets the property tax rate ata 1.00% fixed amount. "T'his 1.00% is shared by all taxing agencies in which
the subject property resides. In addition to the 1.00% fixed amount, property owners are charged taxes as a percentage of assessed property values for the

pavment of various voter-approved school and water disteict bonds,

*Inder Article IXXXA of the California Constitution, local algcncics within the State of California can [mly ey v A kX rate for guncml ()blig;lti(m bonds. 1n addition,
Article XITA of the California Constitution specifies that the countes within the Stale of California may levy a basie tax rate, distributing the proceeds to the

proper agencies. The City's general obligation bonds were retired during fiscal vear 2001-02.

Source: Orange County Auditor-Controller Tax Rate Arca 26-000
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City of Irvine
Principal Property Taxpayets
Current Year and Ten Years Ago

2009 2000
Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
Irvine Company $  5821,467,360 1 13.41% §  1,787,016,870 1 0.77%
Maguire Propertics 1,009,079,060 2 2.32% -
[rvine Apartment Communitics 685,510,229 3 1.58% 886,605,747 2 4.85%
Koll Center Trvine #2 - - 196,878,221 3 1.08%
Ieritage Fields Ul Toro 597,913,835 4 1.38% -
Central Park West 335,051,430 5 0.77% - -
Capital Rescarch Company 251,950,402 6 0.58% - -
B Braun Medical Inc 245,502,575 7 0.57% 183,277,412 4 1.00%
Allergan 226,830,858 8 0.52%
Lakeshore Properties 11LC 178,315,468 9 0.41% 119,888,221 5 0.66%
Century Centre 110 146,428,093 10 0.34% - -
Jamboree 11.C - - 119,602,577 6 0.65%
spicker Properties 1.1 - - 115,283 460 7 0.63%
Baxter Fealtheare Corp. - - 107,805,799 8 0.59%
IR - - 102,358,429 9 0.56%
Metropoliran Life - - 92,021,992 10 0.50%

Totals § 9498049310 21.87% § 3710738728 20.29%

Presented in order of highest to lowest estimated property tax revenue paid to the City and Redevelopment Agency

Source: County Tax Asscssot's Office and County Tax Roll
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City of Irvine
Propetty Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Yeats

Collected within the

Total Tax Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections in Total Collections to Date
Fiscal Levy for Percentage of Subsequent Percentage of
Year Fiscal Year ") Amount ? Levy Years Amount Levy
2009 $ 79,872,700 S 76,262,107 95.48% 3 769,454 77,031,561 96.44%
2008 79,843,121 76,838,078 96.24% 2,242922 79,080,999 99.05%
2007 77,743,318 76,384,058 98.253% 1,451,665 77,835,723 100.12%
2000 57,438,195 55,937,610 97.4% 768,707 56,706,318 98.7%
2005 49,012,241 50,247,731 102.52% 629,321 50,877,052 103.80%
2004 47,447,593 46,439,312 97.92% 425,152 46,884,464 98.81%
2003 42,762,873 41,801,320 97.73% 469,054 42,270,374 98.85%
2002 36,487,887 35,606,325 97.58% 359,476 35,965,801 98.57%
2001 31,871,521 31,166,546 97.79% 380,470 31,547,016 98.98%
2000 30,100,175 29,482,296 97.95% 310,335 29,792,652 98.98%

' Includes General City property tax revenue inclusive of secured, unsecured, and supplemental rolls as well as 1915 Act
Assessment District and Proposition 218, "The Right to Vote on Tax Initiative”, special assessments.

Amount excludes property tax-in lieu VLF | sales and use tax compensation, ERAF, Triple flip or VLF swap.

The amounts presented include City property taxes and Redevelopment Agency fax increment beginning

in the fiscal year 2006-07.

2y ot R . ~ - R . .
# Net collections reflect deductions for refunds, delinquencies and impoundments.

% With the advent of Proposition 218, the Refuse Disposal tax is no longer collected with property rax.

Source: Orange County Auditor-Controller
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City of Irvine
Ratio of Qutstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands, except per capita)

General Leage Certificates Total Percentage % of Actual

Fiscal Obligation Revenue of Capital Governmental of Personal Assessed Value Per
Year Bonds Bonds Participation Leases Activities Income of Property @ Capita o
2009 $ - $ 15,785 S - $ 673 16,458 0.19% 0.03% 77
2008 - 22775 - 631 23,406 0.27% 0.05% 112
2007 - 29,135 1,810 425 31,370 0.41% 0.09% 155
2000 - 34,965 2,205 648 37,818 0.51% 0.11% 195
2005 - 40,365 2,575 301 43,741 0.60% 0.15% 254
2004 - 45,340 2,930 939 49,209 - 0.18%% 286
2003 - 49,890 3,265 1,228 54,383 - 0.22°% 330
2002 - 54,120 3,585 1,500 59,205 - 0.26% 376
2001 720 58,025 5,595 752 65,092 - 0.32% 440
2000 2120 61,510 6,490 1,003 71,123 - 0.39%% 494

o . . R - . . . . .
! See Demographic and Feonomic Statistics schedule for personal income and population. Personal income data not available prior

o fiscal year 2004-05.

& Assessed value used because actual value of taxable property not readily available in the State of Californta.

Source:  City iscal Services Division, Lmployment Development Depattinent, State Department of Dinancee,
U.S. Burcau of Census, and Center for Demographic Rescearch of California State University, Fullerton
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City of Irvine
Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Last Ten Fiscal Yeats
(amounts expressed in thousands, except per capita)

Total Less Percent
General Debt Net of Debt to Debt
Fiscal Obligation Service Bonded Assessed per
Year Population Bonds Fund @ Debt Value™ Capita
2009 213 - - - 0.00% -
2008 210 - - - 0.00% -
2007 202 - - - 0.00% -
2006 194 - - - 0.00% -
2005 172 - - - 0.00% -
2004 172 - - - 0.00% -
2003 165 - - - 0.00% -
2002 158 - - - 0.00% -
2001 148 720 412 308 0.00% 2.08
2000 144 2,120 540 1,580 0.01% 10.97

@

@

3

o
o

Amounts cxclude lease revenue bonds.

Amounts available for repayment of general obligation bonds.
Assessed value used because estimated value of taxable property not readily available in State of California.

U.S. Census Bureau, 2005 American Community Survey. Data is limited to the household population and

exclude the population living in institutions, college dormitories, and other group quarters.
8

Source: City Fiscal Services Division
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City of Irvine

Schedule of Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt

June 30, 2009

2008-09 Asscssed valuation: A 47,257,608,2006
Redevelopment ineremental valuation: 864,108 545
Adjusted assessed valuation ) 46,389,439,661
Total City’s Share of
OVERLAPPING TAX AN ASSUSSMENT DEILS Debt 6/30/09 v Applicable Debt 6/30/09
Mectropolitan Watcr Disticr S 293,425,000 2516 % % 7382573
Rancho Santiagn Community College District 316,405,071 14.241 45,059,246
Irvine Unified School District Community Facilitics Districts 447,406,803 99.607-100. 447,101,108
Laguna Unified School Disrict 34,315,000 0.00002 7
Saddleback Valley Umfied School District 140,200,000 3,820 5,355,040
Santa Ana Unificd School District 221,191,491 32.673 72,269,896
Santa Ana Unificd School District Community Pacilities District No, 2004-1 11,730,000 100. 11,730,000
Tustin Unificd School District School Factlitics Improvement District No. 2002-1 40,345,617 8.239 3,324,075
Tustin Unified School District Community Facilites District No. 97-1 100,172,675 100, 100,172,675
Tuson Unified School Distriet Community Factlines Dister No. 2007-1 74,677,670 100. 74,677,470
Irvine Ranch Water District Improvement Districts 343 890,569 50.487-100, 250,220,595
City of Irvine Community Faeilities District No. 2005-2 23,600,000 100. 23,600,000
City of Irvine 1915 Act Bonds 887,163,771 100. 887,163,771
TOTAL OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT 1,928,057.256
DIRECT AN OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUNID DI
Orange County General Fund Obligations S 462,152,000 12229 % § 56,516,508
Orange County Pension ()blig'(lti()ns 69,713,001 12.229 8,525.203
Orange County Board of Education Certificates of Participation 19,430,000 12.229 2,376,095
Municipal Water District of Orange County Water Jacilides Corporation 17,685,000 14,524 2,568,569
South Orange County Community College District Certificates of Participation 32,875,000 23916 7.862,385
Orange Unified School District Certificates of Participation 144,265,000 0.005 7,213
Santa Ana Unified School District Certificates of Participation 62,396,493 32.673 20,386,806
Tustin Unified School District Certificates of Participation 5,760,000 25.397 1,462,867
Irvine Ranch Water Districe Certificates of Participation 103,100,000 64.088 66,074,724
City of Irvine General Fund Obligations 15,785,000 100, 15,785,000
Orange County lire Authority 7,040,000 23782 1,674,253
TOTAL GROSS DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT $ 183,239,687
Less: MWIDOC Water Facilitics Corporation (paid from water charges) 2,568,569
Santa Ana Unified School District Q4 ADBs supported by investment fund payments 3,757,395
TOTAL NITU DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT $ 176,913,723
GROSS COMBINED TOTAL DEBT $ 2,111,296,943
NIST COMBINED TOTAL DEBT $ 2,104,970,979

¢ )I’crccnmgc of vrerlapping agency's assessed valuation located within boundaries of the city.
ap,

and are no longer included in debt statement.

reviously classified Orange County Sanitation District Certificates of Participation have been reclassified as district revenue supported issues

™, L . . L
"lixcludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and tax allocation bonds and non-bonded capital lease obligations.,

Ratios to 2008-09 Assessed Valuation:

Tatal overlapping tax and asscssmentdebt....o 4.08%

Rarios to Adjusted Assessed Valuation:

Combined direct debt (S15,785,000) .. cociiviiniiiii i, 0.03%%
Gross combined toral debro o 4.55%
et combined total debr oo 4.54%
STATE SCIOO1, BUILDING ALD REPAYABLITAS OF 6/30/08: $0

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.
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Assessed valuation

Conversion percentage
Adjusted assessed valuadon

Debit limir percentage

Debt limit

Total Net Debt Applicable to Limit:
General obligation bonds

Legal Debt Margin

Total Net Debt Applicable to the Limit
as a Percentage of Debt Limit

City of Itvine
Legal Debt Margin
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2009

2008

2007

2006

§ 47,257 608,206
25%

$ 11,814,402,052

S 44,382,983,056
25%

S 11,095,745,764

S 39,280,255,615
25%

§ 9,820,063,904

S 33,764,042,231
25%

S 8,441,010,558

15% 15% 15% 15%
1,772,160,308 1,664,361,865 1,473,009,586 1,266,151,584
§ 1772160308 S 1664361,865 S 147300958 S 1,266,151,584
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Note: The Government Code of the State of California provides for a legal debt limit of 15% of gross assessed valuation.
However, this provision was enacted when assessed valuation was based upon 25% of markert value. Iffective
with the 1981-82 fiscal year, each parcel is now assessed at 100% of market value (as of the most recent change in
ownership for that parcel). The computations shown above teflect a conversion of assessed valuation data for cach
fiscal year from the current full valuation perspective to the 25% level that was in effecr ar the time thar the legal debt

margin was enacted by the State of California for local governments located within the State.

Source: City Fiscal Services Division, California Municipal Statistics, Inc. and Orange County

Auditor-Controller
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2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

$ 20,634,708,495  § 26,799.740,692  $ 24,858,631,527 S 22.710,140,394  § 20405359320 S 18,296,436,249
25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%

S 7408677124 $ 6699935173  § 6214657,882 S 5677535099  § 5101339830 S 4,574,109,062

15% 15% 15% 15% 15% 15%
1,111,301,569 1,004,990,276 932,198,682 851,630,265 765,200,975 686,116,359
] ) ; - 308,513 1,580,260

S L111,301,569  $ 1004990276  § 932198682 S 851630265 $ 764802462 S 684,536,099

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.04% 0.23%
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City of Irvine
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Personal Per Capita Income per

Fiscal Income Personal Median
Year Population (in thousands) Income Household
2009 212,793 $ 8,733,663 5 41,043 $ 91,101
2008 209,806 8,691,214 41,425 98,923
2007 202,079 7,667,079 37,941 85,624
2006 193,785 7,352,307 37,941 84,270
2005 172,182 ¥ 7,267,978 42211 ¥ 82,827
2004 171,700 ’ s 71,200
2003 164,923 . 71,200
2002 157,499 = 75,985
2001 148,100 * * 72,605
2000 144,100 . . 72,057

* Statistics prior to fiscal year 2004-05 are unavailable.

Median

30.0

345

331

331

33.1

34.2

School Unemployment
Enrollment Rate
26,323 7.0%
26,097 4.0%
25,781 2.6%
25459 3.8%
25,163 3.9%
24,833 2.4%
24,714 2.8%
24,360 2.9%
23,784 2.1%
23,127 2.0%

. . L . . . -
' Used prior fiscal vear per capita income and estimated population number from City Budget Office to calculate fiscal year

total personal income,

@ City Budger Office estimate.

Y. - . . . T . .
" U.S. Census Bureau, 2005 American Community Survey. Data is limited to the household population and exclude the population

living in institutions, college dormitories, and other group quarters.
> & s fis

Source: U.S. Bureau of Census, Employment Development Department, California Department of Finance,
California State Unmiversity, Fullerton, and Irvine Unified School District
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City of Irvine
Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2009 2000
Number of Percentage of Number of Percentage of
Employer Employees Employment Employees Employment
University of California Irvine 18,284 8.11% 8,140 9.03%
Irvine Unified School District 2,571 1.14% 2374 2.63%
Broadcom 2,439 1.08% 2,439 2.71%
Edwards Lifesciences 1,934 0.86% 1,934 2.15%
Allergan 1,922 0.85% 2,003 2.22%
New Century Mortgage Cotp 1,741 0.77% - -
Parker Hannifin 1,650 0.73% - -
St John Knits 1,619 0.72% 2,315 2.57%
BB Braun Medical 1,500 0.67% - -
Capital Group Companies 1,077 0.48% - -
Fluor Daniel - - 2,130 2.36%
Baxter/Bentley - - 1,857 2.06%
Option One Mortgage Corp - - 1,826 2.03%
Toshiba - - 1,816 2.02%

Source: City Budget Oftice and City PPublic Safety Department
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City of Itvine

Budgeted Full-Time, Part-Time, and Non-Hourly Positions by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Yeas as of June 30

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
FUNCTION
General Government
I*ull-rime 91.00 04.00 87.20 82.10 73.00 80.00 &80.00 79.00 72.00 70.00
Part-time 25.05 24.40) 22.80 33.34 40.22 33.40 35.08 34.03 32.08 31.32
Non-hourly 10.00 10.00 - - - - - - - -
Public Safety
Iull-time 295.00 283.00 263.00 242.00 236.00 233.00 232,00 233.50 226.50) 220.50)
Part-time 29.31 29.30 43.10 54.43 49.07 40.40 45.42 45.40 57.10 35.97
Non-hourly 300.40 30.40 - - - - - - - -
Public Works
I'ull-time 152.00 154.00 148.00 135.00 129.00 120.00 118.50 118.00 115.00 111.00
Part-time 5.88 5.00 7.00 11.68 11.99 10.60 12.95 18.05 18.45 15.88
Community Development
Iyll-time 109.00 96.30 90.00 84.90 84.00 77.50 79.50 79.00 81.00 79.00
Part-time 7.14 - 12,40 17.45 15.15 16.07 15.97 15.17 15.47 15.43
Non-hourly 11.00 10.60 - - - - - - - -
Community Services
Itull-time 113.00 114.00 92.00 83.00 83.00 83.00 84.00 84.00 81.00 78.00
Part-time 194.63 197.90 217.50 209.79 208.96 188.32 194.31 205.88 198.44 182.71
Non-hourly 12.00 12.00
Redevelopment
[*ull-time - 15.70 14.90 .00 - - - - - -
Part-time - 6.90 3.80 3.00 - - - - - R
Great Park
I*ull-rime 23.00 21.00 15.00 15.00 10.00 - - - - -
Part-time 2.20 0.60 9.20 9.00 - - - - - -
Non-hourly 39.00 9.00 - - - - - - - -
Total 1,150.21 1L,114.10 1,027.90 993.69 940).39 §82.29 897.73 912.03 897.04 865.81

Note:

Part-time employeces are expressed as full-time equivalents.

The Redevelopment Department was cstablished in the fiscal year 2005-06 and combined into Community Development

in fiscal year 2008-09.

The Great Park began operations at the former Marine Corps Air Station at ] 'loro in fiscal year 2004-05.

Source: City Budget Office, City Human Resources
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FUNCTION

Police safety
Stations
Patrol units
Vire stations

Public Works
Streets {miles)

I'taffic signals

Streetscape acres)

Open space/greenbelts {acres)
Bicycle trails (miles)
Off-srreet bicycle trails (miles)

Culture and Recreation
Community athletic parks
Community ceniters
Dog parks
Skate parks
Soccer fields
Swimming pools
Batting cages
Basketball courts
Racquetball/ handball courts
T'ennis courts
Volleyball courts

City of Irvine
Capital Asset Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Ycar as of Junc 30

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 1
44 44 43 39 37 37 37 37 37 37
9 9 9 9 8 7 7 7 7 6

1,742 1,742 1,704 1,645 1,612 1,612 1,532 1,495 1,477 1,447

317 295 295 295 282 274 273 260 253 247
749 716 702 670 670 599 557 542 526 526
4100 35300 2340 2144 2136 2,136 300 300 300 300
147 147 148 141 132 132 132 126 126 126
43 43 43 43 142 42 42 32 32 32
13 13 11 11 9 7 7 7 7 7
11 11 11 9 9 9 9 6 6 x

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 *

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
36 35 35 31 31 27 27 27 * *
4 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 *
14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 * *
29 25 25 19 19 15 15 15 * *
10 10 10 9 9 9 9 * *
59 57 57 55 53 53 47 39 48 48
15 14 14 14 14 12 12 12 * *

Y Joint powers authority with the Orange County Fire Authority.

* Data not readily avaitable.

Source: City Budget Office
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City of Irvine
Operating Indicators by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2009 2008 2007 2006

FUNCTION
General Government

Checks/wire transfers 47,918 47,837 46,004 35,056

Number of purchase orders placed 2,065 1,898 2,290 2,100
Police

Animal control service calls 8,669 7,247 7,008 9,750

Physical arrests 2,846 2,855 3,377 3,512

Parking citations 6,830 9,465 9,135 8,076

Traffic citations 26,325 26,452 27,281 25,179
Highways and Streets

Arterial street resurfacing (centerline miles) 15 6 3 1

Arterial street sweeping (curb miles) 37,940 37,939 37,939 36,834
Community Development

Building permits issued 98,538 117,000 155,000 130,100

Building inspections completed 8,132 11,500 12,800 14,930
Culture and Recreation

Recreational & instructional classes offered 6,845 6,763 7,000 7,000

Recreational & instructional enrollees 63,153 61,804 36,848 54,982

Recreational & internet registrants for classes 58 50 54 18

Youth services participation umits 68,251 74,152 74,000 73,869
Redevelopment w

Number of discretionary applications processed 17 7 3 -

Number of demolition permits issued 11 15 3 -

Number of grading/building permits issued 7 16 15 -

@ The Redevelopment Agency project area was established in fiscal year 2004-05,

* Data not readily available.

Source: Varlous city departments
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2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

47,000 41,641 40472 * 44,078 *

2,098 2,121 1,600 * 3,000 *
9,718 9718 10415 9,392 7,750 7,767
2,288 2314 2,209 5,487 2,355 2359

8,117 8,042 11,242 10,627 7,856 *

20,441 18,167 32,300 30,805 22,259 21,341
1 6 5 2 5 3
33,762 34,059 33,617 33,050 33,400 30,000
124,591 156,835 125,000 110,000 144,900 90,000
13,424 14,137 13,100 9,500 11,100 11,300
6,687 5,819 3,500 3,500 3,300 3,300
44,851 32,409 25,793 24,394 21,325 18,491
41 35 22 . . .
72,978 72,978 61,649 58,000 57,085 44345
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City of Irvine
Miscellancous Statistical Information

June 30, 2009
Date of Incorporation - December 28, 1971
Form of Government - Charter, Council-Manager
Area - 66 square miles
Citv Tree - Camphot
City Flower - Lily of the Nile
Registered Voters as of Tune 30, 2009 - 109,828
Fire Protection - Orange County Fire Authority

(Joint Powers Authority)

Water Supply - Irvine Ranch Watcr District
City Park and I.andscape Areas Acres

Streetscape - 749

Community Parks - 333

Neighborhood Parks - 155

Sports Field 129

Facilities and Services Fixcluded in the Reporting [intity  Number

Tiducation:

Elementary Schools - 23
Middle Schools - 5
High Schools - 4
Continuation/Independent Study High School - 2

Source:  State Department of Finance, Irvine Unified School District, City Finance Diviston, City
Community Services Department, City Public Safety Department, and City Public Works Department
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Sources:

City of Irvine

Miscellaneous Statistical Information

June 30, 2009
(continued)

Total Valuation of Construction Activity

Year

2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002
2001
2000

Year
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002
2001
2000

Year
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002
2001
2000

(commercial, industrial and other)

Commercial

$ 64,419,150
251,269,260
445,600,704
818,840,474
139,306,324
140,099,477
97,793,649
169,520,522
134,375,635
292,586,130

Building Permits

(number of units authorized)

Housing Units

City Community Development Department

201

Residential
$ 79,699,317

363,333,294
392,766,606
539,959,491
511,012,501
457,438,697
481,207,054
288,402,025
279,701,813
491,585,803

Authorized
1,643
3,283
3,884
1,206
1,062
1,564
1,397
1,320
1,492
1,802

Unit
75,291
75,159
73,815
70,389
68,564
65,892
62,579
59,825
57,859
53,831



City of Irvine
Miscellaneous Statistical Information
June 30, 2009
(continued)

General Plan

Itvine 1s a planned community. The Irvine Company miuated design and development of the first
components of the City more than 40 years ago. World-renowned architect and planner William Pereira
participated in the early stages of design and development. In 1971, the City of Irvine was incorporated.
Since that time, the City and the Irvine Company have cooperatively planned and designed how the land
might be best used to create a place for people to live, work, and play.

Irvine is renowned for many outstanding atttibutes. Irvine is the nation's largest master-planned utban
community, consisting of approximately 66 squarc miles of land including residential villages, commercial
retail centers, as well as civic, cultural, recreational and other supportive facilities. Beautiful homes and
apartments line landscaped boulevards. Greenbelts, patks, tennis courts, athletic parks and swimming
pools provide a vatiety of recreational activities. Shopping centers are within biking distance, and
children are able to walk to award-winning neighborhood schools. Irvine is rated the safest city in the
U.S. with populations over 100,000.

Industry and Employment
Within Irvine there are several major commercial/industrial centers; the Irvine Business Complex,
University Research Park, Irvine Spectrum, and West Irvine.

The Irvine Business Complex is located adjacent to John Wayne Airport. A variety of professional and
technical businesses, as well as residential properties, are located 1n this area.

The University Research Park is a 183-acre business, research, and development office park, located next
to the University of California, Irvine (UCI). The Irvine Company developed the University Research
Park to promote a mutually beneficial association between innovative businesses and UCIL Companies
that locate within the University Research Park have the benefit of partnering with UCI through
internship programs, executive extension programs, and collaborative research. Some of the University
Research Park’s companies include renowned local, regional, and national companies such as America
Online, Cisco Systems, and Skyworks.

‘The Irvine Spectrum, home to prestigious high-tises and campus-like envitonments, is one of California’s
leaders m its concentration of technology, research and development, and light manufacturing
companies. Six industry clusters have emerged in the area: software, computer hardware, biotech,
medical devices, broadband communications, and automotive design. Some of Trvine Spectrum’s leading
companies include Broadcom, Verizon Wireless, Toshiba, Advanced Sterilization Products, and Meade
Instruments.

Itvine has access to a highly educated, skilled labor force and a fully opcerational transportation network.
Over 9,356 acres in the City are available for business uses: 1,456 acres are zoned for muld-use such as
office, retail, institutional, and residential land uses; 1,765 acres for commercial uses, including retail,
office, and commercial recreational land uses; and 6,135 acres in areas such as the Irvine Business
Complex and Spectrum for office, manufacturing, and retail land uses. As of June 30, 2009, Irvine was
home to over 13,700 businesses ranging from Fortune 500 corporations to on-the-grow companics, as
the city continues to emerge as onc of the nation’s most prestigious business address.

Sources: Motgan Quitno Press, City Community Development Department, City Public Works Department, The
Irvine Company, Orange County Register, and U.S. Census Bureau
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City of Irvine
Miscellancous Statistical Information
June 30, 2009
(continued)

Retail Community

The Irvine General Plan gives retalers a blueprint for the future managed growth of the City and added
confidence in making the decision to locate a business here. Irvine has 42 retail shopping centers ranging
from small neighborhood centers to a large regional retail and entertainment complex. The
neighborhood centers contain a variety of retail, personal setvices, automotive service shops, restaurants,
and movice theaters. The Irvine Spectrum Center 18 Orange County’s premier dining, shopping, and
entertainment destination, offering concerts, dancing, movies, dining, comedy, and nightclubs.

Education

The City 1s fortunate to have outstanding educational facilities. Home to 28 California Distinguished
Schools and 14 National Blue Ribbon Schools, the Irvine Unified School District (TUSD) includes
twenty-three elementary schools (with two K-8 schools), five middle schools, four comprehensive high
schools, and two continuation/independent study high schools. In addition, Irvine residents have access
to two elementary schools, Hicks Canyon Elementary School and Myford Elementary School; and to
Beckman High School, all of which are in the Irvine city boundary but arc under the Tustin Unified
School District. Each of the IUSD schools has achieved and surpassed the state’s long-range Academic
Performance Index (API) target of 800. Mardan School (K-12), a private school 15 also located 1n Irvine,
and provides education for children with emotional and learning challenges.

Irvine Valley College 1s a community college, which proudly offers courses for students seeking to obtain
a degree/certificate or transfer to a four-year university. UCI and Concordia University are located in
Irvine, offering extensive four-year undergraduate programs. Additionally, UCI provides graduate level
degrees 1n a variety of areas including medical, business and computer sciences.

Irvine is also home to satellite campuses of Alliant International University, California State University,
Fullerton, University of La Verne, Keller Graduate School of Management, Pepperdine University,
University of Southern California, and Webster University.

Recreational Opportunities

ILocated in the City of Irvine are three public golf courses, one 18-hole natural grass puttung coutse, one
golf practice center, one tennis club, and numerous public and private tennis courts. The City owns and
manages over 485 acres of public park lands, eleven public facilities (which include a Fine Arts Center, an
Aquatics Complex and two Senior Centers), and over 40 miles of off-street trails. There are two County
Librarics, and a County Regional Park. In partnership with the University of California, Irvine, the Irvine
Barclay Theatre was developed as a 750-seat community theater. The Verizon Wireless Amphitheater is
a 15,500-seat outdoor venue that is home to the Pacific Symphony Orchestra and other shows and
festivals during the summer.

Commercial recreation facilities include two miniature golf courses, batting cages, racing cars, boats,
video arcades, a bowling alley, an open air amphitheater which hosts professional contemporary musical
artists, and five movie complexes (56 theaters, including one IMAX screen).

Sources: California Department of Education, The Irvine Company, City Community Development Department,
City Community Service Department, City Finance Division, and University of California, Irvine, and Irvine
Unified School District
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City of Irvine
Miscellaneous Statistical Information
June 30, 2009
(continued)

Family Services and Child Care Opportunities

The City offers a variety of family support services: the Child Cate Coordination Office, the Child
Resource Center, FOR Families, Disability Services, and Irvine Youth Employment. ‘Lhe City is very
proud of the wvariety of child care opportunities available in our community: forty-two
infant/toddler/pre-school centers, thirty-three school-age centers, and numerous licensed family child
care home sites. The National Association for the Education of Young Children has developed an
accreditation system for early childhood programs; fifteen programs in Irvine have successtully
completed the accreditation process.

The Child Care Coordination Office provides resource and referral services to parents seeking quality
and affordable child care in Trvine, support services to persons opening new home-based family child
care businesses or new child care centers in Irvine.

The Child Resource Center offers a lending library for members that include: child development/
curriculum books, DVDs and training materials, instructional materials, lamination and dic cut machines.

FOR Families provides information and short-term support to mdividuals, couples, and families living or
working in Irvine who need assistance identifying and accessing needed services and resources.

Disability Services is committed to providing resource and referral services, disability sensitivity training,
accommodations and inclusion services, accessible services, programs and activities to Irvine residents
and families with disabilities.

Irvine Youth Employment assists [rvine youth in employment, counscling, referrals, and job placement
with Orange County employers.

Sources:  City Community Service Department and City linance Division
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About the Covers

The Irvine Station, located in the Spectrum area at 15215 Barranca Parkway, has become the
busiest train station in Orange County. The Irvine Station offers amenities such as
complimentary parking, bike lockers, restrooms, ATM machines, food services, information
kiosks, newspaper stands, rental car services, Quik-Trak ticket machines, and an Amtrak
ticket counter and lobby. The Station also supports local and rail feeder bus services
operated by the Orange County Transportation Authority and local Irvine Businesses.

Since its opening in August 2008, the Irvine Station Parking Structure, a 490,000 square foot,
four level, three-story structure has received rave reviews, including “Best Design” from the
International Parking Institute. The structure accommodates approximately 1,500 vehicles,
took 13 months to complete, and created a net increase of 950 additional parking
spaces. The parking structure includes 6,728 square feet of ground level shell space for
future transit-supportive retail, space provisions ZevNet Electric Vehicles, the incorporation
of sustainable design principles and “green building” criteria, and the incorporation of land
and hardscaping to enhance the pedestrian environment.

The authors wish to thank Brian Flynn, Media Services Coordinator, in the City of Irvine
Public Information Office, for his design of the cover. The covers and report were printed
by the City of Irvine Duplicating Center, with thanks to Jon Williams and Duplicating
Technician.
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